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In this annual report, we have disclosed forward looking information to enable investors to comprehend our prospects and take 

informed investment decisions. This report and other statements, written and oral, that we periodically make contain forward looking 

statements that set out anticipated performance/results based on the management’s plan and assumptions. We have tried wherever 

possible to identify such statements by using words such as ‘anticipate’, ‘estimate’, ‘expects’, ‘project’, ‘intends’, ‘plans’, ‘believes’ and 

words of similar substance in connection with any discussion of future performance. We cannot guarantee that these forward looking 

statements will be realised, although we believe we have been prudent in assumptions. The achievement of results is subject to 

risks, uncertainties and realization of assumptions. Should known or unknown risks or uncertainties materialise or should underlying 

assumptions prove inaccurate, actual results could vary materially from those anticipated, estimated or projected. Readers should bear 

this in mind.
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WHAT'S INSIDE



Aesthetics, driving experience and safety performance are being redefined in the 
automotive industry. Vehicle lighting, an important aspect of every automobile - be 
it a two, three or a four-wheeler, is steadily witnessing a change from conventional 
lighting to LED lighting - a safer, stylish and sustainable lighting solution. Lumax is 
aligned to this change and through our excellent technological and manufacturing 
capabilities, which enable us to deliver end-to-end solutions; we are confident 
about making the most of these opportunities.

Our passion to excel is founded on inherent strengths – successful collaboration 
with our global partners, readiness to embrace new technology, sustained 
investments in capacity expansion and technology augmentation, staying lean and 
fit by continually improving operations and continued stable relationships with our 
suppliers and customers. Our capabilities and determination to excel will enable us 
to make new inroads in the products we offer and the customers we serve.

The automotive industry is at the forefront of technological growth and innovation 
and we are excited and energised about where we are headed, driven by this 
passion to excel.

At Lumax Industries Limited,  
we are driven by the  
passion to excel.

This inspires our every 
action and is behind our 
every accomplishment.



About US

Our Business in Numbers
33
Years of 
collaboration with 
Stanley, Japan

70+ 
Years of proven 
track record

2
R&D centres

1 
Design centre in 
Taiwan

10
Ultra-modern 
manufacturing 
facilities

2292
Employees

Collaborations
Our passion to excel inspired us 
to collaborate with the best. We 
are proud of our more than three-
decade-long partnership with 
Stanley Electric Co., Ltd., Japan – 
a world leader in vehicle lighting 
and illumination products for 
automobiles. Our collaboration with 
SL Corporation, Korea – a globally 
recognised company for automotive 
parts spans two decades for our 
associate company SL Lumax. 
Leveraging their technical expertise 
and financial strength and driven 
by our shared passion for advanced 
lighting solutions, we have been 
able to consistently deliver superior 
products for global OEMs.

Corporate snapshot
Lumax Industries Limited (the 
‘Company’) is engaged in the 
production and delivery of high-
class end-to-end automotive lighting 
solutions. From a humble beginning as 
a trading concern in 1945, the Company 
has today, evolved into a pioneering 
and leading automotive lighting giant. 
The Company’s business operations 
span across four-wheeler, two-wheeler 
and farm equipment segments for 
leading OEMs (Original Equipment 
Manufacturer). By remaining steadfast 
to the path of collaboration, innovation 
and excellence, the Company has 
emerged as the most preferred supplier 
for OEMs in India, accounting for 
over 60% market share in the Indian 
automobile lighting business.

Group Snapshot
The D.K. Jain Group is the market 
leader in manufacturing automotive 
components. Steered by an industry 
leading experience of almost 
seven decades and by staying at 
the forefront of technology and 
innovation; the Group through its 
twelve entities caters to diverse and 
reputed customers across the world. 
The Group operations are located at 
26 manufacturing facilities across 
seven Indian states. In addition, it has 
three research & development (R&D) 
centres situated in India and one 
design centre at Taiwan. Raising the 
bar of performance at the Group are 
its 7,000+ people always working as a 
team to deliver the highest standards.

Core Management Team
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Product Portfolio
‘Lumax’ stands for Luminosity 
Maxima. Embodying this attribute, 
the products of the Company take 
automotive lighting to an entirely 
new level, meeting the customer 
requirements in today’s highly 
competitive business environment. 
The Company’s product portfolio 
comprises a wide array of complete 
automobile lighting systems and 
solutions and includes stellar quality 
Headlamps, Rear lamps, Sundry and 
Auxiliary lamps for four wheelers, 
two wheelers, trucks, buses, 
earthmovers, tractors and a variety 
of diverse applications.

Geographical Presence

Dharuhera, Gurugram, Bawal 
(Haryana) (3)

Pantnagar, Haridwar 
(Uttarakhand) (2)

Sanand 
(Gujarat) (1)

Corporate Office  
(Gurugram) (1)

Chakan, 
Chinchwad (2)
R&D Centre 
(Chakan) (1)
(Maharashtra)

R&D Centre 
(Gurugram) (1)

Bidadi 
(Karnataka) (1)

SL Lumax, Chennai  
(Tamil Nadu) (1)

Design centre 
(Taiwan) (1)

Manufacturing Facilities 
and Quality Certifications
Our ability to excel is powered by our 
nine state-of-the-art manufacturing 
facilities located across the country. 
All the facilities comply with the 
Quality Management Standard: 
ISO/TS 16949:2009 as well as to the 
Environmental Management System 
standard: ISO 14001:2004.

Note: Map not to scale

We are proud of 
our more than 
three-decade-
long partnership 
with Stanley 
Electric Co., Ltd.

 - Manufacturing Units

 - R&D Centre

 - Corporate Office
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Our Journey 

Set-up a dedicated unit for automotive 
light equipment in Delhi

1956- 
66

Founded a partnership firm 'Globe Auto 
Industries' as a Trading concern1945

Set-up manufacturing units in Faridabad, 
Haryana and Pune, Maharashtra

1977- 
79

Technical Agreement signed with Stanley, 
Japan for lighting equipment 1984

Set-up manufacturing unit in Dharuhera,  
Haryana1998

Set-up manufacturing unit in Chakan, 
Maharashtra2005

Set-up manufacturing plant in Haridwar, 
Uttarakhand2010

The Company completed 25 years as a public 
listed company at BSE Ltd.2014

Opening of Design Centre in Taiwan2016

The Company went Public and listed its 
shares on the Stock Exchange. Set-up 

manufacturing unit in Gurugram, Haryana 1985
Joint venture agreement with SL, 

Corporation, Korea to set-up SL Lumax 
Limited. Further Equity participation by 

Stanley, Japan 1997

Demerger Lumax Industries Limited 2003
Further Equity participation by Stanley Japan. 

Manufacturing units set-up in Pantnagar, 
Uttarakhand and expansion of Dharuhera, 

Haryana and Chakan, Maharashtra units. 
Set-up R&D centre in Gurugram, Haryana

2007- 
08

Manufacturing unit set-up at Bawal, 
Haryana; Sanand, Gujarat and Bidadi, 

Karnataka. Set-up R&D centre in Pune, 
Maharashtra 2011

The Company received the Total Productive 
Maintenance (TPM) award from Japan 

Institute of Plant Maintenance (JIPM) 2015

Further expansion at Sanand, Gujarat unit 2017

Lumax Industries Private Limited 
established after taking over the business of 

partnership firm Globe Auto Industries 1981

Equity participation of Stanley, Japan. 
Manufacturing unit established in 
Aurangabad, Maharashtra1994
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Customer Portfolio

Two-Wheeler Four-Wheeler

Tractor/FESExports

Commercial Vehicle
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Business Model

Understanding Customers’ 
Needs
A deep understanding of our 
customer's specifications and the 
ability to design and engineer 
products to meet these specific 
needs is a non-negotiable attribute 
for success in our business. Guided 
by our deep domain expertise and 
experience of over 70 years, we are 
able to deliver the right products to 
global OEMs for their vehicles.

Invest in Product 
Development
Unerring commitment to product 
development - both of the existing 
range and of new products - is crucial 
as a supplier to the automotive 
industry, which is always driving new 
designs and technology. Supported 
by our two in-house R&D centres 
and one overseas design centre in 
Taiwan, we are ahead of the curve in 
developing the perfect automotive 
lighting solution. Our investments 
in new product development, R&D, 
enables us to stay at the forefront of 
technology and develop products that 
meet our customers’ evolving needs.

Passion to Excel at Meeting 
Customers’ Needs
At the heart of our business model 
is the constant endeavour of 
meeting customers' needs. Starting 
from understanding their specific 
requirements to manufacturing 
world-class products through 
advanced processes and robust 
supply chain, we believe that we can 
create sustainable business value, 
only when we create enhanced value 
for our customers. 

06 Lumax Industries Limited



Strong Supply Chain
Ensuring an efficient and reliable 
supply chain is critical to providing 
the levels of quality and service 
our customers expect. Keeping 
this in perspective, we have laid 
strong emphasis in selecting the 
right suppliers for our raw material 
procurement. Not only does this 
ensure uninterrupted supply of quality 
inputs but also ensures a smoother 
ride through lower operational 
costs and risk, and most importantly 
increases our speed to market. 

Leveraging Technology
To stay relevant and demonstrate 
efficiencies in business operations, 
embracing technology is undisputable, 
especially when serving the ever-
evolving automobile industry. We 
recognised that long before, when 
almost three decades ago we entered 
into a Technical Assistance Agreement 
with Stanley Electric Co. Ltd., Japan, 
a world leader in vehicle lighting and 
illumination products for automobiles. 
Today, through this collaboration 
and by embedding cutting-edge 
technical solutions at our facilities, 
we are pioneers in bringing advanced 
automotive lighting solutions to the 
market.

Strong Customer Relations
In a business like ours, there is an 
imperative need to keep abreast of 
customer feedback, new technologies, 
new trends, etc. Through well-defined 
processes which regularly evaluate 
customer expectations, response and 
satisfaction for our products, we are 
able to develop strong relations with 
our customers. This high degree of 
customer understanding enables us 
to foster long-term relationship and 
provide access to new customers.
Our reduced response time through 
process efficiency is another vital 
reason why we are able to maintain 
our competitive edge in this dynamic 
industry.

State-of-the-art 
Manufacturing
We are continually investing in our 
capabilities and capacities to improve 
our manufacturing performance for 
our customers. Our ten state-of-the-art 
manufacturing facilities located across 
six states in India are in compliance 
with internationally recognised 
benchmarks. These facilities are  
well-equipped with latest international 
machinery and equipment for testing 
(with the latest engineering software) 
and simulation facilities, enabling us 
to deliver on our promise of quality 
products.
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When Passion to Excel 
Meets Performance

Product-wise sales financial year 2016-17
(` 1,299 Crores)

Segment-wise sales financial year 2016-17
(` 1,299 Crores)

23% 7%

70%

24% 5%

71%

Front Lighting rear Lighting Others

Passenger Vehicles Commercial vehicles 2-wheelers
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Passion to Excel by  
Adopting Advanced Technology

Fast replacing the traditional 
incandescent and halogen lamps, 
LED lighting is gathering momentum 
the world over. Not only are LED 
lights more energy-efficient, they are 
also far more durable. Their higher 

The technological advancement and increasing integration 
of lighting products into vehicle styling is providing 
a great opportunity to Indian manufacturers and this 
scenario shall drive the future of automotive lighting. 
We are well equipped and ahead of the curve as we have 
already embraced and embedded the latest technology in 
automotive lighting.

energy efficiency translates into 
lower fuel consumption. LED light 
sources have a much longer lifetime 
that can outlast that of the vehicle. 
They also offer an unprecedented 
level of design versatility that is 

essential for manufacturers, allowing 
them to differentiate their vehicles 
from the competition. Further, the 
manufacturing processes are getting 
more streamlined with the increased 
demand and economies of scale. 

The automotive industry has 
always been a sector of swift 
changes triggered by technological 
advancements and changing 
consumer preferences. Today, in 
the field of automotive lighting, the 
industry is witnessing a steady shift 
towards LED-based systems from 
conventional lighting. The reasons 
are many and significant.

10 Lumax Industries Limited



Aligned to the advantages of LEDs vs Halogen Bulbs, the automotive 
industry is witnessing  the  future models of HeadLamps being 
replaced with either Projector HeadLamp or LED

Aligned to the advantages of LEDs 
vs Halogen Bulbs, the automotive 
industry is witnessing the future 
models of Headlamps being replaced 
with either Projector Headlamp or 
LED. Tail or Rear Lamps and interior 
lighting are also being developed by 
using LEDs.

The Company is well-positioned 
to capitalise on the evolving 
market opportunities. Through our 
partnership with Stanley, Japan, the 
only global auto lighting company 
to manufacture LED worldwide, we 
are at a vantage point in bringing 
to the market lamps developed by 
using LED technology. To reinforce 
our competitive edge, we depute 
our engineers every year at Stanley, 
Japan for enhancing their technical 
know-how and expertise. 

Our strengths in rapid prototype 
development find their roots in 
our dedicated technology centre 
at Pune. Providing the highest 
level of technology to our non-
Japanese customers, engineers at 
this centre benchmark processes 
to international standards and 
undertake designing, prototyping 
and product development. This 
indigenous operation by the 
Company introduces the latest 
technology to India and enables 
OEMs to optimise costs and get 
faster delivery of products. 

Lighting flexibility
LED automotive lighting will 
enable automakers to greatly 
improve night-time visibility as 
well as reduce glare for drivers of 
oncoming vehicles. LEDs through 
their adaptive lighting systems 
also increase illumination in areas 
that would otherwise be dark 
under traditional lighting systems.

Efficiency
LEDs are energy-efficient lighting, 
which reduce the load on the 
engine and this translates into 
lower fuel consumption. While 
a typical halogen headlight uses 
55 watts of power to produce 350 
lumens of light, an LED-headlight 
system uses only about 17 watts 
to produce far more light of 600 
lumens.

Durability
LED lights are extremely durable. 
With proper care, LEDs usually 
outlive the lifetime of the vehicle.

Design flexibility
A lot of attention is being given 
to aesthetics while deciding on 
the automotive to be purchased. 
Stylish exteriors and interiors are 
extremely important. With the 
growing emphasis on attractive 
lighting within the vehicle, the 
demand for LEDs is on the rise, 
thanks to their warm light, small 
size, and availability in different 
shapes to match the requirements 
of different automobile models. 
Also, the lighting content within 
a vehicle, especially in a car, is 
increasing.
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Passion to Excel by Creating  
a Stronger Organisation

Powered by the goal to be the 
preferred solution provider to our 
customers, we are committed to 
delivering quality product first time 
right, at the optimum cost. Aligned to 
this, through our ongoing initiatives, 
we continue to drive cost savings and 
operational improvements, make 
our assets work more efficiently 
and effectively and build our core 
competency.

Stronger through  
a strong team 
Attracting, retaining and developing 
talent is the key to transforming 
the Company into a world-class 
organisation. 

To sustain and enhance employee 
motivation and commitment towards 
quality excellence and productivity, a 
Quality Control Circle (QCC) was set-
up. Currently, 56% of our workforce 
is participating in this programme. 
Seven teams participated at the 
Quality Circle Forum of India (QCFI) 
and all the teams qualified for the 
international competition to be held 
later this year. 

In our Bawal plant, we have set-up 
a leaning & training centre, named 
‘Gurukul’ for the shop floor inductees 
and workforce. Currently, 25% of 
our workforce has undertaken the 
training and the results have shown 
that those trained at the ‘Gurukul’ 
are better performing with respect 
to regularity, understanding of 
processes, behaviour and conduct. 

To build a passionate and engaged 
team, several programmes and 
events are held throughout the year. 

Stronger through supplier 
rationalisation
With raw material and process cost 
accounting for almost 70% of total 
costs, controlling supplier costs 
is vital. During the year, we have 
been successful in consolidating 
purchase volumes to fewer suppliers 
across the Group. By aggregating 
purchasing volumes, we have been 
able to procure raw materials at 
reduced costs through economies 
of scale. Besides, through constant 
engagement, we have built positive 
relations with our suppliers, which 
alleviate the problems of a supply 
shortfall, disputes, unfavourable 
terms & conditions, etc.

Stronger through 
meaningful supplier 
engagement
To strengthen the foundation of 
our supplier relationships, supplier 
conferences are held on annual basis 
wherein key long-term suppliers are 
invited. Customer representatives 
are also invited to the conference 

We are committed to excel not just in the products we 
make, but also in the various processes used across the 
organisation with an aim to make the Company a smarter, 
stronger and sustainable organisation.

12 Lumax Industries Limited



so that they can get a ringside view 
of the technologies the Company 
is planning to embed across its 
processes. Future prospects, 
industry developments, challenges 
and expectations are discussed 
which enables a systematic approach 
to collaboration and cost reduction. 
The two-way communication is 
further given a fillip with suppliers, 
where an opportunity of a one-
to-one interaction with the senior 
management is provided. Both open 
and written feedback is shared by the 
suppliers. Leveraging our suppliers’ 
strong pulse of the market and 
industry, a SWOT analysis of the 
Company is done by the suppliers. 
These insights enable us to gauge 
the perception of Lumax as a brand 
and the areas that need to be worked 
upon. Finally, outstanding suppliers 
are recognised by the management 
for their commitment to quality, 
service, cost and delivery. This 
recognition programme creates 
stronger partnerships.

Stronger through sharp 
supplier performance focus
In order to ensure quality 
maintenance and enhancement, we 
have in place a centralised Supplier 
Quality Assurance Cell (SQAC). The 
primary responsibility of SQAC is to 
audit and evaluate the performance 
of vendors and suppliers in 
relation to quality, costs, internal 
process development, growth, etc. 
Assessments are also carried out 
at the vendor’s factory to ensure 
delivery of high-quality product to 
our customers.

Stronger through capacity 
and capability expansion
In view of the credible growth 
estimates of the automotive sector, 
demand for LED automotive lighting 
is poised for strong growth over the 
next two to three years. To make 
the most of this opportunity, we will 
be commencing production at our 
facility in Sanand, Gujarat, where the 
requisite machinery and equipment is 
being installed. The reinforcement of 
production capacity and capabilities 
will enable us to go full throttle and 
drive higher revenues. 

Stronger through a culture 
of safety
Promoting a culture of safety is 
another priority and it is gratifying to 
see our safety record that during the 
last three years, no major incident of 
fire, accident or breakdown occurred 
at our plant sites. Regular regional 
safety meetings, which are also 
attended by Plant head, Safety head 
and HR head, are held wherein safety 
audit findings are monitored. 
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Passion to Excel Endorsed by  
Awards

Best supplier award received 
from TAFE

Won Bronze Award for Excellence in Technology - 
Large Category from ACMA

Supplier Business Capability Award received from 
Mahindra & Mahindra Limited

Award received for Quality improvement from 
Maruti Suzuki India Limited

14 Lumax Industries Limited



corporate social 
responsibility

Lumax Charitable Foundation, 
has been working with schools 
catering to the needs of the low-
income groups and communities. 
The foundation has envisioned to 
upgrade and improve the quality 
of Education and Infrastructure at 
schools so as to provide holistic 
education. Infrastructure support 
through constructing classrooms, 
water sanitation facilities, providing 
smart classes & e-learning 
opportunities. To further strengthen 
the education programmes, the 
foundation has undertaken capacity 
building for the teachers on teaching 
methodologies.

In continuation with its endeavour 
to provide good health to the 
underprivileged, vision and eyesight 
was the direct extension of our 
business, therefore we decided to 
partner with ICare to help improve 
the vision of the underprivileged 
in rural areas who are affected by 
Cataract. Further, we have partnered 
with Jehangir hospital to generate 
awareness and provide medical 
support for juvenile diabetes for the 
underprivileged children. Health 
check-up for the children in schools 
where the foundation is engaged is 
also provided regularly. Meanwhile, 
the foundation, through Akshaypatra 
also provides free nutritious mid-day 
meals to children in Government 
schools.

The Lumax Charitable Foundation, is the CSR arm of 
the group, the foundation has been leading a few social 
initiatives over the years spanning Health, Education, Girl 
child empowerment, and life enrichment programmes.
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Management Message

Dear Shareholders,

The global economy has thrown up a new set of 
challenges during the Financial Year 2016-17, however, the 
Indian economy continues to strengthen, notwithstanding 
the temporary slowdown in business activities due 
to the surprise demonetisation in November 2016. 
The Government’s strong intent and focus towards 
digitalising the economy, financial inclusion, infrastructure 
development, enhancing ease of doing business and 
reducing the share of the parallel cash economy is 
expected to usher in a new era of economic growth. 
The expected rollout of the Goods and Services Tax later 
this year, which initially may lead to a dip in growth and 
revenues due to teething troubles, is expected to raise 
India’s GDP growth rate.

The automotive sector, often 
regarded as the bellwether of 
economic growth, witnessed 
satisfactory performance during the 
year under review. With the two-
wheeler segment predominantly 
driven by demand from the rural 
market, the improved performance 
of the agriculture sector on the back 
of good monsoon helped to revive 
demand. The four-wheeler segment 
also showed traction with car sales 
in financial year 2016-17 increasing 
despite demonetisation move. The 
sector still has considerable potential 
for achieving even higher figures of 
growth in the coming years. India’s 
low per capita vehicle ownership 
across segments vis-à-vis advanced 
and major developing economies, 
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rise of the middle-class leading to 
increased availability of income 
for more discretionary spending, 
favourable demographic profile and 
the Government’s continued thrust 
to infrastructure development for 
improving connectivity and to its 
flagship programme ‘Make in India’, 
all provide an exciting backdrop for 
growth of the sector and the ancillary 
industries.

While there is no ambiguity on 
the growth potential of the Indian 
automotive sector, it is also certain 
that new technologies and trends 
will provide a new dimension to the 
nature of demand. Growing focus 
towards a greener and sustainable 
world is fuelling the demand for 
energy-efficient transportation. The 
automotive lighting industry, is seeing 
a steady shift towards the use of 
LED lamps - a lighting option, which 
is energy-efficient, gives vehicle a 
premium look and instant recognition 
on the road, even in low light 
conditions. As a leading company in 
the automotive lighting industry with 
the latest technology and expertise 
to manufacture LED lamps, we are 
confident that we are positioned to 
make the most of these opportunities.

Your Company is steered by the vision 
of becoming the globally-preferred 
supplier for automotive lighting 
solutions

During financial year 2016-17, your 
company’s profitability grew by 21% 
as compared to previous year despite 
marginal increase in turnover of 
about 4%. This became possible due 
to our concerted focus on reducing 
raw material cost and sharp focus on 
quality. Your company’s debts have 
reduced considerably as reflected 
in our improved debt equity ratio 
of 0.05. Also, the improved credit 
rating of A1+ is further proof of 
your company’s strengthened 
financial stability. Driven by the goal 
of enhancing shareholder value, 
we are pleased to share that your 
company’s market capitalisation has 
crossed `1300 crores during the year 
under review.

Your Company is steered by the 
vision of becoming the globally 
preferred supplier for automotive 
lighting solutions. With our vision 
etched out, we are investing in 
infrastructure, technology, product 
development, processes and of 
course, in human capital. We are 
revamping and augmenting our 
existing facility at Sanand to cater 
to the requirements of leading 
automotive manufacturers. For 
improving our speed-to-market, we 

are strengthening our design office 
in Taiwan and relationship with 
suppliers. Leveraging our sustained 
relationship with Stanley Electric 
Co., Ltd., Japan, global leader in the 
automotive lighting sector, we are 
confident that we will gain access 
to advanced technologies that few 
select players in the country have.

Going forward, we will continue to 
keep an eagle eye on quality through 
innovative and proactive quality 
control systems. Our zero defect & 
zero effect initiative will reinforce the 
confidence of our customers for our 
products and drive greater business 
opportunities. Our people across 
all locations have consistently risen 
to the challenges of this dynamic 
industry and have delivered beyond 
expectations driven by their passion 
to excel.

Last but not the least, we would 
like to thank all our employees, 
partners, vendors and shareholders 
for their continued support and our 
customers for their confidence in our 
products. We are ready for the road 
ahead and to build greater value for 
all our stakeholders.

Regards,

D.K. Jain	 Deepak Jain	 Anmol Jain
Chairman	 Managing Director	 Joint Managing Director
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1.	 Mr. Rattan Kapur 
	 (Independent Director)

2.	 Mr. Rajeev Kapoor  
	 (Independent Director)

3.	 Mr. M.C. Gupta 
	 (Independent Director)

4.	 Mr. Koji Sawada  
	 (Executive Director) 

5.	 Mr. Anmol Jain  
	 (Joint Managing Director)

6.	 Mr. D.K. Jain  
	 (Non-Executive Chairman) 

From left to right

Board of Directors 
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7.	 Mr. Deepak Jain 
	 (Managing Director)

8.	 Mr. A.P. Gandhi  
	 (Independent Director)

9.	 Mr. Eiichi Hirooka 
	 (Senior Executive Director)

10.	� Mr. Dhiraj Dhar Gupta 
(Independent Director)

11.	� Mrs. Pallavi Dinodia Gupta 
(Independent Director)

12.	� Mr. Toru Tanabe  
(Non-Executive Director)
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Our Business Strengths

Financial Stability
Consistent financial performance 
with improving return ratios

Enduring Partnerships
Over 3 decades of collaboration 
with global auto lighting 
company Stanley, Japan

Proximity to Customers
Facilities located at key 
automotive hubs in the country 
which provide a logistical 
advantage

Robust Product Portfolio 
Among the few select companies 
to have a comprehensive range 
of lighting solutions

Technical Expertise
Cutting-edge processes 
at facilities which enable 
flawless execution

Infrastructural 
Excellence 
10 state-of-the-art manufacturing 
facilities, 2 R&D centres & 
1 overseas design centre

20 Lumax Industries Limited
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To The Members,

Your Directors are pleased to present the 36th Annual Report on the business and operations together with Audited 
Balance Sheet and Profit & Loss Account of your Company for the year ended March 31, 2017.

Financial Results

Your Company’s performance during the year as compared with the previous year is summarized below:

(` in Million)
Particulars 2016-17 2015-16
Net Sales 12,997.81 12,551.75
EBITDA 1059.95 929.27
Financial Expenses 114.10 134.38
Depreciation/Amortisation/Impairment Loss 404.25 378.99
Profit Before Tax (PBT) 541.60 415.90
Provision for Tax 89.76 42.16
Profit After Tax (PAT) 451.84 373.74
Balance of Profit brought forward 554.42 353.20
Balance Available for Appropriation 1006.26 726.94
Appropriations
Dividend - 112.17
Corporate Dividend Tax - 22.84
Transfer to General Reserve 54.20 37.50
Balance Carried to Balance Sheet 952.06 554.43

1006.26 726.94
Dividend (%) 145 120
Basic and Diluted Earning Per Share (EPS) (`) 48.34 39.98

DIVIDEND

The Company continues to deliver progressive returns 
to the Shareholders. The Board of Directors are pleased 
to recommend a Dividend of 145% (` 14.50/- per Equity 
Share) for the Financial Year 2016-17 (` 12/- per Equity 
Share in the previous year). The total amount of Dividend 
proposed to be distributed, aggregates to ` 163.13 Million 
(Including Dividend Tax). The Dividend payout ratio comes 
to 36.10%. 

A sum of ` 54.20 Million has been transferred to the 
General Reserve of the Company. This reaffirms the 
inherent financial strength of your Company.

BUSINESS PERFORMANCE

The auto sector, which saw a revival last year after two 
years of turbulence, is set to continue the momentum this 
year with demand picking up across all segments. The 
positive sentiment is driven primarily by the rural and 
semi-urban demand for two-wheelers and cars, driven on 
the back of good monsoons. Another boost up will be the 
7th pay commission that will infuse around ` 1.02 trillion 

of disposable income of over 1 crore employees. Another 
reason is the aggressive play by the cab aggregators who 
are expanding their operations extensively. 

The Indian Auto Component industry is also expected 
to grow by 8-10% in Financial Year 2017-18, based on 
higher localisation by Original Equipment Manufacturers 
(OEM), higher component content per vehicle, and rising 
exports from India. The Indian auto-components industry 
is expected to register a turnover of US$ 100 billion by 
2020 backed by strong exports ranging between US$ 80- 
US$ 100 billion by 2026, from the current US$ 11.2 billion.
(Source: Icra Reports)

During the year under review, the Indian Automobile 
Industry recorded a production growth of 5.41% as 
compared to 2.58% of the corresponding period last year. 
The industry produced around 25.31 Million vehicles of 
which share of two wheelers were 79%, passenger vehicles- 
15%, three wheelers- 3% and commercial vehicles- 3%.

In this backdrop, during the year under review, your 
Company recorded a sales turnover of ` 12997.81 Million 

Directors’ Report
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as against ` 12551.75 Million in the corresponding year 
registering a growth of 3.56%. The profit for the year after 
tax recorded at ` 451.84 Million as compared to ` 373.74 
Million during the previous year registering an excellent 
growth of 20.90%.

CAPACITY EXPANSION / MODERNISATION OF 
FACILITIES

During the year under review, the Company has 
made investment to the tune of ` 654 million towards  
up-gradation of its Research and Development facilities, 
modernisation of its existing manufacturing facilities 
including Bawal, Dharuhera and Chakan plants.

The Company has set-up its first international state-of-
the-art design centre in Taiwan in May, 2016, as a strategic 
move to expand its presence across the globe and 
strengthen the synergies of cost and technology. 

During the year under review, the Company has also 
approved investment of about ` 120 crores to its existing 
plant at Sanand, which was set-up in the year 2011 for 
supplies to Tata Nano and which was non-operational due 
to subdued volumes of Tata Nano. The plant is expected 
to commence operations from November 2017, for 
supplies to Suzuki Motors, Gujarat and will also cater to 
Tata Motors Limited and Honda Motorcycle and Scooter 
India Limited, at a later stage. The investment will spread 
over a period of 2 years i.e. Financial Year 2017-18 and 
Financial  Year 2018-19.

A detailed discussion on the business performance and 
future outlook is provided in the Chapter on Management 
Discussion & Analysis Report (MDA).

TECHNOLOGY AND QUALITY

Your Company continues to excel in design, development 
and new product launches, in line with its strategy 
towards delivering competitive advantage to the customer 
and to meet its business objectives. The management 
ensures that the engineers of your Company are fully 
aligned with the organisation’s strategy and towards this 
end, the Company has started to celebrate September 15th 
as Innovation day, as a tribute to the greatest engineer 
Bharat Ratna, Late Shri M. Visvesvaraya. This step 
will ensure building in-house engineering and design 
capability.

In order to continuously create value for our customers in 
today’s intense competitive environment, your Company 
has launched Zero Defect & Zero Effect initiative to deliver 
products, first time right to its customers. This will help in 
improvement in quality, reduction in rejection cost and 
thereby optimise cost structures across your Company. 

DIRECTORS & KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

In accordance with the Articles of Association of the Company 
and the Companies Act, 2013, Mr. Eiichi Hirooka, Director is 
retiring by rotation at the ensuing Annual General Meeting 
and being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment.

The tenure of Mr. Eiichi Hirooka, Senior Executive Director 
is expiring on July 26, 2017. The Board recommends to 
reappoint Mr. Eiichi Hirooka as Senior Executive Director 
for a further period of 3 years w.e.f. July 27, 2017, subject 
to the approval of the members in the ensuing Annual 
General Meeting.

Stanley Electric Co., Ltd. (Stanley) had withdrawn the 
nomination of Mr. Norihisa Sato, Executive Director from 
the Board of the Company. Consequently, Mr. Norihisa 
Sato resigned from the Board of the Company w.e.f. 
08-08-2016. The Board of Directors places on record its 
appreciation for the valuable services rendered by Mr. 
Norihisa Sato during his tenure as Executive Director.

Stanley nominated Mr. Koji Sawada in place of Mr. 
Norihisa Sato. Pursuant to his nomination, the Board of 
Directors have appointed Mr. Koji Sawada, as additional 
Director as well as Executive Director w.e.f. 09-08-2016, 
for the time being, on the Board of the Company at their 
meeting held on August 8, 2016, subject to his regular 
appointment in the Annual General Meeting.

Mr. Koji Sawada, aged 54 years, is a Graduate from Osaka 
Institute of Technology, Japan, having over 30 years of 
rich experience in Quality Control and Lamp assembly. He 
joined Stanley, Japan in 1986 and has abundant experience 
and knowledge in the automobile lighting field.

In accordance with the Articles of Association of the 
Company and the Companies Act, 2013, Mr. Koji Sawada 
holds office till the ensuing Annual General Meeting. 
The Company has received Notice in respect of Mr. 
Koji Sawada from a member under Section 160 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 proposing his appointment as 
Director of the Company liable to retire by rotation.

Mr. Gursaran Singh, Independent Director on the Board 
of the Company since January, 2003 has resigned from 
the position of Independent Director due to his other 
commitments w.e.f. April 19, 2017. His resignation was 
accepted and taken on record by the board in its meeting 
held on May 13, 2017.

The Board places on record its sincere appreciation 
and gratitude for the valuable guidance received from  
Mr. Gursaran Singh during his tenure as Independent 
Director on the board of your Company.
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The Board has appointed Mr. Rajeev Kapoor as an 
additional director, w.e.f. May 13, 2017 designated as an 
Independent Director, for the time being, on the Board 
of the Company at their meeting held on May 13, 2017, 
subject to his regular appointment in the Annual General 
Meeting. 

Mr. Rajeev Kapoor, aged 65 years, is a B.E. (Mechanical) 
(Hons.) from NIT, Kurukshetra, having extensive experience 
of over 40 years in Automotive, Engineering and FMCG, 
Corporations with specific skills in General Management, 
Marketing / Brand Management, Performance Analysis, 
HRD, Business Development, Innovation and Change 
Management. He is credited with Launch of Fiat and 
Copart Businesses from Greenfield stage and developing 
them to sustainable level. 

In accordance with the Articles of Association of the 
Company and the Companies Act, 2013, Mr. Rajeev 
Kapoor holds office till the ensuing Annual General 
Meeting. The Company has received a Notice in respect 
of Mr. Rajeev Kapoor, from a member under Section 160 
of the Companies Act, 2013 proposing his appointment as 
Director of the Company for five consecutive years w.e.f. 
May 13, 2017, not liable to retire by rotation.

Your Directors recommend the re-appointment/ 
appointment of the above Directors at the ensuing Annual 
General Meeting.

The Independent Directors have given declarations that 
they meet the criteria of independence as laid down under 
Section 149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013.

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN

In accordance with the requirement of Section 92 of 
Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 12 of the Companies 
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014, the 
extract of the annual return in Form MGT 9 is annexed as 
Annexure - A.

INVESTOR EDUCATION AND PROTECTION FUND (IEPF)

Pursuant to the applicable provisions of the Companies 
Act, 2013, read with the IEPF Authority (Accounting, 
Audit, Transfer and Refund) Rules, 2016 (‘the Rules’), 
all unpaid or unclaimed dividends are required to be 
transferred by the Company to the IEPF established by 
the Central Government, after the completion of seven 
years. Further, according to the Rules, the shares in 
respect of which dividend has not been paid or claimed 
by the shareholders for seven consecutive years or more 
shall also be transferred to the demat account of IEPF 
authority. Accordingly, all such shares shall be transferred 
as per the requirement of IEPF Rules. The details of such 

shares is available on the Company’s website http://www.
lumaxindustries.com/investor/iepf-investor-details.html.

NUMBER OF BOARD MEETINGS

The Board of Directors met 5 (Five) times in the Financial 
year 2016-17. The details of the board meetings and the 
attendance of the Directors are provided in the Corporate 
Governance Report.

DIRECTORS RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

As required under Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 
2013 the Directors state:

(i)	 that in the preparation of the Annual Accounts for the 
Financial Year ended March 31, 2017, the applicable 
Accounting Standards have been followed along with 
proper explanation relating to material departures in 
the Auditor Report and Notes to Accounts;

(ii)	 that the Directors have selected such accounting 
policies and applied them consistently and made 
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and 
prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state 
of affairs of the company at the end of the financial 
year and of the profit and loss of the company for 
that period;

(iii)	 that the Directors have taken proper and sufficient 
care for the maintenance of adequate accounting 
records in accordance with the provisions of the 
Companies Act, 2013 for safeguarding the assets of 
the company and for preventing and detecting fraud 
and other irregularities;

(iv)	 that the Directors have prepared the Annual Accounts 
on a “going concern” basis.

(v)	 that the Directors had laid down internal financial 
controls to be followed by the company and that 
such internal financial controls are adequate and 
were operating effectively.

(vi)	 that the Directors had devised proper systems 
to ensure compliance with the provisions of all 
applicable laws and that such systems were adequate 
and operating effectively.

REMUNERATION POLICY

The Company follows a policy on remuneration of 
Directors and Senior Management Employees. The 
Policy is approved by the Nomination & Remuneration 
Committee and the Board. The Remuneration Policy is 
stated in the Corporate Governance Report.
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FIXED DEPOSITS

During the year under review, the Company has not 
accepted any Deposit under Section 73 of the Companies 
Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Acceptance of 
Deposits) Rules, 2014.

AUDITORS

STATUTORY AUDITORS

The members in their meeting held on August 22, 2014 
had appointed M/s S.R. Batliboi & Co. LLP, Chartered 
Accountants, as Statutory Auditors of the Company for a 
period of 3 consecutive years in terms of the provisions 
of Section 139 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the 
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, to hold 
the office of auditors till the conclusion of the fourth 
consecutive Annual General Meeting of the Company to 
be held in the year 2017. The tenure of M/s S.R. Batliboi & 
Co. LLP, Chartered Accountants, as Statutory Auditors is 
expiring in the ensuing Annual General Meeting proposed 
to be held on July 22, 2017.

In terms of the provisions of Section 139 of Companies Act, 
2013 and the Rules made thereunder regarding mandatory 
retirement of statutory auditors, your Directors proposed 
to appoint BSR & Associates LLP, Chartered Accountants 
(Firm Registration No. 116231W/ W-100024) as the 
Statutory auditors of the Company. BSR & Associates LLP 
will hold office of auditors for a period of 5 consecutive 
years from the conclusion of 36th Annual General Meeting 
of the Company scheduled to be held on July 22, 2017, 
till the conclusion of the 41st Annual General Meeting 
of the Company to be held in the year 2022, subject to 
the approval of shareholders of the Company. They have 
given their consent to act as Auditors of the Company and 
have further confirmed that their appointment, if made, 
would be in conformity with the provisions of Section 141 
of the Companies Act, 2013. The Audit Committee in its 
meeting held on May 13, 2017 has also recommended 
the appointment of BSR & Associates LLP, as Statutory 
Auditors of the Company. Your Directors also recommend 
for appointment in the ensuing Annual General Meeting.

During the year, all the recommendations of the Audit 
Committee were accepted by the Board. Hence, there is 
no need for disclosure of the same in this Report.

COST AUDITORS

The Board has re-appointed M/s Jitender, Navneet & Co. 
as the Cost Auditors of the Company in accordance with 
Section 148 and other applicable provisions, if any, of the 
Companies Act, 2013, for the audit of the cost accounts 
of the Company for the Financial Year 2016-17. The Cost 
Audit Report for the Financial Year 2015-16 has been filed 

with the Central Government within the stipulated time 
on September 6, 2016.

SECRETARIAL AUDITOR

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 of the Companies 
Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Appointment and 
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, the 
Company has appointed Mr. Maneesh Gupta, Practising 
Company Secretary as the Secretarial Auditor of the 
Company to undertake the Secretarial Audit for the 
financial year 2016-17. The Report of the Secretarial Audit 
is annexed herewith as Annexure - B.

PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES AND 
INVESTMENTS

The particulars of loans, guarantees and investments 
covered under the provisions of Section 186 of Companies 
Act, 2013 are given in the Notes to financial statements.

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The company has consolidated the Financial Statements 
of its Associate Company SL Lumax Limited with its 
financials in accordance with the provisions of Companies 
Act, 2013. The Consolidated Financial Statements of the 
Company are prepared in accordance with the Accounting 
Standards, Companies Act, 2013, SEBI (Listing Obligations 
and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations 2015 and all 
other applicable laws for the time being in force and the 
same forms part of this Annual Report.

The Audited Financial Statements, including the 
Consolidated Financial Statements and related 
information are available on the website of the Company 
i.e. www.lumaxindustries.com. These documents shall 
also be available for inspection by any shareholder at the 
registered office of the Company.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTION AND POLICY 

In accordance with the provisions of the Companies 
Act, 2013 and SEBI (Listing Obligations And Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 the company has 
formulated a policy on Related Party Transactions, which 
is available on the Company’s website at http://www.
lumaxindustries.com/pdf/related-party-transaction-policy.
pdf. All Related Party Transactions, which are foreseen 
and repetitive in nature, are placed before the Audit 
Committee on a yearly basis for obtaining prior omnibus 
approval of the committee. The transactions entered into 
pursuant to the omnibus approval are placed before the 
Audit Committee for review and approval. All Related Party 
Transactions are subjected to independent review by a 
reputed accounting firm to establish compliance with the 
provisions of Companies Act, 2013 and Listing Regulations.
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All related party transactions entered during the financial 
year were in the ordinary course of business and on arm’s 
length basis. There have been no material related party 
transactions undertaken by the Company during the year. 
Accordingly, no transactions are being reported in Form 
No. AOC-2 in terms of Section 134 of the Companies Act, 
2013.

VIGIL MECHANISM

The Company has established a vigil mechanism 
named Whistle Blower Policy, for directors, employees 
and business associates to report to the management, 
concerns about unethical behaviour, actual or suspected 
fraud or violation of the Company’s code of conduct 
or ethics policy, in accordance with the provisions of 
Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI (Listing Obligations 
And Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. The 
mechanism provides for adequate safeguards against 
unfair treatment of whistle blower who wishes to 
raise a concern and also provides for direct access to 
the Chairman of the Audit committee in appropriate/ 
exceptional cases. The Whistle Blower Policy is uploaded 
on the website of the Company.

MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS

No other material changes and commitments affecting 
the Financial position of the Company have occurred 
between April 1, 2017 and the date on which this Report 
has been signed.

INFORMATION ON CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, 
TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, FOREIGN EXCHANGE 
EARNINGS AND OUTGO

Disclosure of information regarding Conservation of 
Energy, Research & Development, Technology Absorption 
and Foreign Exchange Earning and Outgo etc. under 
Section 134(3)(m) of the Companies Act, 2013 read 
with the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, is annexed 
separately as Annexure – C.

RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY

The Company has adopted an enterprise risk 
management policy and established a risk management 
framework with an objective of timely identification, 
mitigation and control of the risks, which may threaten 
the existence of the Company, in accordance with 
the provisions of Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI 
(Listing Obligations And Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015. The Company has also constituted a 
Risk Management Committee to review the risk trend, 
exposure, potential impact and their mitigation plans 
and periodically the key risks are also discussed at the 
Audit Committee.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR) POLICY 
AND INITIATIVES

Your Company’s Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) 
initiative is about achieving organisation excellence 
in ways that honor ethical values and respect people 
and communities. The Company’s CSR programmes 
are being implemented through its CSR arm Lumax 
Charitable Foundation. The key focus areas of your 
Company are education, promotion of girl chid and the 
healthcare, for disadvantaged section of the society. 
During the year, your Company’s spend on CSR activities 
is 1.80% of the average net profits during the three 
immediately preceding financial years. Your Company 
endeavoured to meet the budgeted expenditure in its 
CSR activities and has committed to incur expenditure 
for CSR initiatives, however, discontinuance of support 
to one school has resulted into a shortfall as such in the 
CSR expenditure as compared to the stipulated 2% of 
the average net profits of the last three financial years. 
The Company is committed to spend 2% of the average 
net profits of the last three financial years on CSR 
activities and it shall ensure compliance of the same 
going forward.

The Company has constituted a CSR Committee of the 
Board and also developed & implemented a CSR Policy 
in accordance with the provisions of Companies Act, 
2013. The Committee monitors and oversees various 
CSR initiatives and activities of the Company. The details 
of CSR Policy is available on the Company’s website 
http://www.lumaxindustries.com/pdf/CSR-policy.pdf. The 
annual report on Corporate Social Responsibility activities 
is annexed herewith as Annexure-D.

PERFORMANCE EVALUATION OF BOARD, COMMITTEE 
AND DIRECTORS

During the year, the evaluation of the Board as a whole, 
committees and all the Directors conducted, as per the 
internally designed evaluation process approved by the 
Board. The evaluation tested key areas of the Board’s 
work including strategy, business performance, risk 
and governance processes. The evaluation considers 
the balance of skills, experience, independence and 
knowledge of the management and the Board, its overall 
diversity, and analysis of the Board and its Directors’ 
functioning. The feedback of the evaluation exercise was 
collated and presented to the Board.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS REPORT

Pursuant to the provisions of Regulation 34 of the SEBI 
(Listing Obligations And Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015, Management Discussion & Analysis 
Report is annexed as part of this report separately as 
Annexure – E.
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SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE 
REGULATORS OR COURTS 

There are no significant and material orders passed by 
the Regulators / Courts / Tribunals, which would impact 
the going concern status of the Company and its future 
operations.

INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROL

The Company has a comprehensive internal control 
system in place for ensuring reliability of financial 
reporting, orderly and efficient conduct of business, 
compliance with policies, procedures, safeguarding of 
assets and economical and efficient use of resources. 
Appropriate review and control mechanisms are built in 
place to ensure that such control systems are adequate 
and operate effectively.

The monitoring and reporting of finance systems is 
supported by a web-based system SAP, which helps in 
obtaining accurate and complete accounting records and 
timely preparation of reliable financial disclosures.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The report on Corporate Governance together with 
the Auditor’s Certificate regarding the Compliance of 
conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated in 
SEBI (Listing Obligations And Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015 is annexed and forms part of this Annual 
Report as Annexure – F.

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES

Information on Particulars of Employees as required under 
Section 197 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 
5(1) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of 
Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 forms an integral part 

of this report as Annexure-G. The information required 
pursuant to Section 197 of the Companies Act, 2013 read 
with Rules 5(2) and 5(3) of the Companies (Appointment 
and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 
in respect of employees of your Company is available 
for inspection by the members at the registered office 
of the Company during business hours on working days 
up to the date of ensuing Annual General Meeting. If any 
member is interested in obtaining a copy thereof, such 
member may write to the Company Secretary, whereupon 
a copy would be sent.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT 

It is our belief that we have a leadership team with 
the right experience and skills to take us into the next 
decade of growth. We continue to build our skills and 
add appropriate resources, which will help the company 
deliver solid results in the years to come. We want to 
recognize employees at all levels for their efforts, which 
has allowed us to successfully navigate a tough economy 
and continue to achieve growth. Your Directors wish to 
place on record their sincere thanks to all its highly valued 
customers, its Technical and Financial Collaborator- 
M/s Stanley Electric Co., Ltd., Japan, all other business 
partners, all the shareholders, financial institutions, 
banks, vendors and various Government agencies for 
their continued support and patronage. 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

 				    D.K. Jain
Place : Gurugram	 Chairman
Dated : May 13, 2017� DIN: 00085848
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Annexure - A

Form No. MGT -9
EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN

as on the financial year ended on 31st March, 2017
[(Pursuant to section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 12(1) of the Companies

(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014)]

I.	 Registration and other Details:

i)	 CIN L74899DL1981PLC012804

ii)	 Registration Date 10-12-1981

iii)	 Name of the Company Lumax Industries Limited

iv)	 Category/sub-category of the Company Public listed Company having Share Capital

v)	� Address of the Registered office and contact 
details

B-85-86, Mayapuri Industrial Area, 
Phase-1, New Delhi – 110064
Ph. +91 11 28116990

vi)	 Whether listed company Yes

viii)	� Name, Address and Contact details of Registrar 
and Transfer Agent, if any

M/s Karvy Computershare Pvt. Ltd.
Karvy Selenium Tower B,
Plot 31-32, Gachibowli, Financial District,  
Nanakramguda, Hyderabad – 500 032.
E-mail id : einward.ris@karvy.com

II.	 Principal Business Activities of The Company

	 All the business activities contributing 10% or more of the total turnover of the company shall be stated:-

Sl. 
No.

Name and Description of main Products/Services NIC Code of the 
Product/ Service

% total turnover 
of the Company

1 Automotive Lamp 2740 91.16%

III.	 Particulars of Holding, Subsidiary and Associate Companies

Sl. 
No.

Name and Address of the 
Company

CIN/GLN Holding/Subsidiary/
Associate

% of shares 
held

Applicable
Section

1 SL Lumax Limited
G-15, Sipcot Industrial 
Park, Irungattukottai,
Sriperumbudur-602 105

U34300TN1997PLC048136 Associate 21.28% 2(6)

IV.	 Share Holding Pattern (Equity Share Capital Breakup as percentage of Total Equity) 

	 i)	 Category-wise Share Holding

Category of Shareholders No. of Shares held at the beginning of 
the year (As on April 01, 2016)

No. of Shares held at the end of the 
year (As on March 31, 2017)

% Change 
during 

the year Demat Physical Total % of  Total 
Shares 

Demat Physical Total % of  Total 
Shares 

A.	 Promoters 

	 (1)	 Indian 

		  a)	� Individual/ HUF 2427555 - 2427555 25.97 2425997 - 2425997 25.95 (0.02)*

		  b)	 Central Govt - - - - - - - - -
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Category of Shareholders No. of Shares held at the beginning of 
the year (As on April 01, 2016)

No. of Shares held at the end of the 
year (As on March 31, 2017)

% Change 
during 

the year Demat Physical Total % of  Total 
Shares 

Demat Physical Total % of  Total 
Shares 

		  c)	 State Govt (s) - - - - - - - - -

		  d)	 Bodies Corp. 944233 - 944233 10.10 942253 - 942253 10.08 (0.02)*

		  e)	 Banks / FI - - - - - - - - -

		  f)	 Any Other…. - - - - - - - - -

	 Sub-total (A) (1) 3371788 - 3371788 36.07 3368250 - 3368250 36.03 (0.04)*

	 (2)	 Foreign 

		  a)	 NRIs - Individuals - - - - - - - - -

		  b)	 Other – Individuals - - - - - - - - -

		  c)	 Bodies Corp. 3505399 - 3505399 37.50 3505399 - 3505399 37.50 -

		  d)	 Banks / FI - - - - - - - - -

		  e)	 Any Other…. - - - - - - - - -

	 Sub-total (A) (2): 3505399 - 3505399 37.50 3505399 - 3505399 37.50 -

	� Total shareholding of Promoter 
(A) = (A)(1)+(A)(2) 

6877187 - 6877187 73.57 6873649 - 6873649 73.53 (0.04)*

B.	 Public Shareholding 
	 1.	 Institutions 

		  a)	 Mutual Funds - 1740 1740 0.02 118417 1740 120157 1.29 1.27

		  b)	 Banks / FI 5840 270 6110 0.06 2362 270 2632 0.03 (0.03)

		  c)	 Central Govt - - - - - - - - -

		  d)	 State Govt(s) - - - - - - - - -

		  e)	 Venture Capital Funds - - - - - - - - -

		  f)	� Insurance Companies - - - - - - - - -

		  g)	� Foreign Institutional 
Investors /Foreign 
Portfolio Investors

 155003                                                                                                                                 200 155203 1.66 205348 200 205548 2.20 0.54

		  h)	� Foreign Venture Capital 
Funds 

- - - - - - - - -

		  i)	 Others (specify) - - - - - - - - -

	 Sub-total (B)(1): 160843 2210 163053 1.74 326127 2210 328337 3.52 1.77

	 2.	 Non-Institutions 

		  a)	 Bodies Corp. 

			   i)	 Indian 688135 1899 690034 7.38 411253 1874 413127 4.42 (2.96)

			   ii)	 Overseas - 80 80 - - 80 80 - -

		  b)	 Individuals - - - - - - - - -

			   i)	� Individual 
shareholders holding 
nominal share capital 
upto ` 1 lakh 

1199552 266825 1466377 15.69 1088294 257262 1345556 14.39 (1.30)

			   ii)	� Individual 
shareholders holding 
nominal share capital 
in excess of ` 1 lakh 

122407 - 122407 1.31 348717 - 348717 3.73 2.42

		  c)	 Others (specify) 

			   i	 NRI Reptriation - 150 150 0 - 150 150 0 -

			   ii.	 Non resident indians 24494 90 24584 0.26 35797 90 35887 0.39 0.13

			   iii.	 Clearing Members 3860 - 3860 0.04 2229 - 2229 0.02 (0.02)

		  Sub-total (B)(2): 2038448 269044 2307492 24.68 1886290 259456 2145746 22.95 (1.73)

		�  Total Public Shareholding 
(B)=(B)(1)+ (B)(2)

2199291 271254 2470545 26.43 2212417 261666 2474083 26.47 0.04*

C.	� Shares held by Custodian for 
GDRs & ADRs 

- - - - - - - - -

	 Grand Total (A+B+C) 9076478 271254 9347732 100 9086066 261666 9347732 100 -

		      *�Changes in shareholding of Indian Promoters is due to the Reclassification of Mr. Umesh Kumar Jain, Lumax Automotive Systems Ltd & 
Vardhman Agencies Pvt. Ltd from Promoter Category to Public Category.
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	 (ii)	 Shareholding of Promoters

Sl 
No. 

Shareholder’s Name Shareholding at the beginning of 
the year (As on April 01, 2016)

Share holding at the end of the 
year (As on March 31, 2017)

% change 
in share 
holding 

during the 
year 

No. of 
Shares 

% of total 
Shares 
of the 

company 

%of Shares 
Pledged / 

encumbered 
to total 
shares 

No. of 
Shares 

% of total 
Shares 
of the 

company 

%of Shares 
Pledged / 

encumbered 
to total 
shares 

1 Stanley Electric Co. Ltd 3343381 35.77 - 3343381 35.77 - -

2 Mr. Dhanesh Kumar Jain 1938025 20.73 - 1938025 20.73 - -

3 Lumax Auto Technologies 
Limited

525000 5.62 - 525000 5.62 - -

4 Lumax Finance Pvt. Ltd 417253 4.46 - 417253 4.46 - -

5 Thai Stanley Electric Public 
Co.Ltd

162018 1.73 - 162018 1.73 - -

6 Mrs. Usha Jain 144483 1.55 - 144483 1.55 - -

7 Mr.Deepak Jain 136711 1.46 - 136711 1.46 - -

8 Mr. Dhanesh Kumar Jain 
(HUF)

124970 1.34 - 124970 1.34 - -

9 Mr. Anmol Jain 53778 0.58 - 53778 0.58 - -

10 Mr. Dhanesh Kumar Jain 
jointly with Mrs.Usha Jain

14230 0.15 - 14230 0.15 - -

11 Vardhman Agencies Pvt. Ltd* 900 0.01 - 0 0 - (0.01)

12 Mrs. Usha Jain jointly with 
Mr. D.K. Jain

6200 0.07 - 6200 0.07 - -

13 Mr. Deepak Jain Jointly with 
Mrs. Usha Jain

6000 0.06 - 6000 0.06 - -

14 Mr. Anmol Jain Jointly with 
Mrs. Usha Jain

1600 0.02 - 1600 0.02 - -

15 Mr. Umesh Kumar Jain* 1558 0.02 - 0 0 - (0.02)

16 Lumax Automotive Systems 
Ltd*

1080 0.01 - 0 0 - (0.01)

Total 6877187 73.57 0.00 6873649 73.53 - (0.04)*

		  * �Pursuant to Regulation 31A of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, the company has 
received the approval of the National Stock Exchange of India Limited and BSE Limited for reclassification of Mr. Umesh 
Kumar Jain, Lumax Automotive Systems Limited and Vardhman Agencies Private Limited from “Promoter category “to 
“Public category”. 

	 (iii)	� Change in Promoters’ Shareholding: During the year, erstwhile Promoter Category shareholders viz Mr. 
Umesh Kumar Jain, Lumax Automotive Systems Limited and Vardhman Agencies Private Limited have been 
re-classified from “Promoter category “to “Public category” vide approval of National Stock of India Limited 
and BSE Limited dated November 16, 2016 and November 09, 2016 respectively.

	 (iv)	 �Shareholding Pattern of top ten shareholders (Other than Directors, Promoters and Holders of GDRs and ADRs):

Sr. 
No.

Name of the  
Shareholder

Shareholding at the beginning 
of the year (April 01, 2016)

Cumulative Shareholding during 
the Financial Year 2016-17

No. of 
shares

% of total share 
capital of the 

Company

No. of 
Shares

% of total share 
Capital of the 

Company
1 Param Capital Research Pvt.Ltd

At the beginning of the year 200000 2.14
Increase/Decrease in Shareholding 
during the year

0 0

At the end of the year 200000 2.14
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Sr. 
No.

Name of the  
Shareholder

Shareholding at the beginning 
of the year (April 01, 2016)

Cumulative Shareholding during 
the Financial Year 2016-17

No. of 
shares

% of total share 
capital of the 

Company

No. of 
Shares

% of total share 
Capital of the 

Company
2 Fidelity Northstar Fund

At the beginning of the year 150000 1.60
Increase/Decrease in Shareholding 
during the year

0 0

At the end of the year 150000 1.60
3 Vanaja Sundar Iyer*

At the beginning of the year 0 0
Increase/Decrease in Shareholding 
during the year
30/09/2016 38630 0.41 38630 0.41
07/10/2016 747 0.01 39377 0.42
14/10/2016 2432 0.03 41809 0.45
21/10/2016 8191 0.09 50000 0.53
28/10/2016 28 0.00 50028 0.54
13/01/2017 5432 0.06 55460 0.59
20/01/2017 52402 0.56 107862 1.15
10/02/2017 17960 0.19 125822 1.35
03/03/2017 1347 0.01 127169 1.36
24/03/2017 2500 0.03 129669 1.39
At the end of the year 129669 1.39

4 L and T Mutual Fund Trustee Ltd-L and T monthly Income Plan*
At the beginning of the year 0 0
Increase/Decrease in the shareholding 
during the year
28/10/2016 1930 0.02 1930 0.02
13/01/2017 21563 0.23 23493 0.25
20/01/2017 45437 0.49 68930 0.74
27/01/2017 3120 0.03 72050 0.77
24/02/2017 19570 0.21 91620 0.98
03/03/2017 16016 0.17 107636 1.15
24/03/2017 10781 0.12 118417 1.27
At the end of the year 118417 1.27

5 Navinchandra Shah*
At the beginning of the year 0 0
Increase/Decrease in the shareholding 
during the year
17/02/2017 61400 0.66 61400 0.66
At the end of the year 61400 0.66

6 Kriner Services Pvt. Ltd
At the beginning of the year 58270 0.62
Increase/Decrease in the shareholding 
during the year
20/05/2016 (2500) (0.03) 55770 0.60
10/06/2016 (3084) (0.03) 52686 0.56
17/06/2016 (6392) (0.07) 46294 0.50
24/06/2016 (500) (0.01) 45794 0.49
15/07/2016 (900) (0.01) 44894 0.48
29/07/2016 (5000) (0.05) 39894 0.43
05/08/2016 (1000) (0.01) 38894 0.42
30/09/2016 (600) (0.01) 38294 0.41
28/10/2016 (2000) (0.02) 36294 0.39
13/01/2017 (1500) (0.02) 34794 0.37
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Sr. 
No.

Name of the  
Shareholder

Shareholding at the beginning 
of the year (April 01, 2016)

Cumulative Shareholding during 
the Financial Year 2016-17

No. of 
shares

% of total share 
capital of the 

Company

No. of 
Shares

% of total share 
Capital of the 

Company
27/01/2017 (400) 0.00 34394 0.37
03/02/2017 (600) (0.01) 33794 0.36
10/02/2017 (668) (0.01) 33126 0.35
24/02/2017 (500) (0.01) 32626 0.35
03/03/2017 (6000) (0.06) 26626 0.28
At the end of the year 26626 0.28

7 Neepa K Shah*
At the beginning of the year 0 0
Increase/Decrease in the shareholding 
during the year
17/02/2017 20560 0.22 20560 0.22
At the end of the year 20560 0.22

8 Prabhas Dhanuka
At the beginning of the year 20000 0.21
Increase/Decrease in the shareholding 
during the year 0

 
0

At the end of the year 20000 0.21
9 D Srimathi*

At the beginning of the year 7999 0.09
Increase/Decrease in the shareholding 
during the year
08/04/2016 1096 0.01 9095 0.10
15/04/2016 501 0.01 9596 0.10
22/07/2016 (6677) (0.07) 2919 0.03
29/07/2016 (500) (0.01) 2419 0.03
16/09/2016 7745 0.08 10164 0.11
23/09/2016 6039 0.06 16203 0.17
11/11/2016 1539 0.02 17742 0.19
25/11/2016 800 0.01 18542 0.20
At the end of the year 18542 0.20

10 Premier Investment Fund Ltd*
At the beginning of the year 0 0.0
Increase/Decrease in the shareholding 
during the year
30/06/2016 1650 0.02 1650 0.02
05/08/2016 10656 0.11 12306 0.13
12/08/2016 5000 0.05 17306 0.19
At the end of the year 17306 0.19

11 Rajasthan Global Securities Pvt. Ltd#
At the beginning of the year 57260 0.61
Increase/Decrease in the shareholding 
during the year
10/06/2016 (837) (0.01) 56423 0.60
17/06/2016 (11311) (0.12) 45112 0.48
24/06/2016 (45112) (0.48) 0 0
30/06/2016 33325 (0.36) 33325 0.36
08/07/2016 (4266) (0.05) 29059 0.31
15/07/2016 (15000) (0.16) 14059 0.15
29/07/2016 (5186) (0.06) 8873 0.09
05/08/2016 (4584) (0.05) 4289 0.05
02/09/2016 (3112) (0.03) 1177 0.01
09/09/2016 (1177) (0.01) 0 0
28/10/2016 117 0.00 117 0
At the end of the year 117 0.0
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Sr. 
No.

Name of the  
Shareholder

Shareholding at the beginning 
of the year (April 01, 2016)

Cumulative Shareholding during 
the Financial Year 2016-17

No. of 
shares

% of total share 
capital of the 

Company

No. of 
Shares

% of total share 
Capital of the 

Company
12 Camel Foods Pvt Ltd#

At the beginning of the year 36866 0.39

Increase/Decrease in the shareholding 
during the year

13/05/2016 (12217) (0.13) 24649 0.26

20/05/2016 (11607) (0.12) 13042 0.14

17/06/2016 (3542) (0.04) 9500 0.10

30/06/2016 (9500) (0.10) 0 0.00

12/08/2016 1212 0.01 1212 0.01

16/09/2016 (326) 0.00 886 0.01

30/09/2016 (886) (0.01) 0.00 0.00

At the end of the year 0.00 0.00

13 CSP Infrastructure Private Ltd#

At the beginning of the year 30444 0.33

Increase/Decrease in the  
shareholding during the year

20/05/2016 (164) 0.00 30280 0.32

27/05/2016 (6495) (0.07) 23785 0.25

03/06/2016 (23785) (0.25) 0 0.00

At the end of the year 0 0.00

14 Lok Prakashan Ltd#

At the beginning of the year 20000 0.21

Increase/Decrease in the shareholding 
during the year

25/11/2016 (20000) 0.21 0 0.00

At the end of the year 0 0.00

15 Girish Kumar Sharda#

At the beginning of the year 16368 0.18

Increase/Decrease in the shareholding 
during the year

22/04/2016 135 0.00 16503 0.18

28/10/2016 (250) 0.00 16253 0.17

13/01/2017 (250) 0.00 16003 0.17

At the end of the year 16003 0.17

16 Beri Mercurio Private Limited#

At the beginning of the year 15880 0.17

Increase/Decrease in the shareholding 
during the year

27/05/2016 (9418) (0.10) 6462 0.07

03/06/2016 (6462) (0.07) 0 0.00

At the end of the year 0 0.00

		�  *Not in the list of top 10 shareholders as on April 01, 2016. The same have been reflected above since the shareholder was 

one of the Top shareholders as on March 31, 2017.

		�  #Ceased to be in the list of top 10 shareholders as on March 31, 2017. The same is reflected above since the shareholder was 

one of the top 10 shareholder as on April 01, 2016.
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	 (v)	 Shareholding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel:

Sr. 
No.

Shareholding at the beginning of 
the year (April 01, 2016)

Cumulative Shareholding during the 
Financial Year 2016-17

No. of 
shares

% of total share capital 
of the Company

No. of 
Shares

% of total share Capital 
of the Company

A.	 Name of Directors and KMP
1. Mr. D.K.Jain

At the beginning of the year 1952255 20.88
Increase/Decrease in the shareholding 
during the year

- -

At the end of the year 1952255 20.88
2.	 Mr. Deepak Jain

At the beginning of the year 142711 1.53
Increase/Decrease in the shareholding 
during the year

- -

At the end of the year 142711 1.53
3. Mr. Anmol Jain

At the beginning of the year 55378 0.59
Increase/Decrease in the shareholding 
during the year

- -

At the end of the year 55378 0.59
B.	 Name of the Key Managerial personnel
4. Mr. Shruti Kant Rustagi

At the beginning of the year 402 0.00
Increase/Decrease in the shareholding 
during the year
13/1/2017 (200) 0.00 202 0.00
27/1/2017 (150) 0.00 52 0.0
At the end of the year 52 0.00

	� Note: Mr. Eiichi Hirooka, Mr. Koji Sawada, Mr. Toru Tanabe, Mr. A.P. Gandhi, Mr. Rattan Kapur, Mr. Gursaran Singh, Mr. M.C. 
Gupta, Mr. Dhiraj Dhar Gupta, Mrs. Pallavi Dinodia Gupta and Mr. Shwetank Tiwari, Company Secretary did not hold any 
shares of the Company during the Financial year 2016-17.

V.	 Indebtedness 

	 Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding/accrued but not due for payment
(` in Lacs)

Secured Loans
excluding deposits

Unsecured
Loans

Deposits Total
Indebtedness

	� Indebtedness at the beginning of the financial year:
	 i)	 Principal Amount 
	 ii)	 Interest due but not paid 
	 iii)	 Interest accrued but not due

8757.01
56.03

-

3973.62
-
-

-
-
-

12730.63
56.03

-
	 Total ( i + ii +iii ) 8813.04 3973.62 - 12786.66

	� Change in Indebtedness during the financial year:
	 •	 Addition 
	 •	 Reduction 

1311.62
(7785.42)

14000.00
(11039.33)

-
-

15311.62
(18824.75)

	 Net Change (6473.80)   2960.67 - (3513.13)
	 Indebtedness at the end of the financial year:
	 i)	 Principal Amount 
	 ii)	 Interest due but not paid 
	 iii)	 Interest accrued but not due 

2305.96
33.28

-

6934.29
-
-

-
-
-

9240.25
33.28

-
	 Total ( i + ii + iii) 2339.24 6934.29 - 9272.53
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VI.	 Remuneration of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel 

	 A.	 Remuneration to Managing Director, Whole-time Directors and/or Manager: 
` in Lacs

Sl. 
No. 

Particulars of Remuneration Name of MD/WTD/ Manager Total

Mr. Deepak 
Jain

Mr. Anmol 
Jain

Mr. Eiichi 
Hirooka

Mr. Norihisa 
Sato (upto 

08.08.2016)

Mr. Koji 
Sawada (w.e.f. 

09.08.2016)

1. Gross salary 
(a)	� Salary as per provisions 

contained in section 
17(1) of the Income-tax 
Act, 1961 

(b)	� Value of perquisites u/s 
17(2) Income-tax Act, 
1961 

(c)	� Profits in lieu of salary 
under section 17(3) of 
Income-tax Act, 1961 

109.64

15.08

-

46.80

2.51

-

20.54

0.76

-

7.35

0.13

-

8.01

0.26

-

192.34

18.74

-

2. Stock Option - - - - - -

3. Sweat Equity - - - - - -

4. Commission 
- as % of profit 
- others, specify… 

149.31 119.38 - - - 268.69

5. Others, please specify - - - - - -

Total (A) 274.03 168.69 21.30 7.48 8.27 479.77

Ceiling as per the Act (Being 10% of the Net Profits of the Company as calculated under Section 198 of the 
Companies Act, 2013)

	 B.	 Remuneration to other directors:
` in Lacs

Sl. 
No. 

Particulars of Remuneration Name of Directors Total 

Mr. D.K. 
Jain

Mr. A.P. 
Gandhi

Mr. M.C. 
Gupta

Mr. 
Rattan 
Kapur

Mr. 
Gursaran 

Singh

Mr. D.D. 
Gupta

Mrs. Pallavi 
Dinodia 

Gupta

1. Independent Directors 
•	 �Fee for attending board / 

committee meetings 
•	 Commission 
•	 �Others, please specify 

-

-
-

2.80

-
-

3.00

-
-

2.80

-
-

0.40

-
-

1.40

-
-

2.00

-
-

12.40*

-
-

Total (1) - 2.80 3.00 2.80 0.40 1.40 2.00 12.40

2. Other Non-Executive Directors 
•	 �Fee for attending board / 

committee meetings 
•	 Commission 
•	 �Others, please specify 

-

59.69
-

-

-
-

-

-
-

-

-
-

-

-
-

-

-
-

-

-
-

-

59.69
-

Total (2) 59.69 - - - - - - -

Total (B) = (1+2) 59.69 2.80 3.00 2.80 0.40 1.40 2.00 72.09

*�Total Managerial 
Remuneration 

- - - - - - - 551.86

Overall Ceiling as per the Act (Being 11% of the Net Profits of the Company as calculated under Section 198 of the Com-
panies Act, 2013)

		  *Total remuneration to Managing Director, Whole Time Director and Other Director (being the total of A and B)
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	 C.	 Remuneration to Key Managerial Personnel other than Md/Manager/Wtd
` in Lacs

Sl. 
No. 

Particulars of Remuneration Key Managerial Personnel

Company Secretary  
(Mr. Shwetank Tiwari)

Chief Financial Officer
(Mr. Shruti Kant Rustagi)

Total 

1 Gross salary 
(a)	� Salary as per provisions contained in section 

17(1) of the Income-tax Act, 1961 
(b)	� Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) Income-tax Act, 

1961 
(c)	� Profits in lieu of salary under section 17(3) 

Income-tax Act, 1961 

14.24

0.65

-

48.94

3.47

-

63.18

4.12

-

2 Stock Option - - -

3 Sweat Equity - - -

4 Commission 
- as % of profit 
- Others, specify… 

-
-

-
-

-
-

5 Others, please specify - - -

Total 14.89 52.41 67.30

VII.	� Penalties / Punishment/ Compounding of Offences:

	 Against the Company, Directors and other Officers in Default under the Companies Act, 2013: NONE
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To, 
The Members, 
Lumax Industries Limited 
B-85-86, Mayapuri Industrial Area,  
Phase-I, New Delhi-110064

We were appointed by the Board of Directors of Lumax 
Industries Limited (hereinafter called the Company) to 
conduct Secretarial Audit for the financial year of the 
Company ended March 31, 2017.

We have conducted the Secretarial Audit of the compliance 
of applicable statutory provisions and the adherence to 
good corporate practices by the Company. Secretarial 
Audit was conducted in a manner that provided us with 
a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/ 
statutory compliances and expressing our opinion 
thereon.

Management’s Responsibility for Secretarial Compliances

The Company’s management is responsible for 
preparation and maintenance of secretarial records and 
for devising proper systems to ensure compliance with 
the provisions of applicable laws and regulations

Auditors Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these 
secretarial records, standards and procedures followed 
by the Company with respect to secretarial compliances

We believe that audit evidence and information obtained 
from the Company’s management is adequate and 
appropriate for us to provide a basis for our opinion.

We have followed the audit practices and processes as 
were appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance about 
the correctness of the contents of the secretarial records. 
The verification was done on test basis to ensure that 
correct facts are reflected in secretarial records. We 
believe that the processes and practices, we followed 
provide a reasonable basis for our opinion. 

The secretarial audit report is neither an assurance to 
the future viability of the company nor of the efficacy or 
effectiveness with which the management has conducted 
the affairs of the Company.

Opinion

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, 
forms and returns filed and other records maintained by 
the Company for the financial year ended on March 31, 
2017 according to the provisions of: 

(i)	� The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules 
made thereunder;

(ii)	� The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 
(‘SCRA’) and the rules made thereunder;

(iii)	� The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and 
Bye-laws framed thereunder;

(iv)	� Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and 
the rules and regulations made thereunder to the 
extent of Foreign Direct Investment and External 
Commercial Borrowings;

(v)	� The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed 
under the Securities and Exchange Board of India 
Act, 1992 (‘SEBI Act’):-

	 (a)	� The Securities and Exchange Board of India 
(Substantial Acquisition of Shares and 
Takeovers) Regulations, 2011,

	 (b)	� The Securities and Exchange Board of India 
(Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 
2015;

	 (c)	� The Securities and Exchange Board of India 
(Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2009 – Not applicable as the 
Company has not issued any fresh equity during 
the year under review;

	 (d)	� The Securities and Exchange Board of India 
(Employee Stock Option Scheme and Employee 
Stock Purchase Scheme) Guidelines, 1999 – Not 
applicable as the Company has not granted any 
employee stock option;

	 (e)	� The Securities and Exchange Board of 
India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) 
Regulations, 2008 – Not applicable as the 
Company has not issued any debt securities 
during the year under review;

Annexure - B

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2017

[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 
No.9 of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration Personnel) Rules, 2014]
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	 (f)	� The Securities and Exchange Board of India 
(Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents) 
Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act 
and dealing with client – Not applicable;

	 (g)	� The Securities and Exchange Board of India 
(Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2009 – 
Not applicable as the Company has not delisted 
its shares from any stock exchange during the 
year under review; and

	 (h)	� The Securities and Exchange Board of India 
(Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 1998 – Not 
applicable as the Company has not bought back 
its securities during the year under review;

�We have also examined compliance with the applicable 
clauses of the following:

(i)	� Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of 
Company Secretaries of India.

(ii)	� SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Require-
ments) Regulation, 2015.

Based on our verification of the Company’s books, papers, 
minutes books, forms and returns filed and other records 
maintained by the Company and also the information 
provided by the Company, its officers, agents and authorised 
representatives during the conduct of Secretarial Audit, we 
hereby report that in our opinion, the Company has, during 
the financial year ended March 31, 2017, complied with 
the aforesaid laws, material compliances are listed in the 
Annexure attached to this report.

Based on information received and records maintained, 
we further report that:

1.	� The Board of Directors of the Company is duly 
constituted with proper balance of Executive 
Directors, Non-Executive Directors and Independent 
Directors. The changes in the composition of the 
Board of Directors that took place during the financial 
year under review were carried out in compliance 
with the provisions of the Act.

2.	� Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule 
the Board Meetings. Agenda and detailed notes on 
agenda were sent at least seven days in advance, 
and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further 
information and clarifications on the agenda items 
before the meeting and for meaningful participation 
at the meeting.

3.	� The Company has proper Board processes.

Based on the compliances mechanism established by the 
Company and on the basis of the Compliance Certificate(s) 
issued by the Company Secretary and taken on records 
by the Board of Directors at their meeting(s), we are of the 
opinion that the management has:

a)	� adequate systems and processes in the company 
commensurate with the size and operations of the 
company to monitor and ensure compliance with 
applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.

b)	� Complied with the following laws applicable to the 
Company:

	 (i)	 Factories Act, 1948

	 (ii)	 Standing Order Act, 1946

	 (iii)	� The Industries (Development and Regulation) 
Act, 1951 

	 (iv)	� The Contract Labour (Regulation and Abolition) 
Act, 1970, 

	 (v)	� The Child Labour (Prohibition and Regulation) Act, 
1986, 

	 (vi)	� The Workmen’s Compensation Act, 1923, 

	 (vii)	 The Environment (Protection) Act, 1986, 

� Maneesh Gupta
Place : New Delhi� FCS No. 4982
Date : May 11, 2017� C P No. 2945

ANNEXURE TO SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT

In our opinion and to the best of our information and 
according to the examinations carried out by us and 
explanations furnished and representations made to 
us by the Company, its officers and agents, we report 
that the Company has during the financial year under 
review, complied with the provisions of the Acts, Rules 
made thereunder and the Memorandum and Articles of 
Association of the Company with regard to:

1.	� Maintenance of various statutory registers and 
documents and making necessary entries therein:

2.	� Contracts, Common Seal and Registered Office and 
publication of name of the Company;

3.	� Forms, returns, documents and resolutions required 
to be filed with the Registrar of Companies, Regional 
Director, Central Government, Company Law Board 
or such other authorities;

4.	� Service of documents by the Company on its 
Members, Directors, Stock Exchanges, Auditors and 
Registrar of Companies;
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5.	 �Constitution of the Board of Directors, Audit Committee, 
Nomination and Remuneration Committee, Share 
Transfer/ Stakeholder Relationship Committee, 
Corporate Social Responsibility Committee;

6.	� Appointment, re-appointment and Retirement of 
Directors including Managing Director and Executive 
Directors and payment of remuneration to them;

7.	� Disclosure of interest and concerns in contracts and 
arrangements, shareholdings and directorships in 
other companies and interest in other entities by 
Directors;

8.	� Disclosure requirements in respect to their eligibility 
for appointment, declaration of their independence, 
compliance with code of conduct for Directors and 
Senior Management Personnel;

9.	� Established a policy on related party transactions. All 
transactions with related parties were in the ordinary 
course of business and on arms-length basis and 
were placed before the Audit Committee periodically;

10.	� Established a vigil mechanism and providing to 
complainants, if any, unhindered access to the 
Chairman of the Audit Committee.

11.	� Constituted the Corporate Social Responsibility 
Committee formulating and adopting Corporate 
Social Responsibility Policy indicating the activities 
to be undertaken by the Company;

12.	� Appointment of persons as Key Managerial 
Personnel;

13.	� Appointment and remuneration of Statutory Auditor 
and Cost Auditor;

14.	� Appointment of Internal Auditor;

15.	� Notice of meetings of the Board and Committee 
thereof;

16.	� Minutes of meetings of the Board and Committees 
thereof including passing of resolutions by 
circulations;

17.	� Notice convening annual general meeting held on 
August 8, 2016 and holding of the meeting on that 
date;

18.	� Minutes of General meeting;

19.	� Approval of members, Board of Directors, Committee 
of Directors and government authorities, wherever 
required;

20.	� Form of balance sheet as at March 31, 2016 as 
prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013;

21.	� Report of the Board of Directors for the financial year 
ended March 31, 2016;

22.	� Borrowings and registration of charges;

� Maneesh Gupta
Place : New Delhi� FCS No. 4982
Date : May 11, 2017� C P No. 2945
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A.	 CONSERVATION OF ENERGY

	� Though the Company does not come under the 
category of power intensive unit, adequate measures 
have been taken for energy conservation and thereby 
reducing energy cost.

	 (i)	 Steps taken for conservation of energy: 

		  a)	 Moulding Machine with Servo Motor: 

			�   The Company has further replaced 
Moulding Machine induction motor with 
Servo Motor in its Chakan, Dharuhera and 
Pant Nagar Plants in nine machines, thereby 
expecting to save electricity consumption 
approximately by 25% to 30%.

		  b)	 Air Compressor Optimisation:

			�   The Company has optimized air compressor 
pressure and Variable Frequency Drive 
setting in its Bawal Plant, thereby 
expecting to save electricity consumption 
approximately by 18%.

		  c)	� Monitoring of Specific Energy Consumption 
(SEC):

			�   The Company has started monitoring of 
Specific energy consumption in various 
machines in its Bawal Plant, thereby 
expecting to reduce energy consumption 
by 6%.

		  d)	 Power Factor improvement:

			�   The Company has improved Power Factor 
in its Dharuhera Plant from 0.984 to 0.989, 
thereby expecting to reduce its annual cost 
of power by 0.50%.

	 (ii)	� Steps taken by the Company for utilizing 
alternate sources of energy :

		�  The Company has initiated activity to implement 
Solar Power system with a target installed 
capacity of 1-1.5 MW for its different plants 
located in Haryana, Gujarat, Maharashtra 
and Karnataka, which will help in energy 
conservation and reduction of overall cost of 
energy.

		�  It is difficult to quantify the impact of individual 
energy reduction measures on the Cost of 

Production. The above measures of Energy 
conservation and reduction will reduce the 
overall cost of energy. 

	 (iii)	� The capital investment on energy conservation 
equipments :

		�  Your Company encourages capital investment 
in energy saving equipments, plants or 
machinery, and this year the Company has spent 
approximately ̀  20 Lacs towards replacement of 
Moulding Machine induction motor with Servo 
Motor.

(B)	 Technology absorption :

	 (i)	� The efforts made towards technology  
absorption: 

		  a.	� For the first time in house design and 
development of LED Head Lamp (Low, High 
& Position function in one reflector).

		  b.	� In house design and development of LED 
Tail Lamp for 2W in a remarkable time 
period. 

		  c.	� Design in challenging size to meet the 
optical requirement in 4W LED daytime 
running light (DRL).

		  d.	� Achievement in meeting the regulatory 
requirements with 12 Nos. of LEDs in 4W 
DRL function. 

		  e.	� In house design of sleek CHMSL with LED 
light source and length of  190 mm with 
combination of Fresnel and micro optics. 

		  f.	� In house design and development for 2W 
Tail Lamp with Light guide for Tail function 
and 6 Nos. LEDs for for stop function. 

		  g.	� First time LED Head Lamp for 2W. 

		  h.	� First time design of Tail Lamp of very small 
size with bulb, which appearance wise look 
like LED.

		  i.	� In house design of LED Tail Lamp for 4W.

		  j.	� In house design of LED Winker Lamp with 
very small size for 2W.

Annexure - C

Information as per Section 134(3)(m) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies (Accounts) Rules, 
2014 and forming part of Directors’ Report for the year ended March 31, 2017.
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	 (iii)	� in case of imported technology (imported during the last three years reckoned from the beginning 
of the financial year) :

a. Technology Imported Anti-Mist Coating 
(Anti Fog Coating)

Direct Metalizing BI-LED Projector

b. Year of Import 2014-2015 2014-2015 2015-2016
c. Whether the 

technology been fully 
absorbed

Absorbed in 4 wheeler 
head lamp 

Absorbed in 4 
wheeler head lamps 
and tail lamps.

Absorbed in 4 wheeler head 
lamps.

d. If not fully absorbed, 
areas where 
absorption has not 
taken place, and the 
reasons thereof

For future models, 
this technology will be 
introduced in front turn 
indicators and side mirror 
LED lamps.

Will be introduced in 
future models across 
4 wheeler head lamps 
& tail lamps and in 2 
wheeler head lamps.

For future models, this 
technology will be introduced 
in LED 4 wheeler Head 
Lamps.

	 (iv)	 Research and development (R & D) 

		�  Technology in the Auto industry is rapidly 
changing with ever evolving regulations on 
emission and safety, increasing industry 
responsibilities towards society and the need for 
moving towards alternate energy resources. To 
maintain and enhance its competitiveness, the 
Company is making significant investment in 
Research and Development (R&D), Technology 
Development and Innovation for achieving 
growth, business profitability and sustainability. 
The Company continues to enhance its R&D 
capability by creating Design and Development 
Cell with the support of its Technical Collaborator 
Stanley Electric. Co., Ltd, Japan to support new 
product development

		  1.	� Specific areas in which R & D carried out by 
the company. 

	 	 	 •	 �Designing of BI-LED Projector 
Headlamp for 4 Wheeler.

	 	 	 •	 �Designing of LED front position lamp 
for 4 Wheeler.

	 	 	 •	 �Designing and Proto developed for a new 
generation sleek 4 Wheeler Headlamp

	 	 	 •	 �Designing and development of LED 
Head Lamp & Tail lamp for 2 Wheeler

	 	 	 •	 �Designing and development of LED 
Light Front position for 2 Wheeler

	 (ii)	� the benefits derived like product improvement, 
cost reduction, product development or import 
substitution :

		  a.	� In line with company’s strategy to become 
self-reliant in design and development, 
engineering team continued to focus on 
strengthening in house manpower to bring 
the required skills for supporting design 
and development activities and as a result 
various products in 2W and 4W segments 
designed in house.

		  b.	� Stanley Electric Co., Ltd., Japan continues 
to provide extensive support in in-house 
design and development activities and 
under the leadership of Stanley’s two 
senior designers stationed at Company, the 
Company is now able to provide prompt 

technical solution to customers’ immediate 
needs.

		  c.	� Following the various activities of product 
and process maturation and potential 
failure analysis the company is enhancing 
its design and process capabilities to 
establish “Zero defect launch”.    

		  d.	� Strengthening project management 
function through implementation of global 
development standards with the support 
from Stanley Electric Co., Ltd., Japan 
has been initiated to strengthen in house 
product development system in line with 
increasing customer expectations for first 
time first right products. To achieve the 
above objective, the Company is sending 4 
designers to Stanley every year for training. 
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	 	 	 •	 �Designing and development for new 
generation Headlamp and Tail lamp for 
new styled 2 Wheeler

		  2.	� Benefits derived as a result of the above R&D 

	 	 	 •	 �Complete in house designing of LED 
headlamp, which reduces company’s 
dependency on Stanley. 

	 	 	 •	 �Strengthening in-house designing 
capabilities, in line with Company’s 
strategy to become self-reliant.

	 	 	 •	 �Thermal simulation done during 
design validation stages.

		  3.	 Future plan of action 

			�   Further enhancing the technology gained 
after working on BI-LED and LED based 
Lamps. Understanding the technology, 
especially for 4 wheelers using different 
HID sources for Low beam and High beam.

•	 Introduction of LED for License plate 
lamp.

•	 Introduction of LED Blinker 

•	 Introduction of head lamps with LED 
projector 

•	 Introduction of head lamps with dual 
beam LED functions

•	 Alignment with Stanley design 
procedures.

		  4.	� The expenditure incurred on research and 
Development:

(` in Million)
(i) Capital 41.49
(ii) Recurring 301.91

Total 343.40
(iii) Total R&D Expendi-

ture as a percentage 
of Total Turnover (%)

2.64

	 (C)	� The Foreign Exchange earned in terms of actual 
inflows during the year ` 268.58 million and 
the Foreign Exchange outgo during the year in 
terms of actual outflows is ` 1736.26 million. 

		�  Activities relating to exports; initiatives taken 
to increase exports; development of new 
export markets for products and services; and 
export plans ; 

		�  Your Company is continuously striving for 
growth in business in the export market. 
During the year under review, the following 
export development and promotion measures 
were taken:

		  -	� Securing new business with Audi AG for 
development of Q2 LED High Mounted 
Stop Lamp as a global single source.

		  -	� Discussions with Truck-Lite Europe for 
introduction of LED products as the 
replacement or upgrade version of their 
existing products.

		  -	� Discussions with Audi to increase the 
share of business in small lamps with LED 
applications.

		  -	� Sustaining the current business in small 
lamps with Nissan Europe.

		  -	� Sustaining the current business in Head 
Lamps and Tail Lamps with John Deere 
USA.

		  -	� Discussions with John Deere USA for 
introduction of LED tail lamps as the 
replacement of their existing running 
products.

		  -	� Continuous conversation with major OEMs 
in Central Europe and USA to introduce 
Lumax brand with the target of increasing 
our OEM Export in 2017.



42 Lumax Industries Limited

1.	� A brief outline of the Company’s CSR policy, including 
overview of projects or programmes proposed to be 
undertaken and a reference to the web-link to the 
CSR policy and projects or programmes.

	� The Company through its CSR initiatives is committed 
to enhance the social and economic development of 
communities and geographical areas, particularly in 
the vicinity of the plants location. This will include 
education, skill building for livelihood of people, 
health, and social welfare etc., particularly targeting 
at disadvantaged sections of society. CSR activities 
of the Company are carried out through Lumax 
Charitable Foundation.

	� The Company has framed a CSR Policy in compliance 
with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and 
the same is placed on the Company’s website and the 
web link for the same is http://www.lumaxindustries.
com/pdf/CSR-policy.pdf 

Annexure - D

CSR ANNUAL REPORT

2.	 The Composition of the CSR Committee.

S. No Name Category

1 Mr. M.C Gupta Chairman

2 Mr. A.P Gandhi Member

3 Mr. D K Jain Member

4 Mr. Deepak Jain Member

5 Mr. Anmol Jain Member

3.	� Average net profit of the Company for last three 
financial years : ` 1871.10 Lacs

4.	 Prescribed CSR Expenditure (two per cent of the 
amount as in item 3 above) 	 : ` 37.42 Lacs

5.	 Details of CSR spent during the financial year.

	 (a)	� Total amount spent for the financial year : 
` 33.62 Lacs

	 (b)	� Amount unspent, if any : ` 3.80 Lacs

(c)	� Manner in which the amount spent during the financial year is detailed below:
` in Lacs

Sl. No CSR Project 
or activity 
identified

Sector in 
which the 
project is 
covered

Projects or  
Programmes
1. �Local area or Other
2. �Specify the State and 

district where proj-
ects or programmes 
was undertaken

Amount 
outlay 
(budget) 
project 
or pro-
grammes 
wise

Amount spent 
on the projects 
or programmes
Sub heads:
1. �Direct ex-

penditure on 
projects or 
programmes.

2. Overheads

Cumulative 
expenditure 
upto to the 
reporting 
period.

Amount spent: Direct or 
through implementing 
agency

(1) (2) (3) (4) (5) (6) (7) (8)
1.

2.

Education 
Sponsorship/ 
Infrastructure 
support to 
School

Healthcare 
support to 
hospitals 
for under-
privileged 

a)  Education 
b)  Health
c)  Overheads

Manufacturing sites 
of the Company   

1. �Gurgaon, Haryana

2. �Dharuhera, 
Haryana

3. �Pune, Maharashtra

4. �Pantnagar, 
Uttarakhand

5. �Bangalore, 
Karnataka

a)  14.78
b)  11.50
c)  4.21

a)  14.78
b)  11.50
c)  4.21

30.49 1. �Spent through the 
CSR arm of the 
Company namely 
Lumax Charitable 
Foundation – ` 28.97 
Lacs.

2. �Spent directly by the 
Company - ` 1.52 Lacs

TOTAL - - 30.49 30.49 30.49 -

* �The CSR arm of the company has also spent ` 1.72 Lacs on education of employees’ children/ one time expenditure, which as per the 
Company is CSR. However, these expenses are not classifiable as CSR expenditure in terms of Companies Act, 2013 and Rules made 
thereunder and therefore the same are not included in the above details of CSR expenditure. Further, out of the funds contributed by the 
Company to Lumax Charitable Foundation (LCF) an amount of ` 1.41 Lacs remained unspent with LCF. 
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6.	� Reasons for not spending the 2% of the average net 
profit of the last three financial years.

	� The Company endeavored to meet the budgeted 
expenditure in its CSR activities and was committed 
to incur expenditure for CSR initiatives, however, 
discontinuance of support to one school has resulted 
into a shortfall in the CSR expenditure as compared 
to the stipulated 2% of the average net profits of the 
last three financial years. 

7.	� The CSR Committee confirms that the 
implementation and monitoring of the CSR Policy is 
in Compliance with the CSR objectives and Policy of 
the Company.

Deepak Jain	 M.C. Gupta
Managing Director	 Chairman-Csr Committee
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ECONOMIC OVERVIEW

Global Economy 

In 2016, the global economy is projected to witness 
its slowest growth since 2009 registering a growth of 
3.1% (3.2% in 2015) driven by market volatility, policy 
uncertainties and weak trade. Though, the growth among 
advanced economies was stronger than expected driven 
by reduced inventory drag and moderate recovery in 
manufacturing it was offset by unexpected slowdown 
among the emerging nations. Inspite of stronger market 
confidence during the second half of the year led by revival 
in the economic activities, the growth in consumption, 
trade, investments and productivity is still likely to remain 
at subpar levels. The USA, Euro area and key emerging 
nations (especially China and India) witnessed slower than 
expected growths leading to overall slowdown. Further, 
the key events of Mr. Donald Trump being appointed as 
the President of the USA and the UK’s decision to exit 
the European Union have the potential to impact global 
market sentiments.  

In 2016, the advanced economies were expected to 
grow by 1.6% compared to 2.1% in 2015. In USA, the low 
investments, dollar appreciation negatively impacting 
exports, potential policy uncertainties and declining 
energy spend dragged down growth to 1.6% compared 
to 2.6% in 2015. However, towards the end of the year 
activities rebounded with economy approaching full 
employment. Also, Mr. Donald Trump’s USA first 
approach, and focus on various reforms has the potential 
to further improve the country’s outlook. 

In the Euro area, output remained below potential, 
across a number of advanced economies, resulting in 
likely decline in growth from 2% in 2015 to 1.7%. Low 
demand and capital formation, weak investments, and 
high unemployment continue to be a major hindrance to 
growth in the region. In Japan, the weak external demand 
and corporate investments during H2 2016 slowed down 
growth to 0.9% compared to 1.2% in 2015.

Among the Emerging Market and Developing Economies, 
though the growth in 2016 remained at same level of 
2015 at 4.1%, the scenario across various economies 
remained diverse. In China, despite revival in activities 
since rebalancing, it was the weak private investments 
and declining productivity that impacted performance. 
However, save for the continued policy stimulus and 

strong real estate investments that the economy is 
expected to witness a growth of 6.7%. In Russia, the 
economy is slowly coming out of recession with firming 
oil prices. However, the scenario in Brazil, Turkey and 
Argentina remained bleak. 

The Brent  crude oil prices during 2016 averaged USD 
43.74, after undergoing significant correction during 2014 
and 2015. The oil prices are further expected to strengthen 
to USD 52.69 in 2017 and USD 55.61 in 2018 driven 
by OPEC and non-OPEC members decision to cut oil 
production. (Source: Energy Information Administration, 
EIA, the Guardian)

Outlook 

Going forward the global economic scenario is likely to 
improve, on the back of better manufacturing, reducing 
inventory drags, normalisation of conditions among 
advanced economies, and primarily the expectation 
of strengthening scenario among the EMDEs. Besides, 
the firming oil prices and stable interest rates are likely 
to strengthen financial market sentiments. During 2017 
and 2018, the global economic growth is likely to pick up 
to 3.4% and 3.6% respectively. (Source: IMF economic 
outlook, 2017)  

Indian Economy 

Output growth

The growth across the three primary sectors of the economy 
is likely to remain diverse. While the gross value added by 
the industrial and services is likely to decline from 8.2% and 
9.9% respectively in 2015-16 to 5.2% and 8.8% respectively 
in 2016-17, that from the agricultural sector is likely to grow 
from 0.76% in 2015-16 to 4.1%, driven by normal monsoon 
post two years of deficit. (Source: http://www.livemint.com/
Industry/fOtMe4T3PN8CtLaeoO3E8M/Indias-GDP-growth-
rate-for-201516-revised-to-79-from-76.html)

Macro-economic fundamentals

The macro-economic fundamentals of the country 
remain strong driven by favourable initiatives by 
the government which include focus on digitalising 
the economy, financial inclusion, enhancing ease of 
doing business and reducing the share of parallel cash 
economy. The interest rates scenario in the country 
became more favourable with RBI further cutting repo 
rates by 50 basis points to 6.25%, during Financial Year 
2016-17. Fiscal deficit at the end of the Financial Year 

Annexure - E

Management Discussion and Analysis
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17 fiscal stood at 3.5%, inflation at 4.7% while foreign 
exchange reserves rose to ` 24,102.8 bn.

Government initiatives 

One of the most crucial step undertaken by the government 
has been the withdrawing of ` 500 and ` 1,000 currency 
notes amounting to ` 15.44 lakh cr in November 2016, in a 
bid to curb corruption, tax evasion, counterfeiting and put a 
check on the parallel cash economy. Post demonetisation, 
the Government’s primary focus has been on reducing 
cash transactions in the country and undergoing a major 
digital transformation to enhance the country’s efficiency. 
The move is likely to enhance tax collections and boost GDP 
growth over the long run.

Other critical initiatives by the Government include 
FDI norm relaxation, passing of GST bill, reducing 
bureaucracy levels, fast-tracking stalled projects, 
enhancing budgetary allocations to infrastructure 
sector, ease of doing business, and promoting growth of 
the small and medium businesses. The development of 
the agriculture sector has been another important focus 
area for the Government, whereby it has introduced 
various measures that would boost agriculture sector 
and revitalise the rural economy. 

Crucial elections 

The present Central Government’s victory in the 2017 
assembly elections across the states of Uttar Pradesh, 
Goa, Uttarakhand and Manipur reiterated the notion of 
it being an investor friendly and development focused 
government. Moreover, this shall in all likelihood pace 
up clearances of pending various bills and bring political 
stability in the country, which is important for building up 
investor sentiments. 

Outlook

With strong macro fundamentals and governance, the 
Indian economy is expected to remain the fastest growing 
major economy in the world. IMF predicts the country to 
grow at the rate of 7.2% in 2017-18 and 7.7% in 2018-19 
driven by enhanced investor confidence in the Indian 
markets, improving financial stability, and projected 
infrastructural development. 

INDUSTRY OVERVIEW

Automobile industry 

The Automobile industry is amongst the key industries in 
India accounting for nearly 7.1% of its GDP. The country is 
one of the largest automobile manufactures in the world 
and the second largest in two wheeler segment.

Segment-wise key industry players 

Passenger 
vehicles 

Maruti Suzuki, Hyundai Motors and 
Mahindra & Mahindra

Commercial 
vehicles 

Ashok Leyland, Tata Motors, Mahindra 
& Mahindra, and VECV 

Three wheelers Bajaj Auto, Piaggio Vehicles, Mahindra 
& Mahindra 

Two wheelers Hero Motorcorp, Honda Motorcycle, 
Bajaj Auto, TVS Motors

Production and sales

In 2016-17, the total vehicles (passenger vehicles, 
commercial vehicles, three wheelers, two wheelers and 
quadricycle) production in India increased by 5.41% from 
24.02 million vehicles in 2015-16 to 25.32 million vehicles.

The sales of passenger vehicles rose by 9.23%, 
commercial vehicles by 4.16% and two wheelers 6.89% 
while that of three wheelers declined by 4.93%. The 
various sub-segments viz. utility vehicles, mopeds, goods 
carriers and scooters recorded highest growth of 29.91%, 
23.02%, 12.75% and 11.39% respectively. The revival in 
demand from the rural markets and rise in infrastructure 
spending has been a key factor driving the growth of the 
automobile sector. 

Growth in sales of various segments of vehicle industry

Growth (in %)
Passenger vehicle segment
Passenger cars 3.85
Utility vehicles 29.91
Vans 2.37
Commercial vehicle segment
Medium & heavy commercial vehicles 0.04
Light commercial vehicles 7.41
Three wheelers segment 
Passenger carriers -8.83
Goods carriers 12.75
Two wheelers segment 
Scooters 11.39
Motorcycles 3.68
Mopeds 23.02

Exports

In 2016-17, the overall automobile exports declined 
by (-)4.50% to 3.48 mn vehicles compared to 3.64 mn 
in 2015-16. The exports of passenger vehicles and 
commercial vehicles segment witnessed growth of 
16.20% and 4.99% respectively, while that of three 
wheelers and two wheelers declined by (-)32.77% 
and (-)5.78% respectively. (Source: Society of Indian 
Automobile Manufacturers, SIAM)
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Automobile production, sales and export trend
(in Million)
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Outlook

India’s automobile industry has come a long way over 
the years with the outburst of middle class population. 
The country is also an important export destination for 
automobiles. The past few years have witnessed the 
industry undergoing significant changes with rising 
importance of aesthetics, policies getting more supportive, 
emission norms getting more stringent, and increasing 
use of new technologies. Globally, the new technologies 
that are redefining the industry in the short to medium 
term include reverse parking guide, in car infotainment 
system, anti-lock braking system, driver information 
system, immobilisers, body control module, telematics, 
tyre pressure monitoring system, fully automated 
temperature control, and LED based head lamps. 

Over the past ten years, India has emerged as one of the 
most preferred locations in the world for manufacturing 
high quality automotive components and vehicles of all 
kinds, narrowing its gap over several established locations 
in the process. Over the next decade, the Automotive 
industry at a global level is likely to see significant 
transformation. Principal ones that are expected include 
the shift of growth in demand for automobiles from 
developed nations to developing nations (mainly 
BRICS); a dramatic increase in the share of electronics 
in automobiles making them a “computer on wheels”; 
a relentless pursuit of economies of scale and scope in 
design and engineering of automobiles and components, 
while also pursuing low cost manufacturing destinations. 
(Source: AMP 2016-26)

Automotive lighting industry

Automotive lighting components constitute a significant 
proportion of the overall automotive component industry 
and play a vital role in road safety. Modern day vehicles 
are geared with various types of lighting for purposes like 
visibility, bad weather conditions and fog. Apart from its 
traditional use, the automotive lighting is increasingly 
gaining importance as an aesthetic attribute. The lighting 
system comprises lighting and signalling devices that are 
placed in the front, rear, side and interiors. (Source: Allied 
Market Research) 

Market Segmentation

Indian Automotive Lighting Market

By lighting technology

•	 Halogen

•	 Xenon

•	 LED

By vehicle type

•	 Passenger

•	 Commercial

•	 Two-wheelers

•	 Three-wheelers

•	 Tractors

By application

•	 Front lighting

•	 Rear lighting 

•	 Side lighting

•	 Fog lamps

•	 Interior lighting

By sales channel type

•	 OEM

•	 After market

(Source: Allied Market Research)

Comparison of Automotive Lighting Technologies

Parameters Halogen lamps Xenon lamps LED lights

Basic operating elements Tungsten filament Electrodes and xenon gas Diodes

Average luminous efficacy 11‐20 lumen per watt 70‐100 lumen per watt 80‐110 lumen per watt

Life span Nearly 3,000 hours Nearly 20,000 hours Nearly 50,000 hours

(Source: Allied Market Research)
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Technology evolution in automotive lighting 

Head lamp

2011-13 •	 Introduction of Clear PC Lens halogen bulb Head lamps with Multi Focal Reflector (MFR) for 
light distribution in the passenger vehicle segment

•	 Introduction of projector halogen lamps with added LED features like the DRL (Daytime 
Running Lights) as an option in top vehicle variants

2014-15 •	 Projector halogen lamps being offered as standard feature for new launches

•	 Increasing focus on usage of LEDs for DRL and signature lighting towards the end of 2014 and 
beginning of 2015

•	 Usage of LEDs for DRL along with HID (High Intensity Discharge) bulbs for projector.

2016-17 •	 Most vehicle models adopted LED DRL feature or Projector Head Lamp (either with Halogen 
Bulb or HID Bulb) or both.

•	 Headlamps with Signature DRL’s or Lighting being adopted as styling feature in 2016

•	 Rising usage of LED Projector Head Lamps lead to higher penetration of electronics and LED 
into Head Lamps from second half of year 2016 onwards

•	 Year 2017 to witness transition to manufacture of localized LED Head Lamp with signature DRL 
and position

2017-18 •	 All future models replacing existing ones would have:

	 o	 Projector Head Lamp (Bulb), whose predecessor used Halogen Bulbs

	 o	 Projector Head Lamp (with LED), whose predecessors used Projector with Halogen Bulbs

Tail lamp

2011-12 •	 Introduction of tail lamps having Clear Lenses with adoption of Multi Color Molding technique 
for homogenous appearance 

2013-mid of 2014 •	 Adoption of new styling with introduction of Split Tail Lamp design

End of 2014-2015 •	 Tail lamps introduced with one or more LED feature 
•	 LED’s adopted for giving Signature shape in the Tail Lamps

2016 •	 Almost all the new models launched used LEDs either as one of the functions or for Signature 
Lighting

2017 onwards •	 All the new models to be launched would have LEDs for better aesthetic and signature 
appearance

Outlook

Globally the automotive lighting market is witnessing 
significant evolution with more vehicle adopting LED 
lights. The rising disposable income of consumers 
coupled with increasing safety needs and demand 
for aesthetically pleasing products would lead to 
increasing adoption of LEDs, especially in China, Taiwan, 
Japan, Korea and India. Moreover, with manufacturers 
increasingly spending on R&D there is high likelihood of 
reduction in automobile LED costs in the coming years 
making it more affordable. 

In India, the automotive lighting market is expected to 
register a compounded growth of 5.6% during 2016 to 
2022 and reach a value of USD 3.1 bn. (Source: Allied 
Market Research)

OPPORTUNITIES & CHALLENGES

Opportunities 

The key factors driving growth of automobile and 
automotive lighting industry in the country include:

•	 �Focus on road safety: According to Road Accident 
in India report by the Minister of Road Transport & 
Highways, India witnessed over 5 lakh accidents 
in 2015, killing over 1.46 lakh people. Further, the 
severity of road accidents (measured in number of 
persons killed every 100 accidents) increased from 
28.5 in 2014 to 29.1 in 2015. The Government intends 
to reduce road accidents by 50% by 2020 which 
can be aided through development of advanced 
automotive lighting solutions. 
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•	 �Aesthetics & luminosity: LED lamps are more 
aesthetically pleasing and provide scope for enhancing 
design quality. Moreover, the average luminous 
efficacy of these lamps is higher than traditional 
lamps which enhances its effectiveness in dark. 

•	 �Favourable industry scenario:  In India, the automobile 
sector is all set to grow driven by rising affluence 
(proportion of spending from affluent household 
expected to rise to 40% by 2025 from 26% in 2015), low 
vehicle penetration (32 vehicles per 1,000 population 
compared an average of 192 globally), declining 
interest rates (repo rates declined from highs of 8% 
in 2014 to 6.25% currently) and government’s strong 
focus towards development of roads and highways 
in the country.

•	 �Decline in LED prices: One of the key detriments to shifting 
to LEDs in automotive lighting is its high cost. However, 
as the technology is evolving, the prices of automotive 
LED lighting are expected to decline in future, which will 
result in increasing acceptability in the market. 

Challenges 

•	 �High manufacturing costs: The Indian automotive 
lighting industry faces a key challenge of high cost of 
manufacturing. 

•	 �Availability of low-cost alternative: The easy 
availability of low-cost imported products, primarily 
from China, significantly impacts the sales volume of 
domestic players 

•	� Technology: Most of the domestic players lack the 
matured technology that is essential for, manufacturing 
quality products and reducing cost of production. 

PRODUCT WISE PERFORMANCE

The Company is engaged only in one segment of products 
viz. manufacture of Auto Components, mainly Automotive 
Lighting Systems. The Product wise performance during 
the year is as follows:

(in ` Millions)

Product Turnover 
Automotive lamps 11848.21
Tools 1055.95
Miscellaneous items 93.65
Total 12997.81

RISKS & CONCERNS

Technology risk 

Lack of appropriate technological competence could 
hinder the Company’s ability to develop competitive 
products and reduce costs.

Mitigation: 

•	 �The Company’s JV with Stanley, a world-leader in 
automotive lighting products, provides it access to 
advanced technologies.

•	 �The Company has state-of-the-art R&D facilities, 
advanced equipment, and rich intellectual 
capital which further enhances its technological 
competence. 

Quality risk 

Inability of the Company to adhere to quality standards, 
essential for supplying products to OEMs, can lead to loss 
of customers.

Mitigation: 

•	 �The Company has skilled workforce who are 
periodically provided job skill enhancement training. 
It has also adopted various quality and productivity 
enhancing initiatives like Kaizen, Total Productivity 
Maintenance, Quality Circles, Total Quality 
Management, 5-S, 6 sigma, and 7-W processes.

•	 �It regularly interacts with its suppliers, supervises them 
and conducts periodical audits at their plants to ensure 
the raw materials meet the required quality standards. 

•	 �The Company has focused on rationalising suppliers 
whereby it decides to stop doing business with 
suppliers if they do not improve quality standards 
after repeated communications. 

Competition risk 

Inability of the Company to manufacture relevant products 
catering to requirements of OEMs would result in loss of 
market share. 

Mitigation: 

•	 �The Company undertakes various research and 
development activities to ensure that its products 
match client specification for newer models. 

•	 �It enjoys long term relationships with leading 
automobile manufacturers in the country owing to 
years of unmatched quality and service standards. 

•	 �Ability of the Company to modify auto-component 
designs along with undertaking initiatives to reduce 
costs enables it to be a leading player in the segment. 

INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS AND THEIR ADEQUACY

The internal control system of the Company is 
commensurate to the size of its business and the nature of 
industry it operates in. These well-defined and adequately 
documented systems focuses on safeguarding the 
Company’s assets, ensuring reliability of financials 
and maintaining effectiveness of organisation along 
with ensuring adherence to the procedures, laws, rules 
and statues that applies on it. The compliance activities 
are being strictly monitored by the Legal & Secretarial 
Department headed by the Senior Vice-President (Legal) 
and the Group Company Secretary. 
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The Company has also appointed an Independent firm 
of Internal Auditor, who work under the overview of 
Audit Committee, to ensure all transactions are recorded 
and reported under the guidelines of the Accounting 
Standards. The Audit Committee makes sure that all 
activities are regularly monitored. Further, the top 
management along with the Audit Committee review the 
findings and recommendations of the Internal Auditors. 
Besides, the Company’s robust MIS systems ensure that 
all expenses are within budget and any mismatch is 
immediately flagged off for corrective actions.

Discussion on Financial Performance with reference to 
Operational Performance

The auto industry in India has seen a revival last year after 
two years of turbulence. The production of Automobiles in 
the financial year 2016-17 has grown by 5.41% as compared 
to the last financial year ended on March 31, 2016. Your 
Company clocked a growth of 3.56% year on year.

Revenue

Your company’s business is directly dependent on the 
Original Equipment Manufacturer(s) of Automobiles 
(OEM’s). Your company has achieved Net Sales of  
` 12997.81 Million for the year ended March 31, 2017 as 
compared to ` 12551.75 Million in the previous year.

PROFITS

Your Company has recorded a Profit before Tax (PBT) of 
` 541.60 Million for the year ended March 31, 2017 as 
compared to Profit before Tax (PBT) of ` 415.90 Million in 
the previous year.

DIVIDEND

The Company has been declaring dividend for the last 
32 years continuously. Therefore, keeping in view of the 
philosophy of the Company to reward its shareholders 
and to continue the tradition of recommending dividend 
for the last 32 years, your Directors are pleased to 
recommend a Dividend of 145% (` 14.50/- per Equity 
Share) for the Financial Year 2016-17 (` 12/- per Equity 
share in the previous year). 

The total amount of Dividend proposed to be distributed 
is ` 135.54 Million (excluding Dividend Tax).

SIGNIFICANT DEVELOPMENT IN HUMAN RESOURCES

Human resources are the most critical element at Lumax 
Industries contributing to the organisation’s growth 
over the years and charting its long term business 
sustainability. The Company’s human resource policies 
revolve around the areas of developing a professional, 
productive and dedicated workforce. The employees are 
time and again provided with various skill and personal 
development trainings to ensure a continuous growth in 
their competencies. The Company focuses on providing 
employees a conducive and safe work environment for 

enhancing employee morale and aligning individual 
goals with that of the organisation. 

Engaging programmes, are being undertaken to ensure 
higher satisfaction levels. Further, the Company’s Quality 
Control Circles (QCC), whereby nearly 56% of the blue 
collared employees are registered, provides a significant 
scope of enhancing job skills. The Company has also 
adopted several international shop floor improvement 
initiatives which include Kaizen, Quality Circles, Total 
Productivity Maintenance, Total Quality Management, 5-S, 
6 sigma, 7-W processes focused on enhancing processes 
and productivity. 

GURUKUL, Lumax’s training school in Bawal plant, is 
another important initiative by the Company whereby 
fresh individuals hired by the Company have to attend a 
10-day training programme that provides practical training 
experience for better understanding of job and skill 
development. These trained individuals are then allocated 
across various plants where their activities, performances, 
job skills, behaviour, and mannerism are monitored and 
found to be more effective than those who have not attended 
this training. The Company has also identified trainers who 
can visit different plants to provide these trainings in case 
the employees are unable to visit the same. 

One of the key achievements of the Company during the 
year has been the success of its seven QCC teams in the 
national level Quality Circle Forum of India (QCFI) contest 
and their qualification in the international level contest to be 
held in Philippines. The Company undertakes regional safety 
meeting at regular defined periods, whereby ensuring that 
each of the plants are thoroughly conducting safety audits 
and monitoring the findings. In addition to this, the Company 
also provides KY training, which is a kind of danger prediction 
training whereby key areas of hazards in the workplace are 
identified and effective solutions developed.

In 2016-17, the Company ensured healthy relationship with 
the workforce. The Company’s total employee strength as 
on March 31, 2017 stood at 2292.

CAUTIONARY STATEMENT

The statements made in the Management Discussion 
and Analysis Report that describes your Company’s 
projections, estimates and expectations may be interpreted 
as “forward looking statements” which are within the 
scope of applicable securities laws and regulations. The 
Company’s actual performance could differ from those 
expressed or implied. Important factors like on-going 
economic scenario, price conditions in the domestic and 
international markets in which the Company operates, 
regulatory changes, taxation laws and other statutes 
have the potential to impact its operations. The Company 
assumes no responsibility to publicly amend, modify or 
revise these forward looking statements on the basis of 
any subsequent development, information or events.
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The Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) 
regulates Corporate Governance Practices of Companies 
Listed on the Indian Stock Exchanges. The Corporate 
Governance framework has been referred to in Regulation 
15(2) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015. These Regulations 
specifies the standards that Indian Companies have to 
Comply and the disclosures that they have to make with 
regards to Corporate Governance. Your Company has 
established systems and procedures to comply with the 
amended provisions of the Corporate Governance and is 
complying with the same in its letter and spirit.

1.	 COMPANY’S PHILOSOPHY: 

	� The Company remains committed to high standards 
of Corporate Governance. The Company believes 
that Corporate Governance is based on the 
principle of integrity, fairness, equity, transparency, 
accountability and commitment to values. Good 
Governance Practices stem from the culture and 
mindset of the organisation. 

	� We believe that sound Corporate Governance 
is critical to enhance and retain investors trust. 
Accordingly, we always seek to ensure that, we attain 
our performance rules with integrity. Our Board 
exercises its fiduciary responsibilities in the widest 
sense of the term. We also endeavor to enhance long 
term shareholder value and respect minority rights 
in all our business decisions. 

	� Our Corporate Governance philosophy is based on 
the following principles:

	 •	 �Satisfy the spirit of the law and not just the letter 
of the law. 

	 •	 �Corporate Governance standards should go 
beyond the law.

	 •	 �Be transparent and maintain a high degree of 
disclosure levels. 

	 •	 �Have a simple and transparent corporate 
structure driven solely by business needs.

	 •	 �Management is the trustee of the shareholders’ 
capital and not the owner.

2.	� BOARD OF DIRECTORS, MEETINGS OF THE BOARD, 
PROCESS AND PROCEDURES AT THE MEETING:

	� The Board of Directors is the apex body constituted 
by the shareholders for overseeing the overall 

functioning of the Company. The Board provides and 
evaluates the strategic direction of the Company, 
management policies and their effectiveness 
and ensures that the long-term interests of the 
shareholders are being served. 

	� The Company’s Board of Directors consists of twelve 
(12) Directors. Out of these twelve (12) Directors, 
Four (4) Directors are Executive Director(s), Two (2) 
including the Chairman are Non Executive Directors 
and Six (6) are Non Executive Independent Director(s) 
including one women Director. The Managing 
Director is assisted by Joint Managing Director, 
Senior Executive Director, Executive Director and 
Senior Managerial Personnel in overseeing the 
functional matters of the Company. The Board 
of Directors have met five times during the year. 
The Company follows the following process and 
procedures for the Board Meetings.

	 A.	� Scheduling and Selection of Agenda Items for 
Board Meetings:

		  (i)	� Minimum four pre-scheduled Board meetings 
are held every year. Apart from the above, 
additional Board meetings are convened 
by giving appropriate notice to address the 
specific needs of the Company. In case of 
business exigencies or urgency of matters, 
resolutions are passed by circulation.

		  (ii)	� The meetings are usually held at the 
Company’s office at Plot No. 16, Sector-18, 
Maruti Complex, Gurgaon, Haryana-122015.

		  (iii)	� All divisions/departments of the Company 
are advised to schedule their work plans 
well in advance, particularly with regard 
to matters requiring discussion/ approval/
decision at the Board meetings. All such 
matters are communicated to the Company 
Secretary in advance so that the same 
could be included in the Agenda for the 
Board meetings.

		  (iv)	� The Board is given presentations by the 
Statutory Auditors, Internal Auditors and 
Head Finance covering Finance, Sales, 
major business segments and operations 
of the Company, all business areas of the 
Company including business opportunities, 
business strategy and the risk management 
practices and Internal Audit issues before 

Annexure - F

Corporate Governance Report
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taking on record the quarterly / annual 
financial results of the Company.

			   (v)	� The information required to be placed 
before the Board includes :

	 	 	 	 •	 �General Notices of Interest of 
Directors.

	 	 	 	 •	 �Annual operating plans of business, 
Capital budgets and any updates.

	 	 	 	 •	 �Quarterly results for the company 
and its operating divisions or 
business segments.

	 	 	 	 •	 Dividend Declaration.

	 	 	 	 •	 �Minutes of meetings of audit 
committee and other committees 
of the board, as also resolutions 
passed by circulation.

	 	 	 	 •	 �The information on recruitment 
and remuneration of senior 
officers just below the board level, 
including appointment or removal 
of Chief Financial Officer and the 
Company Secretary.

	 	 	 	 •	 �Show cause, demand, prosecution 
notices and penalty notices which 
are materially important.

	 	 	 	 •	 �Fatal or serious accidents, 
dangerous occurrences, any 
material effluent or pollution 
problems.

	 	 	 	 •	 �Any material default in financial 
obligations to and by the company, 
or substantial nonpayment for 
goods sold by the company.

	 	 	 	 •	 �Any issue, which involves possible 
public or product liability claims 
of substantial nature, including 
any judgement or order which, 
may have passed strictures on the 
conduct of the company or taken 
an adverse view regarding another 
enterprise that can have negative 
implications on the company.

	 	 	 	 •	 �Internal Audit findings and 
Statutory Auditor Reports 
(through the Audit Committee).

	 	 	 	 •	 �Details of any joint venture, 
acquisition of Companies or 
collaboration agreement; if any

	 	 	 	 •	 �Transactions that involve substantial 
payment towards goodwill, brand 
equity, or intellectual property. 

	 	 	 	 •	 �Significant labour problems and 
their proposed solutions. Any 
significant development in Human 
Resources/ Industrial Relations front 
like signing of wage agreement, 
implementation of Voluntary 
Retirement Scheme etc.

	 	 	 	 •	 �Sale of material nature of 
investments, subsidiaries, assets, 
which is not in normal course of 
business.

	 	 	 	 •	 �Quarterly details of foreign 
exchange exposures and the steps 
taken by management to limit the 
risks of adverse exchange rate 
movement, if material.

	 	 	 	 •	 �Non-compliance of any regulatory, 
statutory or listing requirements 
and shareholders service such as 
non-payment of dividend, delay 
in share transfer (if any) etc.

	 	 	 	 •	 �Brief on statutory developments, 
changes in Government policies 
etc. with impact thereof, Directors’ 
responsibilities arising out of any 
such developments.

		  (vi)	� The Chairman of the Board and the 
Company Secretary in consultation with 
other concerned members of the Senior 
Management and Nominees of Technical 
and Financial Collaborator, finalise the 
agenda papers for the Board meetings.

	 B.	 Board Agenda 

		�  Detailed agenda and notes on agenda are 
provided to the Directors in the defined agenda 
format. All material information is incorporated 
in the agenda papers for facilitating meaningful 
and focused discussions at the meeting. Where 
it is not practicable to attach any document 
to the agenda, the same is tabled before the 
meeting with specific reference to this effect 
in the agenda. In special and exceptional 
circumstances, additional or supplementary 
item(s) on the agenda are permitted.
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	 C.	� Recording Minutes of proceedings at Board 
Meetings

		�  The Company Secretary records the Minutes of 
the proceedings of each Board and Committee 
meeting. Draft minutes are circulated to all the 
members of the Board / Committee for their 
comments. The final minutes are entered in the 
Minutes Book within 30 days from conclusion of 
the meeting.

	 D.	 Post Meeting Follow-up Mechanism

		�  The Guidelines for Board meetings facilitate 
an effective post meeting follow-up, review 
and reporting process for the decisions taken 
by the Board. The important decisions taken at 
the Board meetings are communicated to the 
departments / divisions concerned promptly. 
Action taken report on the decisions/minutes 
of the previous meeting(s) is placed at the 

immediately succeeding meeting of the Board 
for noting by the Board.

	 E.	� Role of the Company Secretary in Overall  
Governance Process

		�  The Company Secretary plays a key role in 
ensuring that the Board procedures are followed 
and regularly reviewed. He ensures that all 
relevant information, details and documents 
are made available to the Board and Senior 
Management for effective decision making. 
The Company Secretary while preparing the 
agenda, Notes on agenda, Minutes etc. of the 
meeting(s), is responsible for and is required to 
ensure adherence to all the applicable laws and 
regulations including the Companies Act, 2013 
read with the Rules framed there under and 
the Secretarial Standards recommended by the 
Institute of Company Secretaries of India. 

Sl.
No

Name of the 
Directors

Category of 
Directorship

No. of 
Board 

Meetings 
Attended

No. of  
Director-ships 
in Other Public 

Companies1

No. of Committee 
Positions Held 
in Other Public 

Companies2

Last Agm 
Attended

Relationship Interse

Chairman Member

1 Mr. D.K. Jain Non Executive 
Chairman

5 8 - 1 Yes Related as Father to Mr. 
Deepak Jain and Mr. 
Anmol Jain

2 Mr. Deepak 
Jain

Managing 
Director

5 7 1 - Yes Related as Son to Mr. 
D.K Jain and as Brother 
to Mr. Anmol Jain

3 Mr. Anmol 
Jain

Joint Manag-
ing Director

5 7 - 2 Yes Related as Son to Mr. D.K 
Jain and as Brother to 
Mr. Deepak Jain

4 Mr. Eiichi  
Hirooka

Sr. Executive
Director (Stanley
Nominee)

5 - - - Yes Related as Nominee 
Directors of Stanley.

5 Mr. Koji 
Sawada*

Executive  
Director (Stanley
Nominee)

3 - - - No Related as Nominee 
Directors of Stanley.

6 Mr. Toru 
Tanabe 

Non-Executive 
Director (Stanley 
Nominee)

1 - - - No Related as Nominee 
Directors of Stanley.

7 Mr. A.P. 
Gandhi 

Non-Executive 
Independent 
Director 

4 8 2 5 No Not related to any 
Director.

8 Mr. Gursaran 
Singh **

Non-Executive 
Independent 
Director

1 3 - - Yes Not related to any 
Director.

9 Mr. M.C. 
Gupta

Non-Executive 
Independent 
Director

5 2 2 1 Yes Not related to any  
Director.

	 F.	� Composition, Category and Attendance of Directors at Board Meetings, Last Annual General Meeting (AGM) 
and number of other Directorships and Chairmanships/Memberships of Committees of each Director in various 
Companies as on March 31, 2017.
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Sl.
No

Name of the 
Directors

Category of 
Directorship

No. of 
Board 

Meetings 
Attended

No. of  
Director-ships 
in Other Public 

Companies1

No. of Committee 
Positions Held 
in Other Public 

Companies2

Last Agm 
Attended

Relationship Interse

Chairman Member
10 Mr. Dhiraj 

Dhar Gupta
Non-Executive 
Independent 
Director

2 5 - 3 Yes Not related to any  
Director.

11 Mr. Rattan 
Kapur

Non-Executive 
Independent 
Director

5 2 - - Yes Not related to any  
Director.

12 Mrs. Pallavi 
Dinodia  
Gupta

Non-Executive 
Independent 
Director

4 - - - Yes Not related to any 
Director

	 1Excludes Directorship in Foreign Companies and Companies Registered under Section 8 of the Companies Act, 2013.

	 2�As per Listing Regulations, Committee here means “Audit Committee” and “Share Transfer/Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee“ and excludes 
the Committee positions held in Lumax Industries Limited.

	� *Stanley Electric Co., Ltd. (Stanley) has withdrawn the nomination of Mr. Norihisa Sato, Executive Director from the Board of the 
Company. Consequent to withdrawal of his nomination, Mr. Norihisa Sato resigned from the Board of the Company w.e.f August 
08, 2016. The Board of Directors have appointed Mr. Koji Sawada, Nominee of Stanley as additional as well as Executive Director 
w.e.f 09-08-2016, for the time being on the board of the Company at their meeting held on 08-08-2016 subject to his regular 
appointment in the ensuing Annual general meeting.

	� **Mr. Gursaran Singh, Non-Executive Independent Director has resigned from the Board of the Company w.e.f from 19-04-2017. 
The Board of Directors has appointed Mr. Rajeev Kapoor as Additional Director w.e.f. 13-05-2017, subject to his regular appointment 
in the ensuing Annual General Meeting.

	 Directors who relinquished office during the year ended March 31, 2017.

Name of the 
Director

Category of 
Director

No. of Board Meet-
ings attended

No. of other 
Director-
ships

Committee 
Memberships

Committee 
Chairman-
ship

Last AGM  
Attended

Mr. Norihisa 
Sato

Executive 
Director
(Stanley  
Nominee)

2 - - - Yes

	 G.	� Number of Board Meetings held and the dates 
on which held

The Board of Directors met five times during the 
Financial Year ended March 31, 2017. The interven-
ing period between two Board Meetings was well 
within the maximum time gap of 120 days, as pre-
scribed under Listing Regulations. The details of 
Board Meetings held during the year are as under:-

Sl. 
No.

Date of board 
meeting

Board’s 
strength

No. of Directors 
present

1. 12-05-2016 12 10
2. 08-08-2016 12 10
3. 12-11-2016 12 10
4. 25-01-2017 12 9
5. 11-02-2017 12 8

	 H.	 Meeting of Independent Director 

		�  During the year, a separate meeting of the 
Independent Directors of the Company was held 
on January 25, 2017 to discuss the following 

matters as prescribed under Schedule IV of 
Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 25 of the 
Listing Regulations:

		  1. 	� To review the performance of Non-
Independent Directors and the Board as 
whole. 

		  2. 	� To review the performance of the 
Chairperson of the company, taking into 
account the views of executive directors 
and non-executive directors.

		  3. 	� To assess the quality, quantity and 
timeliness of flow of information between 
the company management and the Board 
that is necessary for the Board to effectively 
and reasonably perform their duties.

	 I.	� Familiarisation Programme for Independent  
Directors 

		�  In accordance with Regulation 25 of the 
Listing Regulations, the Board has adopted a 
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Familiarisation Programme for Independent 
Directors to familiarize the Independent 
Directors of the company with the organisation. 

		�  The Company through its Managing Director/
Chief Executive Officer/Senior Managerial 
Personnel conducts programmes/presentations 
periodically to familiarize the Independent 
Directors with the strategy, operations and 
functions of the Company and above all the 
Industry perspective & issues. 

		�  The Independent Directors are provided with 
all the documents/reports/policies sought by 
them for enabling a good understanding of 
the Company, its various operations and the 
industry of which it is a part. The Independent 
Directors are also provided with regular updates 
on relevant statutory changes to ensure that 
they remain upto date on the Compliance 
framework.

		�  The details of such Familiarisation Programme 
for Independent Director are uploaded on 
the website of the company and the web link 
of the same is provided here under: http://
www.lumaxindustries.com/pdf/familarisation-
program.pdf.

3.	 COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD

	� Currently, the Board has Four Committees: the Audit 
Committee, the Nomination and Remuneration 
Committee, the Share Transfer/ Stakeholder 
Relationship Committee and Corporate Social 
Responsibility Committee. The Company’s process 
and procedure related to the Board Meetings are also 
applicable and followed in the Committee Meetings. 
The brief details of the various committees of the Board 
and their constitution and functions are as under:

	 A.	 Audit Committee

		  a)	 Composition and Attendance

			�   The Audit Committee comprises of five 
non-executive Independent Directors, 
Managing Director and Executive Director. 
The Composition of the Audit Committee 
during the Financial Year April 2016 to 
March 2017 was as follows:

S. No. Name Status Category of  

membership
1. Mr. A.P.  

Gandhi

Chairman Non-Executive  

Independent Director

2. Mr. M.C. 

Gupta

Member Non-Executive  

Independent Director

S. No. Name Status Category of  

membership
3. Mr. D.D. 

Gupta 

Member Non-Executive 

Independent Director
4. Mr. Rattan 

Kapur

Member Non-Executive  

Independent Director
5. Mrs. Pallavi 

Dinodia Gupta

Member Non-Executive  

Independent Director
6. Mr. Deepak 

Jain 

Member Managing Director

7. Mr. Eiichi 

Hirooka

Member Senior Executive 

Director

		�  The Audit Committee had met Six times during 
the Financial Year April 1, 2016 to March 31, 2017. 
The attendances of the meetings are as under:

S. 
No.

Directors No. of Meetings 
Attended

1. Mr. A.P. Gandhi 5
2. Mr. M. C. Gupta 6
3. Mr. D.D. Gupta 3
4. Mr. Rattan Kapur 6
5. Mrs. Pallavi Dinodia 

Gupta
5

6. Mr. Deepak Jain 4
7. Mr. Eiichi Hirooka 4 

		�  Statutory Auditors, Internal Auditors and 
Finance Head are permanent invitees to the 
Audit Committee Meetings. The Company 
Secretary acts as the Secretary to the Audit 
Committee.

		�  The Audit Committee has been constituted as 
per Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013 and 
the guidelines set out in the Listing Regulations. 
The Audit Committee of the Company, inter-
alia, provides assurance to the Board on the 
existence and adequacy of an effective Internal 
Control systems that ensures:

		  •	 Efficiency and effectiveness of operations.

	 	 •	 �Safeguarding of Assets and adequacy of 
provisions for all liabilities.

	 	 •	 �Reliability of all financial and other 
management information and adequacy of 
disclosures.

	 	 •	 Compliance with all relevant statutes.

			�   The Committee has powers as envisaged 
under Regulation 18 of the Listing 
Regulations and as specified by the Board 
of Directors of the Company.
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		  b)	 Powers of Audit Committee

			�   Audit Committee shall have following 
Powers:

			   1)	� To investigate any activity within its 
terms of reference;

			   2)	� To seek any information from any 
employee.

			   3)	� To obtain outside legal or other 
professional advice.

			   4)	� To secure attendance of outsiders 
with relevant expertise, if considered 
necessary.

		  c)	 Role of Audit Committee

			   1)	� Oversight of the company’s financial 
reporting process and the disclosure 
of its financial information to ensure 
that the financial statement is correct, 
sufficient and credible;

			   2)	� Recommendation for appointment, 
remuneration and terms of appointment 
of auditors of the company;

			   3)	� Approval of payment to statutory 
auditors for any other services 
rendered by the statutory auditors;

			   4)	� Reviewing, with the management, 
the annual financial statements 
and auditor’s report thereon before 
submission to the board for approval, 
with particular reference to:

				    a.	� Matters required to be included 
in the Director’s Responsibility 
Statement to be included in the 
Board’s report in terms of clause 
(c) of sub-section 3 of section 134 
of the Companies Act, 2013.

				    b.	� Changes, if any, in accounting 
policies and practices and reasons 
for the same.

				    c.	� Major accounting entries involving 
estimates based on the exercise 
of judgment by management.

				    d. 	� Significant adjustments made in 
the financial statements arising 
out of audit findings 

				    e. 	� Compliance with listing and other 
legal requirements relating to 
financial statements

				    f.	� Disclosure of any related party 
transactions

				    g.	� modified opinion(s) in the draft 
audit report;

			   5)	� Reviewing, with the management, the 
quarterly financial statements before 
submission to the board for approval;

			   6)	� Reviewing, with the management, the 
statement of uses / application of funds 
raised through an issue (public issue, 
rights issue, preferential issue, etc.), the 
statement of funds utilized for purposes 
other than those stated in the offer 
document / prospectus / notice and the 
report submitted by the monitoring 
agency monitoring the utilisation of 
proceeds of a public or rights issue, and 
making appropriate recommendations to 
the Board to take up steps in this matter;

			   7)	� Review and monitor the auditor’s 
independence and performance, and 
effectiveness of audit process;

			   8)	� Approval or any subsequent 
modification of transactions of the 
company with related parties;

			   9)	� Scrutiny of inter-corporate loans and 
investments;

			   10)	� Valuation of undertakings or assets of 
the company, wherever it is necessary;

			   11)	� Evaluation of internal financial controls 
and risk management systems;

			   12)	� Reviewing with the management, 
performance of the Statutory and 
Internal Auditors, adequacy of Internal 
Control systems.

			   13)	� Reviewing the adequacy of Internal 
Audit function, if any, including 
the structure of the internal audit 
department, staffing and seniority of 
the official heading the department, 
reporting structure coverage and 
frequency of internal audit.

			   14)	� Discussion with Internal Auditors on 
any significant findings and follow-up 
thereon.

			   15)	� Reviewing the findings of any internal 
investigations by the Internal Auditors 
into matters where there is suspected 
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fraud or irregularity or a failure of 
internal control systems of a material 
nature and reporting the matter to the 
Board.

			   16)	� Discussion with Statutory Auditors 
before the audit commences, about 
the nature and scope of audit as well 
as post-audit discussion to ascertain 
any area of concern.

			   17)	� To look into the reasons for 
substantial defaults in the payment 
to the depositors, debenture holders, 
shareholders (in case of non payment 
of declared dividends) and creditors.

			   18)	� To Review the functioning of Whistle 
Blower mechanism.

			   19)	� Approval of appointment of CFO (i.e., 
the whole-time Finance Director or 
any other person heading the finance 
function or discharging that function) 
after assessing the qualifications, 
experience & background, etc. of the 
candidate.

			   20)	� Carrying out any other function as is 
mentioned in the terms of reference of 
the Audit Committee.

		  d)	 Review of information by Audit Committee

			�   The Audit Committee shall mandatorily 
review the following information:-

			   1)	� Management discussion and analysis 
of financial conditions and results of 
operations;

			   2)	� Statement of significant related 
party transactions (as defined by 
the audit committee), submitted by 
management;

			   3)	� Management letters/ letters of internal 
control weakness issued by the 
Statutory Auditors;

			   4)	� Internal Audit Reports relating to 
internal control weakness; and

			   5) 	� The appointment, removal and terms 
of remuneration of the Chief Internal 
Auditors shall be subject to review by 
the Audit Committee. 

			   6)	� statement of deviations, if any. 

	 B.	 Nomination and Remuneration Committee

		  �The Nomination and Remuneration Committee 
consists of Independent and Non-Executive 
Directors to review and recommend payment 
of annual salaries, commission, service 
agreements and other employment conditions 
of the Executive Directors of the Company. The 
committee fixes the remuneration after taking 
into consideration remuneration practices 
followed by Companies of similar size and 
standing in the Industry.

		�  The Committee’s Constitution and terms of 
reference are in compliance with the provisions 
of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 19 of 
the Listing Regulations. 

		�  The Nomination and Remuneration Committee 
comprises of four Directors as its members. 
All the members of the Committee are Non-
Executive Independent Director and have sound 
knowledge of management practices. The 
Chairman of the Committee is a Non-Executive 
Independent Director nominated by the Board. 
The power and role of the Nomination & 
Remuneration Committee is as per guidelines 
set out in Listing Regulations. The constitution of 
the Nomination and Remuneration Committee 
is as under: 

S. 
No

Name of 
Directors

Status Category of  
Membership

1. Mr. Rattan 
Kapur

Chairman Non-Executive 
Independent 
Director

2. Mr. A.P. Gandhi Member Non-Executive 
Independent 
Director

3. Mr. D.D. Gupta Member Non-Executive 
Independent 
Director

4. Mr. Gursaran 
Singh*

Member Non-Executive 
Independent 
Director

		�  *Pursuant to resignation of Mr. Gursaran Singh from 

the Board of the Company, he ceased to be the member 

of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee.

		�  The Nomination & Remuneration Committee 
had met twice during the financial year April 
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1, 2016 to March 31, 2017 to consider and 
recommend to the Board:-

		  1.	� Re-appointment of Mr. Anmol Jain as Joint 
Managing Director of the Company for a 
period of 5(Five) years.

		  2.	� Appointment of Mr. Koji Sawada as  
Director as well as Executive Director of the 
Company, nominee of Stanley, Japan and 
fixation of remuneration. 

			�   The attendance of the Nomination & 
Remuneration Committee Meeting is as 
under:

S. 
No.

Name of  
Directors

No. of Meetings  
Attended

1. Mr. Rattan Kapur 2

2. Mr. A.P. Gandhi 1

3. Mr. D.D. Gupta 2

4. Mr. Gursaran Singh 1

		�  Role of Nomination and Remuneration  
Committee

		  1.	� formulation of the criteria for determining 
qualifications, positive attributes and 
independence of a director and recommend 
to the board of directors a policy relating 
to, the remuneration of the directors, 
key managerial personnel and other 
employees;

		  2.	� formulation of criteria for evaluation of 
performance of independent directors and 
the board of directors;

		  3.	� devising a policy on diversity of board of 
directors;

		  4.	� identifying persons who are qualified 
to become directors and who may be 
appointed in senior management in 
accordance with the criteria laid down, and 
recommend to the board of directors their 
appointment and removal.

		  5.	� whether to extend or continue the term of 
appointment of the independent director, 
on the basis of the report of performance 
evaluation of independent directors.

			   a)	 Remuneration Policy:

				    �The Nomination and Remuneration 
Committee fixes the remuneration 
of the Executive Directors after 
considering various factors such as 
qualification, experience, expertise, 
prevailing remuneration in the 
competitive industries, financial 
position of the Company, etc. The 
remuneration structure comprises 
Basic Salary, Commission, Perquisites 
and Allowances, contribution to 
Provident Fund etc. The remuneration 
policy for Executive Directors is directed 
towards rewarding performance, 
based on review of achievements of 
Executive Directors. The Extract of the 
Remuneration and Evaluation of the 
Performance of the Board of Directors 
Policy is given below:

				    1.1	 Purpose

					�     The Board of Directors believes 
that an equitable remuneration to 
the Executive Management helps 
ensure that the company can 
attract and retain key employees. 
Efforts are made to ensure that 
the remuneration of the Board 
of Directors, Key Managerial 
Personnel (KMP) and other 
employees matches the level in 
comparable companies, whilst 
also taking into consideration 
board members’ required 
competencies, effort and the 
scope of the board work, including 
the number of meetings.

					�     The policy shall ensure that level 
and composition of remuneration 
is reasonable and sufficient 
to attract, retain and motivate 
directors of the quality required to 
run the company successfully.

					�     Section 178 of the Companies 
Act, 2013 and Regulation 19 of the 
Listing Regulations provides that 
the Nomination and Remuneration 
Committee shall formulate 
the criteria for determining 
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qualifications, positive attributes 
and independence of a director 
and recommend to the Board a 
policy, relating to the remuneration 
for the directors, key managerial 
personnel and other employees.

					�     This policy on remuneration of 
Directors and Key Managerial 
Personnel has been formulated by 
the Nomination and Remuneration 
Committee and approved by 
the Board of Directors of the 
Company.

				    1.2	 Objective 

					�     The objective of this policy is to 
lay down a framework in relation 
to remuneration of Directors, KMP 
and other employees. 

			   1.3	 Definition 

				�    “Board” means Board of Directors of 
the Company.

				    “Key Managerial Personnel” means

				    i.	� Managing Director, or Chief 
Executive Officer or Manager and 
in their absence, a Whole-time 
Director;

				    ii.	 Chief Financial Officer;

				    iii.	 Company Secretary

			   1.4	 Applicability & Accountability

				    This Policy is applicable to :

				    a)	� Directors viz. Executive and 
Non-Executive and Independent

				    b)	 Key Managerial Personnel

				    c)	� Other Employees of the Company 

			   1.5	� Nomination and Remuneration  
Committee 

				�    The Committee shall have at least 3 non-
executive directors, out of which one-
half shall be independent directors. If the 
chairperson of the company appointed 
as a member of the Committee, he shall 
not chair such Committee.

				�    The members of the Committee are :

S.No. Name Category
1 Mr. Rattan Kapur Chairman
2 Mr. A.P. Gandhi Member
3 Mr. D.D. Gupta Member
4 Mr. Gursaran 

Singh
Member

 			   1.6	 Committee’s Responsibility 

				�    The key responsibilities of the 
Committee would be as follows :

	 	 	 	 •	 �To guide the Board in relation 
to appointment and removal of 
Directors and Key Managerial 
Personnel.

	 	 	 	 •	 �To evaluate the performance of 
the members of the Board and 
provide necessary report to the 
Board in this regard.

	 	 	 	 •	 �To determine the remuneration 
of Directors and Key Managerial 
Personnel in such a manner that 
involves a balance between fixed 
and incentive pay reflecting short 
and long-term performance 
objectives appropriate to the 
working of the company and its 
goals:

	 	 	 	 •	 �To recommend to the Board on 
Remuneration payable to the 
Directors and Key Managerial 
Personnel.

	 	 	 	 •	 �Delegating any of its powers to 
one or more of its members or 
the Secretary of the Committee

			   1.7	 Frequency of Meetings 

				�    The meeting of the Committee shall be 
held at such regular intervals as may 
be required.

			   1.8	� Matter relating to appointment of Director 
and Key Managerial Personnel 

				    a)	� The Committee shall identify and 
ascertain the integrity, qualification, 
expertise and experience of the 
person for appointment as Director 
and Key Managerial Personnel and 
recommend to the Board his / her 
appointment. While recommending 
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any person for appointment as 
Director, Committee shall keep 
in view the issue with respect to 
Board diversity;

				    b)	� The Committee has discretion 
to decide whether qualification, 
expertise and experience 
possessed by a person are 
sufficient/ satisfactory for the 
concerned position.

				    c)	� The Committee shall ensure that 
any appointment of a person 
as an independent director of 
the Company shall be made in 
accordance with the provisions 
of Section 149, 150 and 152 
read with Schedule IV and other 
applicable provisions of the 
Companies Act, 2013 and the 
Companies (Appointment and 
Qualification of Directors) Rules, 
2014 and Regulation 17 of the 
Listing Regulations.

			   1.9	� Matter relating to the Remuneration 
for the Directors and Key Managerial 
Personnel 

				    a)	� The Committee shall determine 
remuneration structure for 
Directors and Key Managerial 
Personnel taking into account 
factors it deems relevant, 
including but not limited to market 
scenario, business performance 
and practices in comparable 
companies, having due regard 
to financial and commercial 
health of the Company as well as 
prevailing laws and Government/
other guidelines.

				    b)	� The remuneration / commission 
etc. to the Managing Director, 
Whole-time Director and Key 
Managerial Personnel will be 
determined by the Committee 
and recommended to the Board 
for approval. The remuneration / 
commission etc. shall be subject 
to the prior/post approval of the 
shareholders of the Company and 

Central Government, wherever 
required.

				    c)	� If, in any financial year, the 
Company has no profits or 
its profits are inadequate, the 
Company shall pay remuneration 
to its Managing Director/ 
Executive/ Whole-time Director(s) 
in accordance with the provisions 
of Schedule V of the Companies 
Act, 2013 and if the remuneration 
paid is not in compliance with 
such provisions, the same shall be 
subject to the previous approval 
of the Central Government.

				    d)	� Increments to the existing 
remuneration structure may be 
recommended by the Committee 
to the Board, which shall be within 
the overall limits of remuneration 
as prescribed under Companies 
Act, 2013.

				    e)	� Where any insurance is taken 
by the Company on behalf of its 
Managing Director/ Executive/
Whole-time Director, Key 
Managerial Personnel and any 
other employees for indemnifying 
them against any liability, the 
premium paid on such insurance 
shall not be treated as part of the 
remuneration payable to any such 
personnel. However, if such person 
is proved to be guilty, the premium 
paid on such insurance shall be 
treated as part of the remuneration.

			   Remuneration to Independent Director:

			�   The Independent Director shall be paid 
sitting fees for attending meetings of Board 
or Committees thereof as may be decided 
by the Board from time to time. Provided 
that the amount of such fees shall not 
exceed ` One Lac per meeting of the Board 
or Committee.

			�   Remuneration to Other Employees of the 
Company

			�   Employees are assigned grades according 
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to their qualifications and work experience, 
competencies as well as their roles and 
responsibilities in the Company. Individual 
remuneration is determined within the 
appropriate grade and is based on an 
individual’s experience, skill, competencies 
and knowledge relevant to the job and an 
individual’s performance and potential 
contribution to the Company.

			   Term / Tenure

			   a)	� Managing Director/Whole-time  
Director:

				�    The Company shall appoint or re-
appoint any person as its Executive 
Chairman, Managing Director or 
Executive/ Whole Time Director for a 
term not exceeding five years at a time. 
No reappointment shall be made earlier 
than one year before the expiry of term.

			   b)	 Independent Director:

				�    An Independent Director shall hold 
office for a term up to five consecutive 
years on the Board of the Company 
and will be eligible for re-appointment 
on passing of a special resolution by 
the shareholders of the Company.

				�    No Independent Director shall hold 
office for more than two consecutive 
terms, but such Independent Director 
shall be eligible for appointment 
after expiry of three years of ceasing 
to become an Independent Director. 
Provided that an Independent Director 
shall not, during the said period of 
three years, be appointed in or be 

associated with the Company in 
any other capacity, either directly or 
indirectly.

				�    The Terms and conditions of 
appointment of Independent Directors 
uploaded on the website of the 
company and the web link of the same 
is provided here under: http://www.
lumaxindustries.com/pdf/letter-of-
appointment.pdf. 

				�    Performance evaluation criteria for In-
dependent Directors.

				�    The Board is responsible for undertaking 
a formal annual evaluation of its own 
performance, its committees and 
individual Directors as per the provisions 
of Companies Act, 2013 and Listing 
Regulations, with a view to ensure that 
individual Directors and the Board as a 
whole work efficiently and effectively 
in achieving Company’s objectives. 
During the year, the evaluation of the 
Board as a whole, committees and 
all the Directors conducted as per the 
internally designed evaluation process 
approved by the Board. The Evaluation 
of Independent Director was carried out 
taking into account various parameters 
such as – exercises independent objective 
of judgement during board discussion,  
upholds ethical standards of integrity  and 
probity, well informed about the company 
and the external environment in which 
it operates, maintains high level of 
confidentiality, assists the company 
in implementing best corporate 
governance practices etc.

	 b) 	� The details of Remuneration paid to Whole Time Directors during the financial year ended March 31, 
2017 are as follows:

S. 
No.

Name of the  
Directors

Salary
(`)

Perquisites and other 
benefits (`)

Commission
(`)

Total
(`)

1. Mr. Deepak Jain 7,200,000 4,583,506 14,931,347 26,714,853

2. Mr. Anmol Jain 3,120,000 1,560,000 11,938,743 16,618,743

3. Mr. Eiichi Hirooka 288,000 1,773,391 - 2,061,391

4. Mr. Norihisa Sato
(upto 08.08.2016)

102,194 633,115 - 735,309

5. Mr. Koji Sawada
(w.e.f. 09.08.2016)

185,806 616,247 - 802,053
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	 c)	� Details of Commission paid to Non Executive 
Chairman during the financial year ended March 
31, 2017 are as under:

Name of Director Commission (`)

Mr. D.K. Jain 5,969,371

		�  None of the Non-Executive Directors held 
shares in the Company except Mr. D.K. Jain 
who is holding 1938025 (20.73%) equity shares 
of the Company. The Company has no Stock 
Option Scheme and hence, no Stock Options are 
granted to Non-Executive Directors.

		�  The Criteria of making payments to Non-Executive 
Directors has been given on the Company’s 
Website i.e. www.lumaxindustries.com.

		�  The Non-Executive Independent Directors have 
not drawn any remuneration from the Company, 
except sitting fees for attending meetings of the 
Board and Committees.

		�  The Company did not have any pecuniary 
relationship or transactions with the Non-
Executive Independent Directors during the year 
2016-17.

		�  There are no Security/Instruments of the Company 
pending for conversion into Equity Shares.

	 C.	� Share Transfer/Stakeholder Relationship 
Committee

		�  The Company has a Share Transfer/Stakeholder 
Relationship Committee to oversee Investors 
grievances and redressal mechanism and 
recommends measures to improve the level of 
Investors’ services and to look into and decide 
matters pertaining to share transfers, duplicate 
share certificates and related matters. The 
Committee comprises of Managing Director, 
Senior Executive Director, Non-Executive Director 
and Non-Executive Independent Director. The 
composition of this Committee during the year 
April 2016 to March 2017 is as under:

S. 
No.

Name of 
directors

Status Category of 
membership

1. Mr. D.D. 
Gupta

Chairman Non-Executive 
Independent Director

2. Mr. D.K. Jain  Member Non- Executive 
Chairman

3. Mr. Deepak 
Jain  

Member Managing Director  

4. Mr. Eiichi 
Hirooka

Member Senior Executive 
Director

		�  The functioning and terms of reference of 
the Committee are, as prescribed under the 
Listing Regulations with particular reference to 
transfer, dematerialisation and complaints of 
Shareholders etc.

		�  The Quorum for the functioning of the 
Committee is any two Members present. The 
board has delegated the authority for approving 
transfers, transmission etc once in a fortnight 
to the Chairman/ or Company Secretary of the 
Company. A summary of transfer, transmission 
of shares of the Company so approved by the 
Chairman /or Company Secretary is placed at 
every Share Transfer /Stakeholders Relationship 
Committee meeting. The Company obtains from 
a Company Secretary in practice half-yearly 
certificate of Compliance with the share transfer 
formalities as required under regulation 40(9) of 
the Listing Regulations and files a copy of the 
certificate with the Stock Exchanges within the 
prescribed time.

		�  The total complaints received and replied to 
the shareholders during the year ended March 
31, 2017 were 117.  There were no complaints 
which were not solved to the satisfaction of the 
shareholders and pending during the year.

		�  During the year 5 meetings of Committee were 
held. The following is the attendance record at 
the Committee Meeting during the year:

S. No. Name of Director No. of Meetings 
attended

1 Mr. D.D. Gupta 3

2. Mr. D.K. Jain 4

3. Mr. Deepak Jain 5

4 Mr. Eiichi Hirooka 4

	 D.	 Corporate Social Responsibility Committee

		�  The Corporate Social Responsibility Committee 
has been formed pursuant to Section 135 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies 
(Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 
2014, to formulate and recommend to the 
Board, a Corporate Social Responsibility Policy 
indicating the activities to be undertaken by the 
Company as specified in Schedule VII to the Act, 
to recommend the amount of expenditure to be 
incurred on such activities and to monitor the 
Corporate Social Responsibility Policy of the 
company from time to time.
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		�  The Corporate Social Responsibility Committee comprises of Managing Director, Joint Managing Director, 
Non-Executive Chairman and Non-Executive Independent Directors. The Chairman of the Committee is 
Mr. M.C. Gupta, Non-Executive Independent Director. The Composition of Corporate Social Responsibility 
Committee during the year April 2016 to March 2017 is as under:

S. No. Name of Directors Status Category of Membership No. of meetings  
attended

1. Mr. M.C. Gupta Chairman Non-Executive Independent Director 3

2. Mr. A.P Gandhi Member Non-Executive Independent Director 3

3. Mr. D.K. Jain  Member Non Executive Chairman 2

4. Mr. Deepak Jain  Member Managing Director  2

5. Mr. Anmol Jain Member Joint Managing Director 2

	 E.	 Policy on Sexual Harassment

		�  In accordance with the provisions of 
Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace 
(Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 
2013, the Company has adopted the “Prevention 
of Sexual Harassment at Workplace Policy” and 
constituted an Internal Complaints Committee 
for Prohibition, Prevention and Redressal of 
Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace 
and matters connected therewith or incidental 
thereto covering all the related aspects. During 
the year, no such complaints were received by 
the Company.

4.	 COMPLIANCE OFFICER OF THE COMPANY:

	� Mr. Shwetank Tiwari, Company Secretary is the 
Compliance Officer of the Company. He is primarily 
responsible to ensure compliance with applicable 
statutory requirements and is the interface between 
the management and regulatory authorities for 
governance matters. 

5.	 GENERAL BODY MEETING

	� The details of Annual General Meeting (AGMs) held 
in the last three years are as follows: 

Financial 
year

Date Time Location

2013-14 22-08-2014 10.30 A.M Air Force Auditorium, 
Subroto Park,
New Delhi

2014-15 19-08-2015 10.30 A.M Air Force Auditorium, 
Subroto Park,
New Delhi

2015-16 08-08-2016 10.30 A.M Air Force Auditorium, 
Subroto Park,
New Delhi

	� Special Resolutions passed in previous three Annual 
General Meetings (AGM).

	 (i)	 AGM held on 22-08-2014:

		  a)	� Appointment of Mr. Norihisa Sato as Director 
as well as Executive Director of the Company.

		  b)	� Special Resolution under section 180(1)(c) 
and 180(1)(a) of the Companies Act, 2013 
for the Borrowing powers of the Board of 
Directors and creation of security on assets 
of the Company.

	 (ii)	 AGM held on 19-08-2015:

		  a)	� Re-appointment of Mr. Eiichi Hirooka as 
Senior Executive Director for a period of 
3 years

		  b)	� Increase in Remuneration of Mr. Deepak 
Jain, Managing Director of the Company.

		  c)	� Change in designation of Mr. Anmol Jain as 
Joint Managing Director of the Company

	 (iii)	 AGM held on 08-08-2016:

		  a)	� Re-appointment of Mr. Deepak Jain as 
Managing Director for a period of 5 years

		  b)	� Re-appointment of Mr. Anmol Jain as Joint 
Managing Director for a period of 5 years

		�  There were no ordinary or special resolution 
that needed to be passed through Postal Ballot 
process during the year 2016-17. 

6. 	 CODE OF CONDUCT

	� The Company has adopted a Code of Conduct 
for all Board Members and Senior Employees 
of the Company. All Board Members and Senior 
Management Personnel have affirmed compliance 
with the Code of Conduct on annual basis. The Annual 
Report contains a declaration to this effect signed by 
the Managing Director of the Company. The Code of 
Conduct has already been posted on the website of 
Company for general viewing.
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7.	 OTHER DISCLOSURES 

	 a.	� During 2016-17, other than the transactions 
entered in the normal course of business and 
reported as the related party transactions in 
the annual accounts, the Company had not 
entered any materially significant related party 
transactions i.e. transaction of material nature 
with its Promoters/ Director/Senior Employees 
or relatives etc., which could have a potential 
conflict with the interest of Company at large. 

	 b.	� The Audit Committee is briefed with all related 
party transactions undertaken by the Company.

	 c.	� The Senior Employees have made disclosures 
to the Board that they did not have personal 
interest in any material financial and commercial 
transactions that could result in a conflict with 
the interest of the Company at large.

	 d.	� The Company has a Code of Conduct for its 
Board and Senior Employees as per Listing 
Regulations and the same is available at the 
Company’s website. The Company has obtained 
a compliance certificate from all concerned.

	 e.	� There has been no Non-Compliance penalties/
strictures imposed on the Company by Stock 
Exchange(s) or SEBI or any other statutory 
authority, on any matter related to capital 
markets, during the last three years.

	 f.	� The Company follows the Accounting Standards 
laid down by the Institute of Chartered Accountants 
of India, and there has been no deviation in the 
accounting treatment during the year.

	 g.	� The Company has a Whistle Blower Policy to 
enable its Directors and Employees to report to 
the Management their concerns about unethical 
behavior, actual or suspected fraud or violation 
of the Company’s code of conduct or ethics 
policy. The Company promotes a favorable 
environment for employees to have an open 
access to the respective functional Heads, 
Executive Directors, Chairman and Managing 
Director, so as to ensure ethical and fair conduct 
of the business of the Company.

	 h.	� The Company has complied with all the 
mandatory requirements of the SEBI    (Listing 
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015.

	 i.	� The Company has formulated a Code of Conduct 
for prevention of Insider Trading in the Shares 

of the Company in accordance with the SEBI 
(Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015.

8.	 MEANS OF COMMUNICATION

	� The quarterly/yearly results of the Company are 
published in leading and widely  circulated English 
dailies viz. (1) Financial Express – All Editions 
(English) (2) Jansatta, New Delhi (Hindi Edition) 

	 NSE Electronic Application System (NEAPS)

	� The NEAPS is a web based application designed by 
NSE for corporates. All periodical compliance filings 
like shareholding pattern, corporate governance 
report, media releases, among others are filed 
electronically on NEAPS.

	� BSE Corporate Compliance & Listing Centre (the 
Listing Centre)

	� BSE’s Listing centre is a web-based application 
designed for corporates. All periodical compliance 
filings like shareholding pattern, corporate 
governance report, media releases, among others 
are also filed electronically on the Listing Centre.

	� The Company’s financial results and official news 
releases are displayed on the Company’s website at 
www.lumaxindustries.com.

	� The transcript of the Analyst/ Investor conference call 
is posted on the website of the company.

9.	� MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
REPORT FORMS PART OF THE DIRECTORS REPORT

10.	 General Shareholders information

	 a)	 Annual General	 : 	� The 36th Annual General
		  Meeting		  �Meeting is scheduled as 

under:

		  Date	 :	 July 22, 2017

		  Time	 :	 10.30 AM

		�  Venue	 :	 Air Force Auditorium,
				    Subroto Park, 
				    New Delhi - 110 010

	 b)	 Date of Book :	� July 15, 2017 to July 22, 2017
		  Closure	 (Both days inclusive)

	 c)	 Registered :	� Lumax Industries Limited
		  Office	� B-85-86, Mayapuri Industrial 

Area, Phase – I,
			   New Delhi - 1100 64

	 d)	 Financial Year :	 1st April to 31st March 
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	 e)	 �For the Financial Year 2016-17 results were  
announced on:

Adoption of Quarterly  
Results Ended

Dates

June 30, 2016 August 08, 2016
September 30, 2016 November 12, 2016
December 31, 2016 February 11, 2017
March 31, 2017  
(Audited Annual Accounts)

May 13, 2017

	 f)	 Financial Calendar for 2017-18 (Provisional).

Adoption of Quarterly  
Results Ended

Tentative Calendar #

June 30, 2017 2nd week of August 2017
September 30, 2017 2nd week of  

November 2017
December 31, 2017 2nd week of  

February 2018
March 31, 2018  
(Audited Annual Accounts)

4th week of May 2018

		�  # �Within 45/60 days of the end of the Quarter, as per 

Listing Regulations.

	 g)	 Dividend & Dividend Payment Date:

		�  A dividend of ` 14.50/- per share (145%) has 
been recommended by the Board of Directors 
for the Financial Year 2016-17 which is subject 
to the approval of the shareholders at the 
ensuing Annual General Meeting. For Demat 
shareholders and Physical shareholders who 
have opted for NECS/ ECS, Dividend Amount 
of ` 14.50/- per share will be credited directly to 
their respective bank accounts through NECS/ 
ECS, wherever such facilities are available, soon 
after the declaration of dividend in the AGM. 
For others, Dividend Warrants will be posted by 
August 16, 2017 (tentative)

	 h)	 Unclaimed Dividends:

		�  Unclaimed Dividend for the Financial year 
2009-2010 shall become transferable to the 
Investor Education & Protection Fund by last 
week of September, 2017.  The Company has 
been writing periodical reminders to all the 
shareholders as a part of sending Notice of the 
Annual General Meeting, whose Dividends are 
lying unpaid in the Unpaid Dividend Account. 
Members who have not encashed their Dividend 
for the Financial year 2009-10 and onwards are 
therefore, requested to make their claims to the 
Company immediately.

		�  Transfer of underlying share in to Investor 
Education and Protection Fund (IEPF) in 
cases where unclaimed dividends have been 
transferred to IEPF.

		�  In terms of section 124 of the Companies Act, 
2013 read with Investor Education & Protection 
Fund (IEPF) Authority (Accounting, Auditing 
transfer and refund) Rules 2016,the company 
is required to transfer the shares in respect of 
which dividends have remained unclaimed for 
a period of seven consecutive years to the IEPF 
account established by the central Government.

		�  The Shareholders may note that both the 
unclaimed dividend and corresponding shares 
transferred to IEPF including all benefits accruing 
on such shares, if any can be claimed back from 
IEPF following the procedures prescribed in the 
Rules. No claim shall lie in respect of thereof 
with the Company.

	 i)	 Share Transfer System:

		�  All work related to Share Registry, both in 
physical form and electronic form, is handled 
by the Company’s Registrar and Share Transfer 
Agent. The Company has appointed M/s Karvy 
Computershare Pvt. Ltd. as the Registrar & 
Share Transfer Agent. The Share transfers in 
physical form are approved by the Chairman and 
Company Secretary on fortnightly basis and the 
same were approved and ratified by the Share 
Transfer/ Stakeholder Relationship Committee. 

		�  The total number of shares transferred/
transmitted during the Financial Year 2016-17 
was 3910, which were registered and returned 
to the respective transferees within a period 
ranging from one to two weeks, provided the 
documents lodged with the Registrars/Company 
are clear in all respects.

	 j)	� Registrar and Share Transfer Agent (For Physical 
as well as for Demat Segment)

		  Address 	:	� M/s Karvy Computershare Pvt. Ltd.
					     Unit: Lumax Industries Limited
					�     Karvy Selenium Tower-B,  

Plot No.31-32, Gachibowli, 
Financial District, Nanakramguda, 
Hyderabad-500008

		  Tel : 			  040 -67162222

		  Fax : 		  040 -23001153
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		  Toll Free No : 	1800-3454-001

		  E-mail : 		  einward.ris@karvy.com

	 k)	 Investors Correspondence:

		�  All queries of investors regarding the 
Company’s shares in Physical / Demat form may 
be sent either to the Registrar & Share Transfer 
Agent or to the Secretarial & Corporate Affairs 
Department of the Company at the following 
address:

		  Address	 :	� Lumax Industries Limited  
Plot No.16, Sector-18, Maruti 
Complex, Gurgaon, Haryana

		  Tel	 : 		  0124-2341090, 2341324

		  Fax	 : 		  0124-2342149

		  E-mail	 : 	 lumaxshare@lumaxmail.com

		  Website	 : 	 www.lumaxindustries.com

	 l)	 Listing on Stock Exchanges:

Stock Exchange Scrip Code

BSE Limited 517206

National Stock Exchange of 
India Limited

LUMAXIND 

	 m)	 ISIN No. :	 INE162B01018

		�  Listing Fee for the Financial Year 2017-18 has 
been paid to the BSE Limited and National Stock 
Exchange of India Limited.

	 n)	� Outstanding GDR’s/ADR’s/Warrants or any con-
vertible Instrument, Conversion Date and Likely 
impact on Equity

		�  There are no convertible instruments which 
could result in increasing the equity capital of 
the Company and the Company has not issued 
any GDR/ADR/FCCB etc.

	 o)	� Shareholding Pattern of the Company as on March 31, 2017

S. 
No

Category No. of Shares 
held

% age of Shareholding

A. Promoters’ Holding
1. Promoters

2.

Indian Promoters
Foreign Promoters
Persons acting in concert

3,368,250
3,505,399

-

36.03
37.50

-
Sub – Total( A ) 6,873,649 73.53

B. Non-Promoters Holding
3. Institutional Investors

a	 Mutual Funds

b	� Banks, Financial Institutions, Insurance Companies, 
Central/State Govt. Institutions/Non-Government 
Institutions. 

c.	� Foreign Institutional Investors/Foreign  
Portfolio Investors.

120,157
2,632

205,548

1.28
0.03

2.20

Sub – Total (B3) 328,337 3.51
4. Others:

a  Bodies Corporate & Clearing Member

b  Indian Public

c  NRIs (Including Foreign Company)

415,356
1,694,273

36,117

4.44
18.13
0.39

Sub – Total (B4) 2,145,746 22.96
Sub –Total ( B ) (B3+B4) 2,474,083 26.47

gRAND Total ( a + b ) 9,347,732 100.00
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	 p)	 Distribution of Shareholding as on March 31, 2017

Range of Shares No. of 
Share-holders

% of 
Shareholders

Amount (`) % of Equity Capital

1
5,001 
10,001 
20,001
30,001
40,001
50,001 
100,001 

 5,000
10,000
20,000
30,000
40,000
50,000
100,000
& above

18080
230
97
39
17
9

24
32

97.58
1.24
0.52
0.21
0.09
0.05
0.13
0.18

8577190
1754650
1441410
960740
613920
415390

1756970
77957050

9.17
1.88
1.54
1.03
0.66
0.44
1.88

83.40
Total 18528 100.00 93477320 100.00

	 q)	 Dematerialisation of Shares:
		�  As per notifications issued by the Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI), the trading in Company’s 

shares is permitted only in dematerialised form. In order to enable the shareholders to hold their shares in 
electronic form and to facilitate scripless trading, the Company has enlisted its shares with National Securities 
Depository Limited (NSDL) and Central Depository Services (India) Limited (CDSL). 

	 r)	 Status of Dematerialisation & Liquidity as on March 31, 2017: 

 		  Dematerialisation:

No. of Shares Dematerialised 9,086,066 (97.20% of the total share capital)
No. of Shareholders in Demat form 10,929 (58.99% of the total No. of Shareholders)

		  Liquidity:

		�  The Numbers of Shares of the Company traded in the Stock Exchange for the financial year 2016-2017 is given 
below:

Particulars BSE NSE Total
No of shares Traded 1,712,054 5,579,592 7,291,646
% of total Equity 18.31% 59.69% 78.00%

	 s)	 Stock Market Data during the Financial Year 2016-17

		�  The monthly High and Low Prices of the Shares of the Company Listed on BSE Limited (BSE) and National 
Stock Exchange of India Limited (NSE) along with the BSE “Sensex” and NSE “Nifty” are as follows:

MONTH

BSE NSE

Share Price          Sensex    Share Price       S&P CNX Nifty 

High (`) Low (`) High Low High (`) Low (`) High Low

April 2016 466.70 412.00 26100.54 24523.20 466.15 410.75 7992.00 7516.85

May 2016 571.90 430.50 26837.20 25057.93 572.00 422.10 8213.60 7678.35

June 2016 744.00 492.00 27105.41 25911.33 744.00 494.05 8308.15 7927.05

July 2016 805.60 685.00 28240.20 27034.14 805.00 687.65 8674.70 8287.55

August 2016 814.25 649.00 28532.25 27627.97 812.80 650.50 8819.20 8518.15

September 2016 859.00 650.00 29077.28 27716.78 859.90 652.00 8968.70 8555.20

October 2016 981.20 821.50 28477.65 27488.30 980.00 820.00 8806.95 8506.15

November 2016 989.00 685.05 28029.80 25717.93 996.00 689.10 8669.60 7916.40

December 2016 822.00 704.40 26803.76 25753.74 826.95 708.80 8274.95 7893.80

January 2017 1180.00 755.00 27980.39 26447.06 1179.95 749.55 8672.70 8133.80

February 2017 1424.00 1040.60 29065.31 27590.10 1423.00 1041.25 8982.15 8537.50

March 2017 1410.00 1274.05 29824.62 28716.21 1404.00 1276.00 9218.40 8860.10
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	 (t)	� The details of the Stock Performance vis – a – vis S&P CNX Nifty in graphical manner and Monthly Closing 
Share Price on NSE and BSE from April 2016 to March 2017 is given below: 

		  Monthly Closing Share Price on BSE & NSE along with Sensex and Nifty Points 

MONTH BSE (`) SENSEX NSE (`) NIFTY
April 2016 444.80 25606.62 442.65 7849.80
May 2016 494.30 26667.96 495.45 8160.10
June 2016 709.35 26999.72 708.60 8287.75
July 2016 791.50 28051.86 792.15 8638.50
August 2016 652.70 28452.17 656.80 8786.20
September 2016 821.00 27865.96 818.00 8611.15
October 2016 970.50 27930.21 970.15 8625.70
November 2016 787.95 26652.81 788.50 8224.50
December 2016 749.20 26626.46 750.35 8185.80
January 2017 1050.25 27655.96 1050.05 8561.30
February 2017 1360.85 28743.32 1363.85 8879.60
March 2017 1390.60 29620.50 1379.35 9173.75

	 u)	 Plant Locations of the Company as on March 31, 2017

		  The Company has following manufacturing units:

S. No. Plant Locations

1. Plot No.16, Sector-18, Maruti Complex, Gurgaon, Haryana.

2. Plot No.6, Industrial Area, Dharuhera, District Rewari, Haryana.

3. Plot No.195-195A, Sector 4, Phase-II, Bawal, Distt. Rewari, Haryana. 

4. Plot No. 51, Sector 11, IIE, Pant Nagar, Distt. Udham Singh Nagar, Uttarakhand.

5. Plot No. 5, Industrial Park-II, Village Salempur Mehdood, Haridwar, Uttarakhand

6. 608-609, Chakan Talegaon Road, Mahalunge Ingle, Chakan, Pune, Maharashtra.

7. D2-43/2, M.I.D.C. Industrial Area, Chinchwad, Pune, Maharashtra.

8. Plot No. D-1, Vendors Park, Sanand, Distt. Ahmedabad, Gujarat.

9. Plot No.69, Phase-II, Bidadi Industrial Area, Sector 2, Bangalore, Karnataka

	 The performance of the Company’s Share related to Nifty (April 2016 to March 2017) is given in chart below:
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11.	 UNCLAIMED SUSPENSE ACCOUNT

	� Pursuant to Regulation 34(3) read with Schedule V 
of the Listing Regulations, the Company reports the 
following details in respect of the equity shares lying 
in the suspense account:

Particulars No. of 

Shareholders

No. of Shares

Aggregate number 

of shareholders and 

outstanding shares at the 

beginning of the year i.e. as 

on April 1, 2016

661 20537

Number of shareholders 

who approached for issue/

transfer of Shares during 

the year 2016-17

3 60

Number of shareholders to 

whom shares were issued/

transferred

3 60

Aggregate number of 

shareholders and the 

Outstanding shares lying 

at the end of the year i.e. 

March 31, 2017

658 20477

	� The members who have not claimed the shares from 
the above returned undelivered  cases are requested 

to contact the Registrar-M/s Karvy Computershare 
Pvt Ltd at the address given above. The voting rights 
on the 20,477 shares shall remain frozen till the 
rightful owner of such shares claims the shares.

12.	 Non-Mandatory requirements 

	� The Company is complying with mandatory 
requirements and partly complying with the non-
mandatory requirements such as:

	 •	 �The Chairman of the Company is Non- Executive 
and is entitled to maintain a separate office 
space at the Company’s expenses.

13.	 CEO/CFO CERTIFICATE

	� The Managing Director, Mr. Deepak Jain and the 
Chief Financial Officer, Mr. Shruti Kant Rustagi have 
furnished the requisite certificate to the Board of 
Directors pursuant to Regulation 17(8) of the Listing 
Regulations. 

	 Nomination Facility

	� Shareholders holding shares in physical form and 
desirous of making a nomination in respect of their 
shareholding in the Company, as permitted under 
Section 72 of the Companies Act, 2013, read with the 
Companies (Share Capital and Debentures) Rules, 2015 
are requested to submit to the Company nomination 
in the prescribed Form SH-13 for this purpose. 
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Annexure - G

A.	 �Information pursuant to Section 197 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 5(1) of Companies (Appointment 
and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014

Name of Directors & Key  
Managerial Personnel

Designation Ratio of Remuneration to Median 
remuneration of employees

Mr. Deepak Jain Managing Director 70.61

Mr. Anmol Jain Joint Managing Director 29.48

Mr. Eiichi Hirooka Senior Executive Director 6.77

Mr. Koji Sawada Executive Director 4.19

Mr. Shruti Kant Rustagi Chief Financial Officer 16.66

Mr. Shwetank Tiwari Company Secretary 4.73

Notes:

	 1.	� The number of permanent employees as on 31st March, 2017 was 2292.

	 2.	� The percentage increase in the median remuneration of employees for the financial year was 32.85%.

	 3.	� The average percentage increase made in the salaries of employees excluding Key Managerial Personnel for the financial 
year was 22.25%. The percentage increase in Remuneration of Key Managerial Personnel was 11.12%.

	 4.	� The Percentage increase in remuneration of each director, chief financial officer, company secretary ranges between 0% to 
27%. The remuneration components in case of directors includes commission which is linked with the profitability of the 
Company.

	 5.	� The remuneration of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and other employees is in accordance with the Remuneration 
Policy of the Company provided under the section ‘Report on Corporate Governance’, which forms part of the Report and 
Accounts.



70 Lumax Industries Limited

a.	� We certify to the Board that we have reviewed 
Financial Statements and Cash Flow Statement for 
the year ended March 31, 2017 and that to the best of 
our knowledge and belief;

	 (i)	� these statements do not contain any materially 
untrue statement or omit any material fact or 
contain statements that might be misleading;

	 (ii)	� these statements together present a true 
and fair view of the Company’s affairs and 
are in compliance with existing accounting 
standards, applicable laws and regulations.

b.	� There are, to the best of our knowledge and belief, no 
transactions entered into by the Company during the 
year which are fraudulent, illegal or violative of the 
Company’s Code of Conduct.

c.	� We accept responsibility for establishing and 
maintaining internal controls for financial reporting 
and that we have evaluated the effectiveness of the 

Certificate of Compliance of Code of Conduct by Board of Directors and 
Senior Management Personnel

I, Deepak Jain, Managing Director of the Company hereby certify that the Board of Directors and the Senior Management 
Personnel have affirmed compliance of the Code of Conduct of the Company for the Financial Year 2016 - 2017.

Place: Gurugram		  (Deepak Jain) 
Date: May 13, 2017		  Managing Director

	 Place: Gurugram	 (Shruti Kant Rustagi)	 (Deepak Jain)
	 Date: May 13, 2017	 Chief Financial Officer	 Managing Director

CEO and CFO Certificate
under Regulation 17(8) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015

internal control systems of the Company pertaining 
to financial reporting and we have disclosed to the 
Auditors and the Audit Committee deficiencies in the 
design or operation of such internal controls, if any, 
of which we are aware and the steps we have taken 
or propose to take to rectify these deficiencies, if any. 

d.	 We have indicated to the Auditors and the Audit 
Committee

(i)	 significant changes in internal control over 
financial reporting during the year, if any;

	 (ii)	� significant changes in accounting policies during 
the year and that the same have been disclosed 
in the notes to the financial statements, if any; 
and

	 (iii)	� There were no instances of fraud of which we 
have become aware and the involvement therein, 
if any, of the management or an employee 
having a significant role in the Company’s 
internal control system over financial reporting.
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To 

The Members of Lumax Industries Limited

We have examined the compliance of conditions of 
corporate governance by Lumax Industries Limited for 
the year ended on March 31, 2017 as stipulated in Chapter 
IV of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing 
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 
2015 pursuant to the listing agreement of the said 
Company with Stock Exchange(s).

The compliance of conditions of corporate governance is 
the responsibility of the management. Our examination 
was limited to procedures and implementation thereof, 
adopted by the Company for ensuring the compliance of 
the conditions of the Corporate Governance. It is neither 
an audit nor an expression of opinion on the financial 
statements of the Company.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and 
according to the explanations given to us, We certify 
that the Company has complied with the conditions of 

Auditors’ Certificate

Corporate Governance as stipulated in the provisions as 
specified in Chapter IV of Securities and Exchange Board 
of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015 pursuant to the listing agreement of 
the said Company with stock exchange(s).

We further state that such compliance is neither an 
assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor the 
efficiency or effectiveness with which the management 
has conducted the affairs of the Company.

For S.R. Batliboi & CO. LLP 
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 301003E/E300005

per Vikas Mehra
Partner
Membership Number: 94421

Place : New Delhi
Date: May 13, 2017
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To the Members of Lumax Industries Limited

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying standalone financial 
statements of Lumax Industries Limited (“the Company”), 
which comprises the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2017, 
the Statement of Profit and Loss and Cash Flow Statement 
for the year then ended, and a summary of significant 
accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the 
matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 
2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these 
standalone financial statements that give a true and fair 
view of the financial position, financial performance and 
cash flows of the Company in accordance with accounting 
principles generally accepted in India, including the 
Accounting Standards specified under section 133 of 
the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) 
Rules, 2014 and the Companies (Accounting Standards) 
Amendment Rules, 2016. This responsibility also 
includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in 
accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding 
of the assets of the Company and for preventing and 
detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and 
application of appropriate accounting policies; making 
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; 
and the design, implementation and maintenance of 
adequate internal financial control that were operating 
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of 
the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and 
presentation of the financial statements that give a true 
and fair view and are free from material misstatement, 
whether due to fraud or error. 

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these 
standalone financial statements based on our audit. We 
have taken into account the provisions of the Act, the 
accounting and auditing standards and matters which 
are required to be included in the audit report under the 
provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder. We 
conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on 
Auditing, issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants 
of India, as specified under Section 143(10) of the Act. 
Those Standards require that we comply with ethical 

requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain 
reasonable assurance about whether the financial 
statements are free from material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit 
evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the 
financial statements. The procedures selected depend 
on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment 
of the risks of material misstatement of the financial 
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making 
those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal 
financial control relevant to the Company’s preparation 
of the financial statements that give a true and fair view 
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate 
in the circumstances. An audit also includes evaluating 
the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the 
reasonableness of the accounting estimates made by the 
Company’s Directors, as well as evaluating the overall 
presentation of the financial statements. We believe that 
the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and 
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on 
the standalone financial statements.

Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our information and 
according to the explanations given to us, the standalone 
financial statements give the information required by the 
Act in the manner so required and give a true and fair view 
in conformity with the accounting principles generally 
accepted in India of the state of affairs of the Company as 
at March 31, 2017, its profit, and its cash flows for the year 
ended on that date.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1.	� As required by the Companies (Auditor’s report) 
Order, 2016 (“the Order”) issued by the Central 
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of 
section 143 of the Act, we give in the Annexure 1 a 
statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 
and 4 of the Order.

2.	� As required by section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that: 

	 (a)	� We have sought and obtained all the information 
and explanations which to the best of our 
knowledge and belief were necessary for the 
purpose of our audit;

Independent Auditor’s Report
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	 (b)	� In our opinion proper books of account as 
required by law have been kept by the Company 
so far as it appears from our examination of 
those books;

	 (c)	 �The Balance Sheet, Statement of Profit and Loss, 
and Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this Report 
are in agreement with the books of account;

	 (d)	� In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone 
financial statements comply with the Accounting 
Standards specified under section 133 of the Act, 
read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) 
Rules, 2014 and the Companies (Accounting 
Standards) Amendment Rules, 2016;

	 (e)	� On the basis of written representations received 
from the directors as on March 31, 2017, and 
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none 
of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 
2017, from being appointed as a director in terms 
of section 164 (2) of the Act;

	 (f)	� With respect to the adequacy of the internal 
financial controls over financial reporting of 
the Company and the operating effectiveness 
of such controls, refer to our separate Report in 
“Annexure 2” to this report;

	 (g)	� With respect to the other matters to be included 
in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 
11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 
2014, in our opinion and to the best of our 
information and according to the explanations 
given to us:

		  i.	� The Company has disclosed the impact of 
pending litigations on its financial position 
in its financial statements – Refer Note 34 to 
the financial statements; 

		  ii.	� The Company has made provision, 
as required under the applicable law 
or accounting standards, for material 
foreseeable losses, if any, on long-term 
contracts including derivative contract; 

		  iii.	� There has been no delay in transferring 
amounts, required to be transferred, to the 
Investor Education and Protection Fund by 
the Company.

		  iv.	� The Company has provided requisite 
disclosures in Note 35 to these standalone 
financial statements as to the holding of 
Specified Bank Notes on November 8, 2016 
and December 30, 2016 as well as dealings 
in Specified Bank Notes during the period 
from November 8, 2016 to December 30, 
2016. Based on our audit procedures and 
relying on the management representation 
regarding the holding and nature of cash 
transactions, including Specified Bank 
Notes, we report that these disclosures are 
in accordance with the books of accounts 
maintained by the Company and as 
produced to us by the Management.

For S.R. Batliboi & CO. LLP 
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 301003E/E300005

per Vikas Mehra
Partner
Membership Number: 94421

Place of Signature: New Delhi
Date: May 13, 2017
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(i)	 (a)	� The company has maintained proper records 
showing full particulars, including quantitative 
details and situation of fixed assets.

	 (b)	� Fixed assets have been physically verified 
by the management during the year and no 
material discrepancies were identified on such 
verification.

	 (c)	� According to the information and explanations 
given by the management, the title deeds of 
immovable properties included in property, 
plant and equipment/ fixed assets are held in the 
name of the company.

(ii)	� The inventory has been physically verified by the 
management during the year. In our opinion, the 
frequency of verification is reasonable. No material 
discrepancies were noticed on such physical 
verification. Inventories lying with third parties 
have been confirmed by them as at year end and 
no material discrepancies were noticed in respect of 
such confirmations.

(iii)	� According to the information and explanations given 
to us, the Company has not granted any loans, secured 
or unsecured to companies, firms, Limited Liability 
Partnerships or other parties covered in the register 
maintained under section 189 of the Companies 
Act, 2013. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(iii)
(a), (b) and (c) of the Order are not applicable to the 
Company and hence not commented upon.

(iv)	� In our opinion and according to the information 
and explanations given to us, there are no loans, 
investments, guarantees, and securities granted in 
respect of which provisions of section 185 and 186 of 

Annexure referred to in paragraph 1 under the heading “Report on other legal and 
regulatory requirements” of our report. (Annexure 1)
Re: Lumax Industries Limited (‘the Company’)

the Companies Act 2013 are applicable and hence not 
commented upon.

(v)	 The Company has not accepted any deposits within 
the meaning of Sections 73 to 76 of the Act and the 
Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014 (as 
amended). Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(v) 
of the Order are not applicable.

(vi)	 We have broadly reviewed the books of account 
maintained by the Company pursuant to the 
rules made by the Central Government for the 
maintenance of cost records under section 148(1) of 
the Companies Act, 2013, related to the manufacture 
of auto components (electricals or electronic 
machinery), and are of the opinion that prima facie, 
the specified accounts and records have been made 
and maintained. We have not, however, made a 
detailed examination of the same. 

(vii)	 (a) �The Undisputed statutory dues including provident 
fund, employees’ state insurance, income-tax, 
sales-tax, service tax, duty of custom, duty of 
excise, value added tax, cess and other statutory 
dues have generally been regularly deposited 
with the appropriate authorities though there has 
been a slight delay in a few cases.

	 (b)	� According to the information and explanations 
given to us, no undisputed amounts payable 
in respect of provident fund, employees’ state 
insurance, income-tax, service tax, sales-tax, duty 
of custom, duty of excise, value added tax, cess and 
other material statutory dues were outstanding, at 
the year end, for a period of more than six months 
from the date they became payable.

	 (c)	� According to the records of the Company, the dues outstanding of income-tax, sales-tax, service tax, duty of 
custom, duty of excise, value added tax and cess on account of any dispute, are as follows:

Name of the statute Nature of dues Amount (`) Period to which 
the amount relates

Forum where dispute is 
pending

Service Tax, Finance
Act, 1994

Demand for disallowance of Cenvat credit in 
respect of service tax paid on certain services 
i.e. catering and CHA (export).

927,306 2010-11 and 2012-13 Deputy Commissioner Central 
excise 

Service Tax, Finance
Act, 1994

Demand for disallowance of Cenvat credit 
against outward transportation.

15,48,280 2011- 2015 Commissioner (Appeals) and 
Deputy Commissioner (Appeals) 
of Central Excise Pune

The Central Sales Tax
Act, 1956

Demand against non- submission of  
C Forms and H Forms

92,49,222 From 1997-98 to 
2011-12

Joint Sales Tax Commissioner 
and Sales Tax Appellate 
Tribunal
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(viii)	In our opinion and according to the information 
and explanations given by the management, the 
Company has not defaulted in repayment of dues to 
a financial institution or bank or debentures or any 
other government dues during the year.

(ix)	 According to the information and explanations given 
by the management, the Company has not raised any 
money way of initial public offer / further public offer 
/ debt instruments and term loans hence, reporting 
under clause (ix) is not applicable to the Company 
and hence not commented upon.

(x)	  Based upon the audit procedures performed for the 
purpose of reporting the true and fair view of the 
financial statements and according to the information 
and explanations given by the management, we 
report that no fraud by the company or no fraud / 
material fraud on the company by the officers and 
employees of the Company has been noticed or 
reported during the year. 

(xi)	 According to the information and explanations given 
by the management, the managerial remuneration 
has been paid / provided in accordance with the 
requisite approvals mandated by the provisions of 
section 197 read with Schedule V to the Companies 
Act, 2013. 

(xii)	 In our opinion, the Company is not a Nidhi company. 
Therefore, the provisions of clause 3(xii) of the order 
are not applicable to the Company and hence not 
commented upon.

(xiii)	According to the information and explanations given 
by the management, transactions with the related 
parties are in compliance with section 177 and 

188 of Companies Act, 2013 where applicable and 
the details have been disclosed in the notes to the 
financial statements, as required by the applicable 
accounting standards.

(xiv)	According to the information and explanations given 
to us and on an overall examination of the balance 
sheet, the company has not made any preferential 
allotment or private placement of shares or fully or 
partly convertible debentures during the year under 
review and hence, reporting requirements under 
clause 3(xiv) are not applicable to the company and, 
not commented upon. 

(xv)	 According to the information and explanations given 
by the management, the Company has not entered 
into any non-cash transactions with directors or 
persons connected with him as referred to in section 
192 of Companies Act, 2013.

(xvi)	According to the information and explanations given 
to us, the provisions of section 45-IA of the Reserve 
Bank of India Act, 1934 are not applicable to the 
Company.

For S.R. Batliboi & CO. LLP 
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 301003E/E300005

per Vikas Mehra
Partner
Membership Number: 94421

Place of Signature: New Delhi
Date: May 13, 2017
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To the Members of  
Lumax Industries Limited

We have audited the internal financial controls over 
financial reporting of Lumax Industries Limited (“the 
Company”) as of March  31,  2017 in conjunction with 
our audit of the standalone financial statements of the 
Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial 
Controls

The Company’s Management is responsible for 
establishing and maintaining internal financial controls 
based on the internal control over financial reporting 
criteria established by the Company considering the 
essential components of internal control stated in the 
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls 
over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of 
Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities 
include the design, implementation and maintenance of 
adequate internal financial controls that were operating 
effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct 
of its business, including adherence to the Company’s 
policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention 
and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and 
completeness of the accounting records, and the 
timely preparation of reliable financial information, as 
required under the Companies Act, 2013. 

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s 
internal financial controls over financial reporting based 
on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with 
the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls 
Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the 
Standards on Auditing as specified under section 143(10) 
of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to 
an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to 
an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued 
by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those 
Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply 
with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit 
to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate 
internal financial controls over financial reporting was 
established and maintained and if such controls operated 
effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit 
evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial 
controls system over financial reporting and their 
operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial 
controls over financial reporting included obtaining 
an understanding of internal financial controls over 
financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material 
weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design 
and operating effectiveness of internal control based on 
the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on 
the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the 
risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, 
whether due to fraud or error. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is 
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit 
opinion on the internal financial controls system over 
financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial 
Reporting 

A company’s internal financial control over financial 
reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable 
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting 
and the preparation of financial statements for external 
purposes in accordance with generally accepted 
accounting principles. A company’s internal financial 
control over financial reporting includes those policies and 
procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records 
that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the 
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; 
(2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are 
recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial 
statements in accordance with generally accepted 
accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures 
of the company are being made only in accordance 
with authorisations of management and directors of the 
company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding 
prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, 
use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have 
a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over 
Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial 
controls over financial reporting, including the possibility 

Annexure -2 to the independent auditor’s report of even date on the standalone 
financial statements of lumax industries limited
Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)
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of collusion or improper management override of controls, 
material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur 
and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation 
of the internal financial controls over financial reporting 
to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal 
financial control over financial reporting may become 
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the 
degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may 
deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, 
an adequate internal financial controls system over 
financial reporting and such internal financial controls 
over financial reporting were operating effectively as at 
March 31, 2017, based on the internal control over financial 

reporting criteria established by the Company considering 
the essential components of internal control stated in the 
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over 
Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of India.

For S.R. Batliboi & CO. LLP 
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 301003E/E300005

per Vikas Mehra
Partner
Membership Number: 94421

Place of Signature: New Delhi
Date: May 13, 2017
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Balance Sheet  
as at March 31, 2017

Amount in `
Particulars Notes As at 

March 31, 2017
As at

 March 31, 2016
I	 EQUITY & LIABILITIES
	 Shareholders’ funds
	 (a)	 Share capital 3  93,477,320  93,477,320 
	 (b)	 Reserves and surplus 4  2,323,071,847  1,948,304,949 

 2,416,549,167  2,041,782,269 
	 Non-Current Liabilities
	 (a)	 Long term borrowings 5  36,376,956  105,728,944 
	 (b)	 Deferred tax liabilities (net) 6  279,439,857  194,418,367 
	 (c)	 Other long term liabilities 7  217,424,739  223,712,544 
	 (d)	 Long term provisions 8  114,598,344  92,716,007 

 647,839,896  616,575,862 
	 Current Liabilities
	 (a)	 Short term borrowings 9  790,221,122  848,253,641 
	 (b)	 Trade payables 10
		  -  Total outstanding due of micro enterprises and small enterprises  1,480,603  722,444 
		  - � Total outstanding due of creditors other than micro enterprises 

and small enterprises
 3,441,231,922  3,096,045,229 

	 (c)	 Other current liabilities 11  1,045,901,865  1,284,420,745 
	 (d)	 Short term provisions 8  69,277,569  55,912,545 

 5,348,113,081  5,285,354,604 
	T OTAL  8,412,502,144  7,943,712,735 
II	 ASSETS
	 Non-Current Assets
	 (a)	 Fixed assets
		  Property, Plant & Equipment                                             12  3,840,814,451  4,054,223,293 
		  Intangible assets                                                13  33,302,237  25,673,979 
		  Capital work in progress                                                 524,819,185  170,377,539 
	 (b)	 Non-Current Investments                                                      14  45,074,204  45,074,204 
	 (c)	 Loans and advances 15  478,305,796  313,950,910 
	 (d)	 Other Non-Current assets 16.2  18,077,240  12,148,876 

4,940,393,113  4,621,448,801 
	 Current Assets
	 (a)	 Current investments 17  987,000  987,000 
	 (b)	 Inventories 18  1,160,454,455  1,045,501,751 
	 (c)	 Trade receivables 16.1  1,909,421,724  1,811,903,475 
	 (d)	 Cash and bank balances 19  13,695,090  34,552,286 
	 (e)	 Loans and advances 15  372,602,325  358,338,177 
	 (f)	 Other current assets 16.2  14,948,437  70,981,245 

 3,472,109,031  3,322,263,934 

	T OTAL 8,412,502,144  7,943,712,735 
	 Summary of significant accounting policies 2.1
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

As per our report of even date

For S. R. Batliboi & CO. LLP	  For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of Lumax Industries Limited
Chartered Accountants
ICAI firm registration number: 301003E/E300005

per Vikas Mehra	 D. K. Jain	 Deepak Jain
Partner	 Chairman	 Managing Director
Membership No. 94421	 DIN: 00085848	 DIN: 00004972

Place : Gurugram	 Shruti Kant Rustagi 	 Shwetank Tiwari
Date : May 13, 2017 	 Chief Financial Officer	 Company Secretary



Annual Report 2016-17 79

C
o

rp
o

rate O
verview

S
tatu

to
ry R

ep
o

rts
Fin

an
cial S

tatem
en

ts

Statement of Profit and Loss
for the year ended March 31, 2017 

As per our report of even date

For S. R. Batliboi & CO. LLP	  For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of Lumax Industries Limited
Chartered Accountants
ICAI firm registration number: 301003E/E300005

per Vikas Mehra	 D. K. Jain	 Deepak Jain
Partner	 Chairman	 Managing Director
Membership No. 94421	 DIN: 00085848	 DIN: 00004972

Place : Gurugram	 Shruti Kant Rustagi 	 Shwetank Tiwari
Date : May 13, 2017 	 Chief Financial Officer	 Company Secretary

Amount in `
Particulars Notes Year ended

March 31, 2017
Year ended

March 31, 2016
INCOME
Revenue from Operations (Gross) 20  14,547,514,299  14,036,404,103 
Less: Excise duty  (1,549,704,727)  (1,484,651,738)
Revenue from Operations (Net)  12,997,809,572  12,551,752,365 
Other income 21  61,896,774  43,763,640 
TOTAL REVENUE (I)  13,059,706,346  12,595,516,005 

EXPENSES
Cost of raw material and components consumed 22.1  7,531,544,406  7,592,758,636 
Cost of moulds, tools & dies 22.2  874,353,678  706,270,842 
Purchase of traded goods 23  40,106,628  78,726,759 
(Increase)/ decrease in inventories of finished goods work-in-progress and 
traded goods

23  (4,960,698)  19,412,408 

Employee benefits expense 24  1,610,274,773  1,426,657,724 
Other expenses 25  1,948,433,210  1,842,419,058 
Depreciation and amortisation expense 26  404,252,113  378,987,980 
Finance costs 27  114,104,245  134,378,847 
TOTAL (II)  12,518,108,355  12,179,612,254 

Profit before tax (I-II)  541,597,991  415,903,751 
Tax expenses
Minimum alternate tax  114,985,582  87,820,983 
Less :  MAT credit entitlement  (114,985,582)  (87,820,983)
Net current tax liability  -    -   
Current Tax for earlier years  4,742,334  12,558 
Deferred tax  85,021,491  42,151,450 
Total tax expense  89,763,825  42,164,008 

Profit for the year  451,834,166  373,739,743 

Earnings per equity share - Basic and diluted {Nominal value of share 
` 10 (Previous year : ` 10)}

28  48.34  39.98 

Summary of significant accounting policies 2.1
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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Amount in `
S. No. Particulars March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016
A. Cash flow from operating activities

Profit before tax  541,597,991  415,903,751 
Adjustment to reconcile profit before tax to net cash flows
Depreciation/ amortisation  404,252,113  378,987,980 
Provision for doubtful debts / advances  1,664,743  109,901 
Loss/(Profit) on sale of Property, Plant & Equipment  (2,781,622)  (1,284,459)
Unrealised foreign exchange (gain)/ loss  (11,348,653)  1,877,281 
Finance cost  114,104,245  134,378,847 
Interest income  (1,790,624)  (2,113,612)
Dividend income  (5,189,159)  (5,206,188)
Operating profit before working capital changes  1,040,509,034  922,653,501 
Movements in working capital:
Decrease/ (increase) in inventories  (114,952,704)  53,458,060 
Decrease/ (increase) in trade receivables  (82,807,463)  (371,891,787)
Decrease/ (increase) in loans and advances  (24,489,174)  (65,507,093)
Decrease/ (increase) in other current assets  (13,441,240)  -   
Increase/ (decrease) in liabilities and provisions  313,584,683  355,749,024 
Cash generated from operations  1,118,403,136  894,461,705 
Direct taxes paid  117,623,339  81,152,115 
Net cash flow from operating activities (A)  1,000,779,797  813,309,590 

B. Cash flow from investing activities
Purchase of fixed assets, including CWIP  (1,016,719,198)  (399,249,859)
Proceeds from sales of Property, Plant & Equipment  389,974,593  18,748,306 
Interest received  1,320,307  1,783,419 
Dividends received  5,189,159  5,206,188 
�Investments in bank deposits (having original maturity of more than three 
months)

 (518,936)  -   

�Redemption/  maturity of bank deposits (having original maturity of more than 
three months)	

 -    7,258,876 

Net cash flow used in investing activities (B)  (620,754,075)  (366,253,070)

C. Cash flow from financing activities
Proceeds from long term borrowings  28,953,428  31,050,847 
Repayment of long term borrowings  (256,920,993)  (350,443,996)
�Proceeds from/(repayment) of bank borrowings and short term loans (net)  (58,032,519)  60,549,305 
Interest Paid  (116,380,270)  (138,901,651)
Dividend Paid on equity shares  -    (163,585,310)
Tax on equity dividend paid  -    (33,302,045)
Net cash flow from/ (used in) financing activities (C)  (402,380,354)  (594,632,850)

Net increase/ (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents   (A+B+C)  (22,354,632)  (147,576,330)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year  34,552,286  182,128,616 
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year  12,197,654  34,552,286 

Cash Flow Statement
for the year ended March 31, 2017
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As per our report of even date

For S. R. Batliboi & CO. LLP	  For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of Lumax Industries Limited
Chartered Accountants
ICAI firm registration number: 301003E/E300005

per Vikas Mehra	 D. K. Jain	 Deepak Jain
Partner	 Chairman	 Managing Director
Membership No. 94421	 DIN: 00085848	 DIN: 00004972

Place : Gurugram	 Shruti Kant Rustagi 	 Shwetank Tiwari
Date : May 13, 2017 	 Chief Financial Officer	 Company Secretary

Amount in `
S. No. Particulars March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016

Components of cash and cash equivalents
Cash on hand  1,727,866  2,764,506 
Cheques on Hand	  342,358  5,026,725 
Balances with banks:
	 On current accounts  4,636,144  19,014,978 
	 On unpaid dividend accounts*  5,491,286  7,746,077 
Total cash and cash equivalents (note 19)  12,197,654  34,552,286 

	   * The Company can utilize these balances only toward settlement of the respective unpaid dividend.
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1.	 Corporate Information

	 Lumax Industries Limited (‘the Company’) is a leading 
manufacturer and supplier of auto components, 
mainly automotive lighting systems for four wheeler 
and two wheeler applications. The Company has 
technical as well as financial collaboration with 
Stanley Electric Co. Ltd., Japan. Its shares are listed 
on two exchanges in India.

2.	 Basis of preparation

	 The financial statements of the Company have been 
prepared and presented in accordance with generally 
accepted accounting principles in India (Indian 
GAAP). The Company has prepared these financial 
statements to comply with all material respects with 
the accounting standards specified under section 
133 of the Companies Act, 2013, read together with 
paragraph 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 
and Companies (Accounting Standards) Amendment 
Rules, 2016. The financial statements have been 
prepared on an accrual basis and under the historical 
cost convention.

	 The accounting policies adopted in the preparation 
of financial statements are consistent with those of 
previous year, except for the change in accounting 
policy explained below.

2.1	 Summary of significant accounting policies

	 Change in Accounting Policies

	 1.	 Classification of items of stores and spares

		  Pre-revised AS 10 required that stand-by and 
servicing equipment should normally be 
capitalized as property, plant and equipment. 
It required that machinery spares are usually 
treated as inventory and charged to profit or loss 
on consumption. However, spares parts that can 
be only used in connection with a particular item 
of property, plant and equipment, and whose 
use is expected to be irregular, are capitalized. 
Such spare parts are depreciated over a period, 
not exceeding the remaining useful life of the 
principal asset.

		  According to revised AS 10, all spare parts, 
stand-by and servicing equipment qualify as 
property, plant and equipment (PPE) if they 
meet the definition of PPE i.e. if the company 
intends to use these during more than a period 

of 12 months, the spare parts capitalized in this 
manner are depreciated as per revised AS 10.

		  The company has changed its accounting policy 
of property, plant and equipment to comply 
with changes in AS 10. The company has applied 
transitional provisions that requires previously 
recognized stores and spares as inventory be 
capitalized as PPE at its carrying amount and 
be depreciated prospectively over its remaining 
useful life.

		  Spare Parts having useful life for more than one 
year are capitalised w.e.f. 01.04.2016.

		  Had the company continued to use the earlier 
policy of classifying stores and spares as 
inventories, its financial statements for the 
period would have been impacted as below:

		  Inventories would have been higher by 
` 9,521,290, property, plant and equipment 
would have been lower by ` 9,521,290 (gross), 
depreciation would have been lower by 
` 1,329,029. Profit before tax for the current 
period would have been higher by ` 1,329,029.

	 2.	 Accounting of Proposed Dividend

		  As per the requirements of pre-revised AS 4, the 
Company used to create a liability for dividend 
proposed/ declared after the balance sheet date for 
dividend related to periods covered by the financial 
statements. Going forward, as per revised AS 4, 
the company cannot create provision for dividend 
proposed / declared after the balance sheet date 
unless a statute requires otherwise. However, the 
company need to disclose the same in notes to the 
financial statements.

		  Accordingly, the company has disclosed 
dividend proposed by board of directors after 
the balance sheet date in the notes.

		  Had the company continued with creation of 
provision for proposed dividend, its surplus 
in the statement of profit and loss account 
would have been lower by ` 163,135,299 and 
current provision would have been higher by 
` 163,135,299 (including dividend distribution 
tax of ` 27,593,185).

Notes to Financial Statements 
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Notes to Financial Statements 
for the year ended March 31, 2017

	 3.	� Accounting for assets earlier carried at revalued 
amount

		�  The Company had revalued Land, Building and 
Plant & Machinery and was carried at revalued 
amount under the pre-revised AS 10. Under the 
revised AS 10, the Company has applied cost 
model on all the items of property, plant and 
equipment. As per the transitional provision 
under revised AS 10, where a Company does not 
adopt the revaluation model as its accounting 
policy but the carrying amount of item(s) of PPE 
reflects any previous revaluation, the Company 
should adjust the amount outstanding in the 
revaluation reserve against the carrying amount 
of that item. However, the carrying amount 
of that item should not be less than residual 
value. Any excess of the amount outstanding as 
revaluation reserve over the carrying amount of 
that item should be adjusted in revenue reserves. 
Accordingly, the Company has adjusted the 
balance of revaluation reserve against land 
and building, resulting in reduction in land and 
building and revaluation reserve by ` 77,067,268.

		  a.	 Use of estimates

			   The preparation of financial statements are in 
conformity with Indian GAAP which requires 
the management to make judgments, 
estimates and assumptions that affect 
the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, 
revenue and expenses and the disclosure 
of contingent liabilities, at the end of  the 
reporting period. Although these estimates are 
based on the management’s best knowledge 
of current events and actions, uncertainty 
about these assumptions and estimates 
could result in the outcomes requiring a 
material adjustment to the carrying amounts 
of assets, liabilities, revenue and expenses 
in future periods. Changes in estimates are 
reflected in the financial statements in the 
period in which changes are made and if 
material, their effects are disclosed in notes 
to accounts.

		  b.	 Property, Plant and Equipment

			   Property, plant and equipment are stated at 
cost, net of accumulated depreciation and 
accumulated impairment losses, if any. The 

cost comprises purchase price, borrowing 
costs if capitalization criteria are met and 
directly attributable cost of bringing the asset 
to its working condition for the intended 
use. Any trade discounts and rebates are 
deducted in arriving at the purchase price. 
Such cost includes the cost of replacing 
part of the plant and equipment. When 
significant parts of plant and equipment 
are required to be replaced at intervals, 
the Company depreciates them separately 
based on their specific useful lives. Likewise, 
when a major inspection is performed, its 
cost is recognised in the carrying amount of 
the plant and equipment as a replacement 
if the recognition criteria are satisfied. All 
other repair and maintenance costs are 
recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

			   Items of stores and spares that meet the 
definition of property, plant and equipment 
are capitalized at cost and depreciated over 
their useful life. Otherwise, such items are 
classified as inventories.

			   Gains or losses arising from derecognition 
of property, plant and equipment are 
measured as the difference between the 
net disposal proceeds and the carrying 
amount of the asset and are recognized in 
the statement of profit and loss when the 
asset is derecognized.

			   If a component / part of an asset has 
a cost which is significant to the total 
cost of asset and has a useful life that 
is materially different from that of the 
remaining component/part of the asset, 
the Company identifies and determines 
cost of such component/part of the asset 
separately.

			   Property, plant and equipment held for 
sale is valued at lower of their carrying amount 
and net realizable value. Any write-down is 
recognized in the statement of profit and loss.

		  c.	 Depreciation on  Property, plant and 
Equipment

			   Leasehold land is amortized over the period 
of lease ranging from 90 years to 99 years.
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			   Depreciation on other property, plant and 
equipment is calculated on a straight line 
basis using rates arrived at based on the 
useful lives estimated by the management. 
The identified components are depreciated 
separately over their useful lives; the 
remaining components are depreciated 
over the life of the principal asset.. The 
Company has used following estimated 
useful life to provide depreciation on its 
property, plant and equipment: 

Particulars Useful lives 
estimated by the 

management 
(years)

Factory building 30

Other building 60

Plant and Machinery 
(i, ii)

3-21

Spare Parts 3-15

Furniture and fixtures 10

Vehicles (ii) 5

Office equipment 5

			   i)	 The management has estimated 
supported by independent assessment, 
the useful life of certain plant and 
machinery as 21 years, which is higher 
than those indicated in schedule II of 
the Companies Act 2013.

			    ii)	 The management has estimated, 
based on past experience, the useful 
life of these blocks of assets as lower 
than the life indicated for respective 
block of assets in schedule II of the 
Companies Act 2013.

				    The residual values, useful lives and 
methods of depreciation of property, 
plant and equipment are reviewed at 
each financial year end and adjusted 
prospectively, if appropriate.

		  d.	 Intangible Assets

			   Intangible assets acquired separately are 
measured on initial recognition at cost. 

Following initial recognition, intangible 
assets are carried at cost less accumulated 
amortization and accumulated impairment 
losses, if any. Internally generated 
intangible assets, excluding capitalized 
development costs, are not capitalized and 
expenditure is reflected in the statement 
of profit and loss in the year in which the 
expenditure is incurred.

			   Intangibles assets are amortized using 
straight-line method over their estimated 
useful lives as follows:

Intangible 
Assets

Estimated Useful Life 
(Years)

Computer 
Software

Over the estimated 
economic useful lives 
ranging from 3.5 to 4 years

Technical 
Know-how

Over the period of Technical 
Assistance Agreement 
i.e. 8 years

			   The amortization period and the 
amortization method are reviewed at least 
at each financial year end. If the expected 
useful life of the asset is significantly 
different from previous estimates, the 
amortization period is changed accordingly. 
If there has been a significant change 
in the expected pattern of economic 
benefits from the asset, the amortization 
method is changed to reflect the changed 
pattern. Such changes are accounted for in 
accordance with AS 5 Net Profit or Loss for 
the Period, Prior Period Items and Changes 
in Accounting Policies.

			   Gains or losses arising from de-recognition 
of an intangible asset are measured as 
the difference between the net disposal 
proceeds and the carrying amount of the 
asset and are recognized in the statement 
of profit and loss when the asset is 
derecognized.

		  e.	 Research costs

			   Research costs are expensed as incurred.

Notes to Financial Statements 
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		  f.	 Leases

			   Where the Company is the lessee

			   Finance leases, which effectively transfer 
to the Company substantially all the risks 
and benefits incidental to ownership of 
the leased item, are capitalized at the 
lower of the fair value of leased property 
and present value of the minimum lease 
payments at the inception of the lease term 
and disclosed as leased assets.

			   Lease payments are apportioned between 
the finance charges and reduction of the 
lease liability so as to achieve a constant 
rate of interest on the remaining balance of 
the liability. Finance charges are recognized 
as finance costs in the statement of profit 
and loss. Lease management fees, legal 
charges and other initial direct costs are 
capitalised.

			   A leased asset is depreciated on a straight-
line basis over the useful life of the asset. 
However, if there is no reasonable certainty 
that the Company will obtain the ownership 
by the end of the lease term, the capitalized 
asset is depreciated on a straight-line basis 
over the shorter of the estimated useful life 
of the asset or the lease term.

			   Leases, where the lessor effectively retains 
substantially all the risks and benefits of 
ownership of the leased item are classified 
as operating leases. Operating lease 
payments are recognized as an expense 
in the statement of profit and loss on a 
straight-line basis over the lease term.

			   Where the Company is the lessor

			   Leases in which the Company transfers 
substantially all the risks and benefits of 
ownership of the asset are classified as 
finance leases. Assets given under finance 
lease are recognized as a receivable at an 
amount equal to the net investment in the 
lease. After initial recognition, the Company 
apportions lease rentals between the 
principal repayment and interest income 

so as to achieve a constant periodic rate of 
return on the net investment outstanding 
in respect of the finance lease. The interest 
income is recognized in the statement 
of profit and loss. Initial direct costs such 
as legal costs, brokerage costs, etc. are 
recognized immediately in the statement of 
profit and loss.

			   Leases in which the Company does not 
transfer substantially all the risks and 
benefits of ownership of the asset are 
classified as operating leases. Assets subject 
to operating leases are included in property, 
plant and equipment. Lease income on 
an operating lease is recognized in the 
statement of profit and loss on a straight-line 
basis over the lease term. Costs, including 
depreciation, are recognized as an expense 
in the statement of profit and loss. Initial 
direct costs such as legal costs, brokerage 
costs, etc. are recognized immediately in 
the statement of profit and loss.

		  g.	 Borrowing costs

		  	 Borrowing cost includes interest, 
amortization of ancillary costs incurred 
in connection with the arrangement of 
borrowings.

			   Borrowing costs directly attributable to the 
acquisition, construction or production of 
an asset that necessarily takes a substantial 
period of time to get ready for its intended 
use or sale are capitalized as part of the cost 
of the respective asset. All other borrowing 
costs are expensed in the period they occur.

		  h.	 Government Grant and subsidies

			   Grants and subsidies from the government 
are recognized when there is reasonable 
assurance that (i) the Company will comply 
with the conditions attached to them, and 
(ii) the grant/subsidy will be received.

			   When the grant or subsidy relates to 
revenue, it is recognized as income on a 
systematic basis in the statement of profit 
and loss over the periods necessary to 

Notes to Financial Statements 
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match them with the related costs, which 
they are intended to compensate. Where 
the grant relates to an asset, the grant is 
shown as a deduction from the gross value 
of the asset concerned in arriving at its 
book value. The grant is thus recognised 
in the statement of profit and loss over the 
useful life of a depreciable asset by way of 
a reduced depreciation charge.

		  i.	 Impairment of property, plant and equipment

			   The Company assesses at each reporting 
date whether there is an indication that an 
asset may be impaired. If any indication 
exists, or when annual impairment testing 
for an asset is required, the Company 
estimates the asset’s recoverable amount. 
An asset’s recoverable amount is the 
higher of an asset’s or cash-generating 
unit’s (CGU) net selling price and its 
value in use. The recoverable amount is 
determined for an individual asset, unless 
the asset does not generate cash inflows 
that are largely independent of those from 
other assets or groups of assets. Where 
the carrying amount of an asset or CGU 
exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset 
is considered impaired and is written down 
to its recoverable amount.

			   Impairment losses of continuing operations, 
including impairment on inventories, 
are recognized in the statement of profit 
and loss, except for previously revalued  
property, plant and equipment, where 
the revaluation was taken to revaluation 
reserve. In this case, the impairment is also 
recognized in the revaluation reserve up to 
the amount of any previous revaluation.

			   After impairment, depreciation is provided 
on the revised carrying amount of the asset 
over its remaining useful life.

			   An assessment is made at each reporting 
date as to whether there is any indication 
that previously recognized impairment 
losses may no longer exist or may have 
decreased. If such indication exists, the 

company estimates the asset’s or cash-
generating unit’s recoverable amount. A 
previously recognized impairment loss is 
reversed only if there has been a change 
in the assumptions used to determine 
the asset’s recoverable amount since the 
last impairment loss was recognized. The 
reversal is limited so that the carrying 
amount of the asset does not exceed its 
recoverable amount, nor exceed the carrying 
amount that would have been determined, 
net of depreciation, had no impairment loss 
been recognized for the asset in prior years. 
Such reversal is recognized in the statement 
of profit and loss unless the asset is carried 
at a revalued amount, in which case the 
reversal is treated as a revaluation increase.

		  j.	 Investments

			   Investments, which are readily realizable 
and intended to be held for not more than 
one year from the date on which such 
investments are made, are classified as 
current investments. All other investments 
are classified as long-term investments.

			   On initial recognition, all investments 
are measured at cost. The cost comprises 
purchase price and directly attributable 
acquisition charges such as brokerage, 
fees and duties. If an investment is 
acquired, or partly acquired, by the 
issue of shares or other securities, the 
acquisition cost is the fair value of the 
securities issued.

			   Current investments are carried in the 
financial statements at lower of cost and 
fair value determined on an individual 
investment basis. Long-term investments 
are carried at cost. However, provision for 
diminution in value is made to recognize a 
decline other than temporary in the value of 
the investments.

			   On disposal of an investment, the difference 
between its carrying amount and net 
disposal proceeds is charged or credited to 
the statement of profit and loss.

Notes to Financial Statements 
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		  k.	 Inventories

			   Inventories are valued as follows:

Raw materials and components, Stores 
and spares (including packing materials)

At Cost and Net Realizable Value, whichever is lower. 
However, materials and other items held for use in the 
production of inventories are not written down below cost if 
the finished products in which they will be incorporated are 
expected to be sold at or above cost. 

Cost is determined on moving weighted average basis. Cost 
of raw materials and components lying in bonded warehouse 
includes custom duty accounted for on accrual basis. 

Stores and spares which do not meet the definition of 
property, plant and equipment are accounted as inventories.

Finished goods & Traded goods, Work-in-
progress and Moulds, tools and dies in 
process

At Cost and Net Realizable Value, whichever is lower. Cost 
of Finished goods and Work-in-progress (including moulds, 
tools and dies in process) includes direct materials, labour 
and a proportion of manufacturing overheads based on 
normal operating capacity. Cost of traded goods includes 
cost of purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the 
inventories to their present location and condition. Cost 
is determined on moving weighted average basis. Cost of 
finished goods includes excise duty. 

Scrap At net realizable value.

Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs 
of completion and to make the sale.

Notes to Financial Statements 
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	 	 l.	 Revenue Recognition

			   Revenue is recognized to the extent that 
it is probable that the economic benefits 
will flow to the Company and the revenue 
can be reliably measured. The following 
specific recognition criteria must be met 
before revenue is recognised.

			   Sale of goods

			   Revenue from sale of Goods is recognised 
when the significant risks and rewards of 
ownership of the goods have passed to the 
buyer usually on delivery of goods to the 
customer. The Company collects sales taxes 
and value added taxes (VAT) on behalf of the 
government and, therefore, these are not 
economic benefits flowing to the Company. 
Hence, they are excluded from revenue. 
Excise duty deducted from revenue (gross) 
is the amount that is included in the revenue 
(gross) and not the entire amount of liability 
arising during the year.

			   Sale of services

			   Revenues from service contracts are 
recognized as and when services are 
rendered. The Company collects service 
tax on behalf of the government and, 
therefore, it is not an economic benefit 
flowing to the Company. Hence, it is 
excluded from revenue.

			   Interest

			   Interest income is recognized on a time 
proportion basis taking into account the 
amount outstanding and the applicable 
interest rate. Interest income is included 
under the head “other income” in the 
statement of profit and loss.

			   Dividends

			   Dividend income is recognized when the 
Company’s right to receive dividend is 
established by the reporting date.
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			   Export Incentives

			   Export benefits are accounted for in the year 
of exports based on eligibility and when 
there is no uncertainty in receiving the same.

		  m.	 Foreign Currency Translation

			   Foreign currency transactions

			   i.	 Initial Recognition

				    Foreign currency transactions are 
recorded in the reporting currency, 
by applying to the foreign currency 
amount the exchange rate between 
the reporting currency and the 
foreign currency at the date of the 
transaction.

			   ii.	 Conversion

				    Foreign currency monetary items are 
reported using the closing rate. Non-
monetary items which are carried in 
terms of historical cost denominated 
in a foreign currency are reported 
using the exchange rate at the date of 
the transaction.

			   iii.	 Exchange Differences

				    Exchange differences arising on the 
settlement of monetary items or on 
reinstatement of monetary items at 
rates different from those at which 
they were initially recorded during the 
year, or reported in previous financial 
statements, are recognised as income 
or as expenses.

			   iv.	 Forward exchange contracts entered 
into to hedge foreign currency risk of 
an existing asset/ liability 

				    The premium or discount arising at 
the inception of forward exchange 
contracts is amortised as expense or 
income over the life of the contract. 
Exchange differences on such contracts 
are recognized in the statement of 
profit and loss in the year in which 
the exchange rates change. Any profit 
or loss arising on cancellation or 
renewal of forward exchange contract 

is recognized as income or as expense 
for the period.   

		  n.	 Retirement and other Employee Benefits

			   i.	 Retirement benefit in the form of 
provident fund is a defined contribution 
scheme. The company has no 
obligation, other than the contribution 
payable to the provident fund. The 
company recognizes contribution 
payable to the provident fund scheme 
as expenditure, when an employee 
renders the related service.

			   ii.	 Gratuity Liability is a defined benefit 
plan and is provided for on the basis 
of an actuarial valuation on projected 
unit credit method made at the end of 
each financial year.

				    Actuarial gain and loss for defined 
benefit plan is recognized in full in 
the period in which it occur in the 
statement of profit and loss.

			   iii.	 Accumulated leave, which is expected 
to be utilized within the next 12 months, 
is treated as short-term employee 
benefit. The Company measures the 
expected cost of such absences as 
the additional amount that it expects 
to pay as a result of the unused 
entitlement that has accumulated at 
the reporting date.

			   iv.	 The Company treats accumulated leave 
expected to be carried forward beyond 
twelve months, as long-term employee 
benefit for measurement purposes. 
Such long-term compensated absences 
are provided for based on the actuarial 
valuation using the projected unit credit 
method at the year-end. Actuarial gains/
losses are immediately taken to the 
statement of profit and loss and are 
not deferred. The company presents the 
leave as a current liability in the balance 
sheet, to the extent it does not have an 
unconditional right to defer its settlement 
for 12 months after the reporting date. 

Notes to Financial Statements 
for the year ended March 31, 2017



Annual Report 2016-17 89

C
o

rp
o

rate O
verview

S
tatu

to
ry R

ep
o

rts
Fin

an
cial S

tatem
en

ts

Where company has the unconditional 
legal and contractual right to defer 
the settlement for a period beyond 12 
months, the same is presented as non-
current liability.

		  o.	 Income Taxes

			   Tax expense comprises current and deferred 
tax. Current income-tax is measured at 
the amount expected to be paid to the tax 
authorities in accordance with the Income-
tax Act, 1961 enacted in India and tax laws 
prevailing in the respective tax jurisdictions 
where the Company operates. The tax rates 
and tax laws used to compute the amount 
are those that are enacted or substantively 
enacted, at the reporting date. Current 
income tax relating to items recognized 
directly in equity is recognized in equity 
and not in the statement of profit and loss.

			   Deferred income taxes reflect the impact of 
timing differences between taxable income 
and accounting income originating during 
the current year and reversal of timing 
differences for the earlier years. Deferred 
tax is measured using the tax rates and the 
tax laws enacted or substantively enacted 
at the reporting date. Deferred income tax 
relating to items recognized directly in 
equity is recognized in equity and not in the 
statement of profit and loss.

			   Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for 
all taxable timing differences. Deferred tax 
assets are recognized for deductible timing 
differences only to the extent that there is 
reasonable certainty that sufficient future 
taxable income will be available against 
which such deferred tax assets can be 
realized. In situations where the Company 
has unabsorbed depreciation or carry 
forward tax losses, all deferred tax assets are 
recognized only if there is virtual certainty 
supported by convincing evidence that they 
can be realized against future taxable profits.

			   In the situations where the Company 
is entitled to a tax holiday under the 
Income-tax Act, 1961 enacted in India 

or tax laws prevailing in the respective 
tax jurisdictions where it operates, 
no deferred tax (asset or liability) is 
recognized in respect of timing differences 
which reverse during the tax holiday 
period, to the extent the Company’s gross 
total income is subject to the deduction 
during the tax holiday period. Deferred 
tax in respect of timing differences which 
reverse after the tax holiday period is 
recognized in the year in which the timing 
differences originate. However, the 
Company restricts recognition of deferred 
tax assets to the extent that it has become 
reasonably certain or virtually certain, 
as the case may be, that sufficient future 
taxable income will be available against 
which such deferred tax assets can be 
realized. For recognition of deferred taxes, 
the timing differences which originate 
first are considered to reverse first.

			   At each reporting date, the Company re-
assesses unrecognized deferred tax assets. 
It recognizes unrecognized deferred tax 
asset to the extent that it has become 
reasonably certain or virtually certain, as the 
case may be, that sufficient future taxable 
income will be available against which such 
deferred tax assets can be realized.

			   The carrying amount of deferred tax assets 
are reviewed at each reporting date. The 
Company writes-down the carrying amount 
of deferred tax asset to the extent that it is no 
longer reasonably certain or virtually certain, 
as the case may be, that sufficient future 
taxable income will be available against 
which deferred tax assets can be realized. 
Any such write-down is reversed to the extent 
that it becomes reasonably certain or virtually 
certain, as the case may be, that sufficient 
future taxable income will be available.

			   Deferred tax assets and deferred tax 
liabilities are offset, if a legally enforceable 
right exists to set-off current tax assets 
against current tax liabilities and the 
deferred tax assets and deferred taxes 

Notes to Financial Statements 
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relate to the same taxable entity and the 
same taxation authority.

			   Minimum alternate tax (MAT) paid in a year 
is charged to the statement of profit and loss 
as current tax. The Company recognizes MAT 
credit available as an asset only to the extent 
that there is convincing evidence that the 
Company will pay normal income tax during 
the specified period, i.e., the period for which 
MAT credit is allowed to be carried forward. 
In the year in which the Company recognizes 
MAT credit as an asset in accordance with 
the Guidance Note on Accounting for Credit 
Available in respect of Minimum Alternative 
Tax under the Income-tax Act, 1961, the 
said asset is created by way of credit to the 
statement of profit and loss and shown as 
“MAT Credit Entitlement.” The Company 
reviews the “MAT credit entitlement” asset 
at each reporting date and writes down the 
asset to the extent the Company does not 
have convincing evidence that it will pay 
normal tax during the specified period.

		  p.	 Segment Reporting Policies

			   Business Segment

			   The Company is engaged in the business 
of manufacture of various types of 
Automotive Lighting Equipment. The entire 
operations are governed by the same set of 
risks and return hence the entire operations 
represent a single primary segment.

			   Geographical Segment

			   The analysis of geographical segments is 
based on the geographical location of the 
customers i.e. customers located within 
India and customers located outside India.

		  q.	 Earnings per share

			   Basic earnings per share are calculated by 
dividing the net profit or loss for the period 
attributable to equity shareholders by the 
weighted average number of equity shares 
outstanding during the period.

			   For the purpose of calculating diluted 
earnings per equity share, the net profit 

or loss for the period attributable to equity 
shareholders and the weighted average 
number of shares outstanding during the 
period are adjusted for the effects of all 
dilutive potential equity shares.

		  r.	 Provisions

			   A provision is recognised when an 
enterprise has a present obligation as a 
result of past event and it is probable that 
an outflow of resources will be required to 
settle the obligation, in respect of which a 
reliable estimate can be made. Provisions 
are not discounted to its present value and 
are determined based on best management 
estimate required to settle the obligation at 
the balance sheet date. These are reviewed 
at each balance sheet date and adjusted 
to reflect the current best management 
estimates.

			   Warranty provisions

			   Provisions for warranty-related costs are 
recognized when the product is sold or 
service provided. Provision is based on 
historical experience. The estimate of such 
warranty-related costs is revised annually.

		  s.	 Contingent liabilities

			   A contingent liability is a possible obligation 
that arises from past events whose existence 
will be confirmed by the occurrence or 
non-occurrence of one or more uncertain 
future events beyond the control of the 
Company or a present obligation that is not 
recognized because it is not probable that 
an outflow of resources will be required to 
settle the obligation. A contingent liability 
also arises in extremely rare cases where 
there is a liability that cannot be recognized 
because it cannot be measured reliably. The 
Company does not recognize a contingent 
liability but discloses its existence in the 
financial statements.

		  t.	 Cash and Cash equivalents

			   Cash and cash equivalents in the cash flow 
statement comprise cash at bank and in 
hand and short- term investments with an 
original maturity of three months or less.

Notes to Financial Statements 
for the year ended March 31, 2017
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3.	 Share Capital
Amount in `

As at 
March 31, 2017

As at
 March 31, 2016

Authorized shares   
12,000,000 (Previous year 12,000,000) equity shares of ` 10/- each  120,000,000  120,000,000
Issued, subscribed and fully paid up shares   
9,347,732 (Previous year 9,347,732) equity shares of ` 10/- each  93,477,320  93,477,320

	 a.	 Reconciliation of shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting year

As at March 31, 2017 As at March 31, 2016
Nos. Amount in ` Nos.  Amount in `

At the beginning of the year  9,347,732  93,477,320  9,347,732  93,477,320 
Issued during the year  -    -    -    -   
Outstanding at the end of the year  9,347,732  93,477,320  9,347,732  93,477,320 

	 b.	T erms/rights attached to equity shares

		�  The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of ` 10 per share. Each holder of equity 
shares is entitled to one vote per share. The Company declares and pays dividends in Indian rupees. The 
dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of shareholders in the ensuing Annual 
General Meeting

		�  In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining 
assets of the Company, after distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to 
the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

	 c.	 Details  of shareholders holding more than  5% shares in the Company

As at March 31, 2017 As at March 31, 2016
Nos.  % holding in 

the class 
Nos.  % holding in 

the class 
Equity shares of ` 10 each fully paid
Stanley Electric Co. Limited  3,343,381 35.77%  3,343,381 35.77%
Dhanesh Kumar Jain  1,938,025 20.73%  1,938,025 20.73%
Lumax Auto Technologies Limited  525,000 5.62%  525,000 5.62%

		�  As per records of the company, including its register of shareholders/ members  and other declarations 
received from shareholders regarding beneficial interest, the above shareholding represents both legal and 
beneficial ownership of shares.

	 d.	 Proposed dividend on Equity shares:
Amount in `

As at 
March 31, 2017

As at
 March 31, 2016

The Board proposed dividend on equity shares after the balance  
sheet date
Proposed dividend on equity shares for the year ended ` 14.50 per 
share (Previous year: Nil)

 135,542,114 -  

Dividend Distribution tax on proposed dividend  27,593,185 -  
 163,135,299 -  
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4.	 Reserves and Surplus
Amount in `

As at 
March 31, 2017

As at
 March 31, 2016

Capital reserve  65,138  65,138 
Securities premium account  679,665,909  679,665,909 
Revaluation reserve
Balance as per the last financial statements  77,067,268  77,346,536 
Less: amount transferred to General Reserve  (279,268)
Less: amount adjusted against Land & Building pursuant to applicability 
of revised AS 10

(77,067,268) -

Closing Balance -  77,067,268 
General reserve
Balance as per the last financial statements  637,079,268  599,300,000 
Add: amount transferred from surplus balance in the statement of profit 
and loss

 54,200,000  37,500,000 

Add: amount transferred from Revaluation Reserve -  279,268 
Closing Balance  691,279,268  637,079,268 
Surplus as per the statement of profit and loss
Balance as per the last financial statements  554,427,366  353,196,071 
Add: Profit for the year  451,834,166  373,739,743 
Less:- Appropriations
Final equity dividend (Previous year: ` 12.00 per share)  -    (112,172,784)
Tax on equity dividend  -    (22,835,664)
Transfer to general reserve  (54,200,000)  (37,500,000)
Total appropriations  (54,200,000)  (172,508,448)
Net surplus in the statement of profit and loss  952,061,532  554,427,366 
Total reserves and surplus  2,323,071,847  1,948,304,949 

5.	 Long Term Borrowings
Amount in `

Non-current portion Current Maturities
As at 

March 31, 2017
As at

 March 31, 2016
As at 

March 31, 2017
As at

 March 31, 2016
Term loans
Indian rupee loan from banks (secured)  36,376,956  64,319,574  56,896,040  49,919,430 
Foreign currency loan from banks (secured)  -    41,409,370  40,531,250  269,160,938 

 36,376,956  105,728,944  97,427,290  319,080,368 
The above amount includes
Secured borrowings  36,376,956  105,728,944  97,427,290  319,080,368 
Amount disclosed under the head "other 
current liabilities" (Note 11)

 (97,427,290)  (319,080,368)

Net amount  36,376,956  105,728,944  -    -   

	 Notes:

	 1	 Indian Rupee Loan from Bank includes:

		  (a)	�   27,937,500/- (Previous year ` 50,287,500/-) taken in the Financial Year 2013-14 carries interest @ 10% p.a. at present. 
The loan is repayable in 16 equal quarterly installments of ` 5,587,500/- (excluding interest) after one year moratorium 
period from the disbursement date i.e. from 04.04.2013. The Loan is secured by way of first pari passu charge on the 
land and building situated at Sohna, Gurgaon (Haryana) unit.
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		  (b)	�   12,968,750/- (Previous year ` 23,343,750/-) taken in the Financial Year 2014-15 carries interest @ 10.70% p.a. at present. 
The loan is repayable in 16 equal quarterly installments of ̀  2,593,750/- (excluding interest) from the disbursement date 
i.e. from 10.06.2014. The Loan is secured by way of first pari passu charge on the land and building situated at Sohna, 
Gurgaon (Haryana) unit.

		  (c)	�   52,366,746/- (Previous year ` 40,607,754/-) vehicle loans from banks at interest @ 7.90% - 11.50% aggregating to are 
secured by way of hypothecation of the respective vehicles acquired out of the proceeds thereof. These loans are 
repayable over a period of three years from the date of availment.

	 2	 Foreign Currency Loan from Bank includes:

		  (a)	�   Nil (Previous year ` 20,704,683/-) taken in the financial year 2011-12 carried interest @ LIBOR plus 260 BSP. The loan 
was secured by way of first & exclusive charge on the land and building along with all the plant and machineries, 
situated at Bawal (Haryana) unit both present and future. The amount has been repaid during the year.

		  (b)	�   Nil (Previous year ` 82,818,750/-) taken in the financial year 2011-12 carried interest @ LIBOR plus 260 BSP. The loan 
was secured by way of first & exclusive charge on the land and building along with all the plant and machineries, 
situated at Bawal (Haryana) unit both present and future. The amount has been repaid during the year.

		  (c)	�   Nil (Previous year ` 82,818,750/-) taken in the financial year 2011-12 carried interest @ LIBOR plus 350 BSP. The loan was 
secured by way of first and exclusive pari passu charge on the land and building alongwith all other moveable fixed assets, 
situated at Pant Nagar (Uttrakhand) unit both present and future. The amount has been repaid during the year.

		  (d)	�   40,531,250/- (Previous year ` 124,228,125/-) taken in the financial year 2012-13 carries interest @ LIBOR plus 350 BSP. 
The loan is repayable in 16 quarterly installments of ` 17,437,500/- after one year moratorium period from the 
disbursement date i.e. from 28.08.2013. The loan is secured by way of first and exclusive pari passu charge on the land 
and building alongwith all other moveable fixed assets, situated at Haridwar (Uttrakhand) and all other movable fixed 
assets of Bangalore (Karnataka) unit both present and future.

6.	 Deferred tax liabilities (net)
Amount in `

As at 
March 31, 2017

As at
 March 31, 2016

Deferred tax Liability
Fixed assets: Impact of difference between tax depreciation and 
depreciation/ amortization charged for the financial reporting

 475,166,007  438,453,197 

Unrealised forex gain of capital nature  (1,288,923)  762,082 
Gross deferred tax liability (A)  473,877,084  439,215,279 
Deferred tax asset
Impact of expenditure charged to the statement of profit and loss but 
allowable for tax purposes on payment basis

 78,163,311  56,219,678 

Provision for doubtful debts and advances  3,394,150  2,818,016 
Unabsorbed depreciation  112,879,766  185,759,218 
Gross deferred tax asset (B)  194,437,227  244,796,912 
Net deferred tax liability (A-B)  279,439,857  194,418,367 

7.	 Other long-term liabilities
Amount in `

As at 
March 31, 2017

As at
 March 31, 2016

Others
Payable for capital goods (including payable towards leasehold land)  216,454,500  220,657,500 
Security deposits (Interest free)  970,239  3,055,044 

 217,424,739  223,712,544 
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8.	 Provisions
Amount in `

Long-term Short-term
As at 

March 31, 2017
As at

 March 31, 2016
As at 

March 31, 2017
As at

 March 31, 2016
Provision for employee benefits
Provision for leave benefits 114,598,344 92,716,007 11,907,942 9,180,439 
Provision for gratuity (Note 29)  -    -   54,095,627 39,715,106 

114,598,344 92,716,007 66,003,569 48,895,545 
Other provisions
Provision for warranties {Refer point (a) 
below}

-   -   3,274,000 7,017,000 

-   -   3,274,000 7,017,000 
114,598,344 92,716,007 69,277,569 55,912,545 

	 (a)	 Provision for warranties

		�  A provision is recognized for expected warranty claims on products sold during the last one year, based on 
past experience of the level of repairs and returns. It is expected that all of these costs will be incurred in the 
next financial year after the reporting date. Assumptions used to calculate the provision for warranties were 
based on current sales levels and current information available about warranty based on the one-year period 
for all products sold.

		  The table below gives information about movement in warranty provisions.
Amount in `

As at 
March 31, 2017

As at
 March 31, 2016

At the beginning of the year  7,017,000  7,134,000 
Arising during the year  2,211,191  11,791,544 
Utilized during the year  (5,954,191)  (11,908,544)
At the end of the year (current portion)  3,274,000  7,017,000 

9.	 Short-term borrowings
Amount in `

As at 
March 31, 2017

As at
 March 31, 2016

Commercial Papers (unsecured)  400,000,000 -   
Cash credit/Working Capital facility from banks (secured)  96,791,970  450,891,414 
Vendor finance facility from banks (unsecured)  293,429,152  397,362,227 

 790,221,122  848,253,641 

Notes:

(a)	 Cash credit facility of ` Nil (Previous year ` 8,670,747/-) was secured by way of first pari passu charge on all current assets of the 
Company. This facility was further secured by extension of charge by way of hypothecation on the Plant and Machinery along 
with the UREM on Land and Building situated at Chakan Unit of the Company & carried interest @ 10.20%. The amount has been 
repaid during the year.

(b)	 WCDL Facility of ` Nil (Previous year ` 150,000,000/-) & Cash Credit facility of ` Nil (Previous year ` Nil) is secured by way of first 
pari passu charge on all current assets of the Company. This facility was further secured by way of equitable mortgage on Land 
and Buildings and first pari passu charges against movable Fixed Assets at Chinchwad Unit of the Company & carried interest @ 
9.35%. and  8.95%

(c)	 Cash Credit facility of ` 76,998,098/- (Previous year ` 92,220,667/-) & WCDL Facility of ` Nil (Previous year ` Nil) is secured by way 
of first pari passu charge on all current assets of the Company.  This facility is further secured by way of equitable mortgage on 
Land and Buildings and first pari passu charges against movable Fixed Assets at Chinchwad Unit of the Company repayable on 
demand & carries interest @ 9.25% for the current year & 9.65% respectively for the previous year.
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(d)	 WCDL Facility of ` Nil (Previous year ` 200,000,000/-) was secured by way of first pari passu charge on all current assets of the 
Company.  This facility was further secured by way of equitable mortgage on Land and Buildings and first pari passu charges 
against movable Fixed Assets at Chinchwad Unit of the Company repayable on demand & carried interest @ 9.50%.

(e)	 Vendor Finance Facility from MSIL of ` 193,429,152/- (Previous year ` 397,362,227/-) is repayable on 60 days from respective 
drawdown & carries interest @ 8.45%.

(f)	 Vendor Finance Facility from MSIL of Rs 100,000,000/- (Previous year ` Nil) is repayable on 60 days from respective drawdown & 
carries interest @ 8.10 %.

(g)	 Commercial paper issued to Bank amounting to ` 400,000,000/- (previous year Nil) carrying interest rate ranging from 6.95 % p.a. 
to 7.25 % p.a. Commercial paper is payable by 31 May 2017. This facility  is unsecured short term borrowing. Unexpired discount 
on commercial papers is ` 46,83,467/- (Previous year Nil), towards interest accrued but not due.

(h)	 Cash credit facility of ` 19,793,872/- (Previous year Nil ) is secured by way of first pari passu charge on all current assets of the 
Company. This facility is further secured by extension of charge by way of hypothecation on the Plant and Machinery along with 
the UREM on Land and Building situated at Chakan Unit of the Company, repayable on demand & carries interest @ 8.52 %.

10.	Trade  payables
Amount in `

As at 
March 31, 2017

As at
 March 31, 2016

Trade payables*
-  � Total outstanding due of micro enterprises and small enterprises (refer 

note 37 for details of dues to micro and small enterprises)
 1,480,603  722,444 

- � Total outstanding due of creditors other than micro enterprises and 
small enterprises#

 3,441,231,922  3,096,045,229 

 3,442,712,525  3,096,767,673 

	 * Refer note 32 for related party transactions

	 # Trade payables include acceptances of ` 254,228,254/- (Previous year ` 188,015,774/-)

11.	 Other Current liabilities
Amount in `

As at 
March 31, 2017

As at
 March 31, 2016

Current maturities of long term borrowings (Note 5)  97,427,290  319,080,368 
Interest accrued but not due on borrowings  3,327,581  5,603,606 
Investor Education and Protection Fund will be credited by following 
amounts (as and when due) {Refer point (a)}
	 Unpaid dividend  5,491,286  7,746,077 
Other Payables
	 Payable for capital goods  139,749,454  93,843,383 
	 Interest free deposits from customers #  333,390  233,390 
	 Advances from customers *  472,054,051  582,535,250 
	 Statutory dues payable  98,599,879  77,289,962 
	 Other liabilities {Refer point (b)}  228,918,934  198,088,709 

 1,045,901,865  1,284,420,745 

	 * Refer note 32 for related party transactions
	 # Customer deposits are repayable on demand.

	 (a)	� Investor Education and Protection Fund is being credited by the amount of unclaimed dividend after seven years from the 
due date. Accordingly, the Company has transferred ` 141,107/- during the current year (Previous year ` 426,572/-) to the 
Investor Education and Protection Fund.

	 (b)	� Other liabilities (net) represents amount towards rate provision payable to the customers net off amounts receivable from 
customers in respect of price increase not yet debited.
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12.	 Property, Plant & Equipment

Amount in `

Particulars Land Buildings Plant and 
Machinery

Furniture & 
Fixtures 

Office 
Equipment

Vehicles Total

Leased Freehold Owned

Cost or Valuation

At 01.04.2015  280,236,142  259,094,226 1,121,020,212 5,122,850,003  89,613,517  9,351,530  102,386,932 6,984,552,562 

Additions  -    -    586,796  449,397,805  3,465,327  3,738,986  46,945,068  504,133,982 

Deductions/Adjustments  -    -    -    (22,822,578)  (45,244)  -    (25,637,972)  (48,505,794)

At 01.04.2016  280,236,142  259,094,226  1,121,607,008 5,549,425,230  93,033,600  13,090,516  123,694,028  7,440,180,750 

Additions  -    -    8,517,616  572,176,516  6,798,934  4,248,985  43,566,258  635,308,309 

Store & Spares Transferred 
From Inventory {Refer 
2.1(1)}

 -    -    -    9,521,291  -    -    -    9,521,291 

Adjustment of Revaluation 
Reserve {Refer 2.1(3)}

(18,219,916) (64,449,364) (1,351,066) (10,808,536)  -    -    -   (94,828,882)

Deductions/Adjustments  (248,966,250)  -    (152,339,889)  (75,305,142)  (73,175)  -    (7,891,406)  (484,575,862)

At 31.03.2017 13,049,976 194,644,862 976,433,669 6,045,009,359  99,759,359  17,339,501  159,368,880 7,505,605,606

Depreciation / 
Amortisation

At 01.04.2015  47,069,018  -    256,569,578 2,622,975,476  57,367,684  3,163,185  64,895,344 3,052,040,285 

For the year  7,211,595  -    37,743,178  296,790,072  5,382,666  2,400,982  15,430,626  364,959,119 

Deductions/Adjustments  -    -    -    (15,104,735)  (44,340)  -    (15,892,872)  (31,041,947)

At 01.04.2016  54,280,613  -    294,312,756 2,904,660,813  62,706,010  5,564,167  64,433,098  3,385,957,457 

For The Year {Refer 2.1}  3,889,574  -    35,435,728  328,774,299  5,175,553  3,031,225  17,944,731  394,251,110 

Adjustment of Revaluation 
Reserve {Refer 2.1(3)}

(5,939,555) - (1,292,791) (10,802,175)  -    -    -   (18,034,521)

Deductions/Adjustments  (50,876,257)  -    (17,540,336)  (22,386,474)  (63,919)  -    (6,515,905)  (97,382,891)

At 31.03.2017 1,354,375  -   310,915,357 3,200,246,463 67,817,644  8,595,392  75,861,924 366,479,155

Net Block

At 01.04.2016  225,955,529  259,094,226  827,294,252 2,644,764,417  30,327,590  7,526,349  59,260,930 4,054,223,293 

At 31.03.2017 11,695,601 194,644,862 665,518,312 2,844,762,896 31,941,715 8,744,109  83,506,956 3,840,814,451

	 Notes :

	 i)	 Depreciation for the year includes ` 735,787/- (Previous Year ` 140,245/-) being depreciation either capitalised / transferred on in-house 
development of tools.

	 ii)	 Written down Value of Building constructed on Leasehold land is ` 67,908,193/- (Previous Year ` 208,380,634/-)

	 iii)	 Building given on operating lease

		  Gross Block ` 30,801,326/- (Previous Year ` 183,141,215/-)

		  Depreciation Charge for the year ` 3,042,054/- (Previous Year ` 5,521,529/-)

		  Accumulated Depreciation ` 21,323,938/- (Previous Year ` 35,822,220/-)

		  Net Book Value ` 9,477,388/- (Previous Year ` 147,318,995/-)

	 iv)	 Adjustment of revaluation reserve
		  Pursuant to transition provisional of revised AS 10, the Company has decided to carry earlier revalued Land, Building and Plant & Machinery 

as per cost model. Accordingly, the Company has adjusted the balance in revaluation reserve with the related carrying amount of Land, 
Building and Plant & Machinery. Accordingly, Land is reduced by ` 76,729,725 and Building by ` 58,275.
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13.	 Intangible Assets
Amount in `

Particulars Computer 
Software

Technical 
Knowhow

Total

Gross Block

At 01.04.2015  108,066,591  34,441,989  142,508,580 

Additions  13,916,422  -    13,916,422 

At 01.04.2016  121,983,013  34,441,989  156,425,002 

Additions  18,365,048  -    18,365,048 

AT 31.03.2017  140,348,061  34,441,989  174,790,050 

Depreciation / Amortisation

At 01.04.2015  82,139,928  34,441,989  116,581,917 

For the year  14,169,106  -    14,169,106 

At 01.04.2016  96,309,034  34,441,989  130,751,023 

For the year  10,736,790  -    10,736,790 

AT 31.03.2017  107,045,824  34,441,989  141,487,813 

Net Block

At 31.03.2016  25,673,979  -    25,673,979 

At 31.03.2017  33,302,237  -    33,302,237 

14.	 Non-Current investments
Amount in `

As at 
March 31, 2017

As at
 March 31, 2016

i)	T rade investments (valued at cost unless stated otherwise)
	 Unquoted equity instruments
	 Investment in associates
		�  3,298,986 (Previous year 3,298,986) equity shares of ` 10 each 

fully paid-up in SL Lumax Limited
 35,474,204  35,474,204 

ii)	 Non-Trade investments (valued at cost unless stated otherwise)
	 Investment in equity instrument (unquoted)
		�  15,832 (Previous year 15,832) equity shares of ` 10 each fully 

paid-up in Caparo Power Limited
 158,320  158,320 

	 Preference shares (unquoted)
	�	�  944,168, (Previous year 944,168) 2% Redeemable Preference 

shares of ` 10 each fully paid-up in Caparo Power Limited
 9,441,680  9,441,680 

	 Aggregate amount of unquoted investment  45,074,204  45,074,204 

15.	 Loans and Advances
Amount in `

Non-current Current
As at 

March 31, 2017
As at

 March 31, 2016
As at 

March 31, 2017
As at

 March 31, 2016
Capital advances*
Unsecured, considered good	 (A)  83,416,857  42,168,002  -    -   
Security deposit*
Unsecured, considered good	 (B)  23,837,901  21,777,829  -    -   
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Amount in `
Non-current Current
As at 

March 31, 2017
As at

 March 31, 2016
As at 

March 31, 2017
As at

 March 31, 2016
Advances recoverable in cash or kind*

Unsecured, considered good  15,658,164  7,873,816  261,316,515  246,089,667 

Unsecured, considered doubtful  2,516,938  2,516,938  -    -   

 18,175,102 10,390,754  261,316,515  246,089,667 

Provision for doubtful advances  (2,516,938)  (2,516,938)  -    -   

(C)  15,658,164  7,873,816  261,316,515  246,089,667 

Other loans and advances (unsecured, 
considered good)*

Advance income-tax (net of provision for 
taxation)

 2,587,788  1,270,553  -    -   

MAT credit entitlement  350,783,068  239,219,298  -    -   

Prepaid expenses  -    -    26,110,800  34,680,245 

Loans to employees (interest free)  2,022,018  1,641,412  9,771,366  9,770,322 

Balances with statutory/ government 
authorities

 -    -    75,403,644  67,797,943 

(D)  355,392,874  242,131,263  111,285,810  112,248,510 

TOTAL (A+B+C+D)  478,305,796  313,950,910  372,602,325  358,338,177 

	 * Refer note 32 for related party transactions

16.	Trade  receivables and other current assets

	 16.1	Trade receivables*
Amount in `

As at 
March 31, 2017

As at
 March 31, 2016

As at 
March 31, 2017

As at
 March 31, 2016

Outstanding for a period exceeding six 
months from the date they are due for 
payment

Unsecured, considered good  -    -    38,877,098  15,069,282 

Unsecured, considered doubtful  7,290,477  5,625,734  -    -   

 7,290,477  5,625,734  38,877,098  15,069,282 

Provision for doubtful receivables  (7,290,477)  (5,625,734)  -    -   

(A)  -    -    38,877,098  15,069,282 

Other receivables

Unsecured, considered good  -    -    1,870,544,626  1,796,834,193 

(B)  -    -    1,870,544,626  1,796,834,193 

TOTAL (A + B)  -    -    1,909,421,724  1,811,903,475 

		  * Refer note 32 for related party transactions
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	 16.2	Other current/non-current assets
Amount in `

Non-current Current
As at 

March 31, 2017
As at

 March 31, 2016
As at 

March 31, 2017
As at

 March 31, 2016
Unsecured, considered good unless 
stated otherwise
Non-current bank balances (note 19) (A)  4,636,000  5,614,500  -    -   

Others
Property, Plant & Equipment held for 
sale (at net book value or estimated net 
realisable value, whichever is lower)

 -    -    6,565,100  6,565,100 

Claim Recoverable*  13,441,240  -    -    -   
Interest accrued on fixed deposits  -    -    2,727,087  2,256,770 
Derivative assets  -    6,534,376  5,656,250  62,159,375 

(B)  13,441,240  6,534,376  14,948,437  70,981,245 
		T  OTAL (A+B)  18,077,240  12,148,876  14,948,437  70,981,245 

		  * Refer Note 45

17.	 Current Investments
Amount in `

As at 
March 31, 2017

As at
 March 31, 2016

Valued at lower of cost and fair value, unless stated otherwise
Quoted equity instruments
43,866 (Previous year 43,866) equity shares of ` 10 each fully paid up in 
PNB Gilts Limited *

 987,000  987,000 

 987,000  987,000 
* �Aggregate amount of quoted equity investments
		  Cost  987,000  987,000 
		  Market Value  987,000  987,000 
		�  Provision for diminution in value of investment - - 

18.	 Inventories (valued at lower of cost and net realisable value)
Amount in `

As at 
March 31, 2017

As at
 March 31, 2016

Raw materials and components {including stock in transit ` 99,974,427/-  
(Previous year ` 44,968,311/-)} (refer note 22.1)

 563,627,742  534,805,354 

Work-in-progress (refer note 23)  62,287,029  65,959,140 
Finished goods  {including transit stock ` 59,907,868/- (Previous year 
` 50,771,780/-)} (refer note 23)

 162,636,784  134,925,273 

Traded goods (refer note 23)  16,092,471  35,171,173 
* Stores and spares (including packing material) {including transit stock 
` 1,722,315/- (Previous year ` 1,786,122/-)}

 99,077,725  76,765,267 

Moulds, tools and dies in process {including transit stock ` 15,509,046/- 
(Previous year ` 16,898,438/-)} (refer note 22.2)

 256,732,704  197,875,544 

 1,160,454,455  1,045,501,751 

	 *Refer Note 12 regarding stores and spares transferred from inventory to Property, Plant and Equipment.
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19.	 Cash and bank balances
Amount in `

Non-current Current
As at 

March 31, 2017
As at

 March 31, 2016
As at 

March 31, 2017
As at

 March 31, 2016
Cash and cash equivalents
Balances with banks:
	 On current accounts  -    -    4,636,144  19,014,978 
	 On unpaid dividend account*  -    -    5,491,286  7,746,077 
Cash on hand  -    -    1,727,866  2,764,506 
Cheques on Hand  -    -    342,358  5,026,725 

 -    -    12,197,654  34,552,286 
Other bank balances
Deposits having remaining maturity of 
more than 12 months#

 4,636,000  5,614,500  -    -   

Deposits having remaining maturity of less 
than 12 months#

 -    -    1,497,436  -   

 4,636,000  5,614,500  1,497,436  -   
Amount disclosed under non-current assets 
(note 16.2)

 (4,636,000)  (5,614,500)  -    -   

 -    -    13,695,090  34,552,286 

	 * The Company can utilize the balance only towards settlement of unclaimed dividend.

	 # Deposits include ` 6,133,436/- (Previous year ` 5,614,500/-) pledged with banks for guarantees given.

20.	 Revenue from operations
Amount in `

For the year ended 
March 31, 2017

For the year ended
March 31, 2016

Sale of products   
	 Finished goods #  13,203,906,447  12,894,075,425 
	 Traded goods  67,503,447  89,687,246 
	 Moulds, tools and dies  1,182,456,923  953,695,721 
Sale of services  64,936,884  70,345,756 
Other operating revenue   
	 Scrap sales  22,220,534  21,130,286 
	 Other  6,490,064  7,469,669 
Revenue from operations (gross)  14,547,514,299  14,036,404,103 
Excise duty*  1,549,704,727  1,484,651,738 
Revenue from operations (net)  12,997,809,572  12,551,752,365 

	 * �Excise duty on sales amounting to ` 1,549,704,727/- (Previous year: ` 1,484,651,738/-) has been reduced from sales in statement 
of profit & loss and excise duty on (increase)/decrease in inventory amounting to ` 6,776,891/- (Previous year: ` (2,045,717/-)) 
{note 25} has been considered as expense/(income).

	 Details of products sold
Amount in `

For the year ended 
March 31, 2017

For the year ended
March 31, 2016

Finished goods sold#

Automotive Lamps  13,203,906,447  12,889,052,831 
Gear shifter  -    5,022,594 
Total  13,203,906,447  12,894,075,425 

	 # Includes Raw material & components amounting to ` 268,878,975/- (Previous year ` 420,092,749/-)
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Amount in `
For the year ended 

March 31, 2017
For the year ended

March 31, 2016
Traded goods sold
Automotive Lamps  67,503,447  89,687,246 
Total  67,503,447  89,687,246 

Tools, moulds & dies sold
Tools & moulds  1,182,456,923  953,695,721 
Total  1,182,456,923  953,695,721 

Details of services rendered
Sale of designs  64,936,884  70,345,756 
Total  64,936,884  70,345,756 

21.	 Other Income
Amount in `

For the year ended 
March 31, 2017

For the year ended
March 31, 2016

Interest income on
	 Bank deposits  958,748  1,158,907 
	 Others  831,876  954,705 
Dividend income on long-term investments  5,189,159  5,206,188 
Profit on sale / discard of property, plant & equipment (net)  2,781,622  1,284,459 
Rent  15,464,570  23,918,588 
Provisions/creditors no longer required written back  1,106,454  5,570,487 
Exchange difference (net)  22,117,296  -   
Other non-operating income  13,447,049  5,670,306 
Total  61,896,774  43,763,640 

	 22.1	Cost of Raw Material and Components Consumed
Amount in `

For the year ended 
March 31, 2017

For the year ended
March 31, 2016

Inventory at the beginning of the year  534,805,354  470,228,897 
Add: Purchases  7,560,366,794  7,657,335,093 

 8,095,172,148  8,127,563,990 
Less: Inventory at the end of the year (Note 18)  563,627,742  534,805,354 

 7,531,544,406  7,592,758,636 
Details of raw material and components consumed
Plastic Powder  1,522,775,115  1,486,789,728 
Bulbs  1,180,198,284  1,068,934,727 
Adjustor Motors  717,469,058  705,782,386 
Others  4,111,101,949  4,331,251,795 
Total  7,531,544,406  7,592,758,636 

Details of Inventory
Raw material and components
Plastic Powder  110,584,705  122,528,343 
Bulbs  59,519,563  85,367,099 
Adjustor Motors  18,798,185  28,132,854 
Others  374,725,289  298,777,058 
Total  563,627,742  534,805,354 
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	 22.2	Cost of Moulds, Tools & Dies
Amount in `

For the year ended 
March 31, 2017

For the year ended
March 31, 2016

Inventory at the beginning of the year  197,875,544  307,716,967 
Add: Purchases  933,210,838  596,429,419 

 1,131,086,382  904,146,386 
Less: Inventory at the end of the year (Note 18)  256,732,704  197,875,544 

 874,353,678  706,270,842 

23.	 (Increase)/ decrease in Inventories
Amount in `

As at 
March 31, 2017

As at
March 31, 2016

 (Increase)/ 
Decrease

Inventories at the end of the year    
Work-in-progress (Note 18) 62,287,029  65,959,140  3,672,111 
Finished goods (Note 18) 162,636,784 134,925,273  (27,711,511)
Traded goods (Note 18) 16,092,471 35,171,173  19,078,702 

241,016,284 236,055,586  (4,960,698)
Inventories at the beginning of the year  
Work-in-progress 65,959,140 70,598,472  4,639,332 
Finished goods 134,925,273 149,795,987  14,870,714 
Traded goods 35,171,173 35,073,535  (97,638)

236,055,586 255,467,994  19,412,408 
(4,960,698) 19,412,408 

Details of purchase of traded goods
Amount in `

For the year ended 
March 31, 2017

For the year ended
March 31, 2016

Automotive Lamps  40,106,628  78,726,759 
Total  40,106,628  78,726,759 

Details of Inventory
Amount in `

As at
March 31, 2017

As at
March 31, 2016

Work-in-progress
Automotive Lamps 61,991,988  58,491,290 
Gear shifter 295,041  7,467,850 
Total  62,287,029  65,959,140 

Finished goods
Automotive Lamps 162,445,429  127,179,668 
Gear shifter 191,355  7,745,605 
Total  162,636,784  134,925,273 

Traded Goods
Automotive Lamps  16,092,471  35,171,173 
Total  16,092,471  35,171,173 
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24.	 Employee benefits expense
Amount in `

For the year ended 
March 31, 2017

For the year ended
March 31, 2016

Salaries, wages and bonus 1,352,469,417  1,205,738,921 

Contribution to provident and other fund  58,435,602  50,334,742 

Gratuity expense (note 29)  29,154,501  31,860,027 

Staff welfare expenses  143,345,163  124,626,130 

Commission to Directors  26,870,090  14,097,904 

 1,610,274,773  1,426,657,724 

25.	 Other expenses

Amount in `
For the year ended 

March 31, 2017
For the year ended

March 31, 2016

Consumption of stores and spares  51,818,917  52,815,108 
Packing material consumed  238,335,874  237,183,710 
Power and fuel  446,715,718  443,494,504 
Rent  20,323,132  16,510,452 
Rates and taxes  23,662,276  15,974,692 
Insurance  11,717,128  9,170,488 
Repairs and maintenance
	 -  Plant and machinery  116,002,330  120,168,868 
	 -  Buildings  15,402,721  13,830,214 
	 -  Others  129,533,487  109,309,667 
Freight and forwarding charges  214,952,792  224,789,472 
Discount, rebates and claims  1,879,471  2,146,626 
Cash discount on sales  28,522,992  27,349,136 
Commission on sales - other than sole selling agent  6,380,369  5,331,879 
Travelling and conveyance  129,887,043  110,962,414 
Legal and Professional Fees  17,092,087  20,630,174 
Management Support fees  178,446,018  123,628,508 
Design, support and testing charges  13,158,936  21,337,846 
Directors' sitting fees  1,246,200  1,122,100 
Payment to auditors (Refer details below)  5,436,766  6,128,033 
Donations  69,000  2,100 
Royalty  177,438,579  174,453,661 
Warranty costs  2,211,191  11,791,544 
(Increase) / decrease of excise duty on inventory (note 20)  6,776,891  (2,045,717)
Exchange difference (net)  -    3,006,669 
Provision for doubtful debts / advances  (net)  1,664,743  109,901 
Miscellaneous expenses  106,396,690  89,957,960 
Contribution towards Corporate Social Responsibility (note 44)  3,361,859  3,259,049 

 1,948,433,210 1,842,419,058 

Above expenses include research and development expenses (Refer note 43)
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	 Payment to Auditor

Amount in `

For the year ended 
March 31, 2017

For the year ended
March 31, 2016

As auditor:

	 Audit fee  3,248,467  3,224,300 

	 Tax audit fee  350,000  350,000 

	 Limited Review  1,290,000  1,290,000 

In other capacity:

	 Certification fees  40,000  790,000 

	 Reimbursement of expenses  508,299  473,733 

 5,436,766  6,128,033 

26.	 Depreciation and amortization expense

Amount in `

For the year ended 
March 31, 2017

For the year ended
March 31, 2016

Depreciation of property, plant & equipment  393,515,323  364,818,874 

Amortization of intangible assets  10,736,790  14,169,106 

 404,252,113  378,987,980 

27.	 Finance costs

Amount in `

For the year ended 
March 31, 2017

For the year ended
March 31, 2016

Interest to banks

	 - on term loans  21,342,082  52,585,682 

	 - on cash credit  85,302,232  69,705,542 

Interest others  1,496,491  1,673,315 

Bank charges  5,963,440  10,414,308 

 114,104,245  134,378,847 

28.	 Earnings per share (EPS)

Amount in `

 March 31, 2017  March 31, 2016 

The following reflects the profit and share data used in the basic and 
diluted EPS computations:

Net profit for calculation of basic and diluted EPS  451,834,166  373,739,743 

Weighted average number of equity shares in calculating basic and 
diluted EPS

 9,347,732  9,347,732 

Basic and Diluted Earnings per share({Nominal value of shares of ` 10 
(Previous year : ` 10)}

 48.34  39.98 
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29.	 Gratuity benefit plan

	 The Company operates defined benefit plan for gratuity for its employees. Under the gratuity plan, every employee 
who has completed atleast five years of service gets a gratuity on departure @ 15 days of last drawn basic salary 
including DA for each completed year of service, subject to a maximum amount of ` 1,000,000. The scheme is 
funded with an insurance Company in the form of qualifying insurance policy.

	 The following tables summarize the components of net (benefit) / expense recognized in the statement of profit and 
loss and the funded status and amounts recognized in the balance sheet for the gratuity plan.

	 Statement of profit and loss

	 Net employee (benefit) / expense recognized in the employee cost

Amount in `

Particulars Gratuity

March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016 

Current service cost 14,508,029 11,779,340

Interest cost on benefit obligation 10,820,159 9,355,669

Expected return on plan assets (9,245,428) (9,107,168)

Net actuarial (gain) / loss recognized in the year 13,071,741 19,832,186

Net (benefit) / expense (Refer Note 24) 29,154,501 31,860,027

Actual return on plan assets 9,762,628 9,296,805

	 Balance sheet

	 Benefit asset / (liability)
Amount in `

Particulars Gratuity

March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016 

Present value of defined benefit obligation 179,470,723 147,962,874

Fair value of plan assets 125,375,096 108,247,768

Plan asset / (liability) (54,095,627) (39,715,106)

	 Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation are as follows:
Amount in `

Particulars Gratuity

March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016 

Opening defined benefit obligation 147,962,874 133,082,909

Current service cost 14,486,915 11,779,340

Interest cost 10,820,159 9,355,669

Benefits paid (7,388,166) (26,276,867)

Actuarial (gains) / losses on obligation 13,588,941 20,021,823

Closing defined benefit obligation 179,470,723 147,962,874
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	 Changes in the fair value of plan assets are as follows:

Amount in `

Particulars Gratuity

March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016 

Opening fair value of plan assets 108,247,768 118,663,555

Expected return 9,245,428 9,107,168

Contributions by employer 14,774,092 6,179,474

Benefits paid (7,409,392) (25,892,066)

Actuarial gains / (losses) 517,200 189,637

Closing fair value of plan assets 125,375,096 108,247,768

	 The Company expects to contribute ` 39,206,270 to gratuity in the next year (Previous year: ` 14,789,453).

	T he major categories of plan assets as a percentage of the fair value of total plan assets are as follows:

Particulars Gratuity

March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016 

Investments with insurer 100% 100%

	T he principal assumptions used in determining gratuity obligation for the Company’s plans are shown below:

Particulars Gratuity

March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016 

Discount rate 7.50% 7.80%

Expected rate of return on assets 8.26% 8.37%

Attrition rate / Employee turnover 5.00% 5.00%

	� The estimates of future salary increases, considered in actuarial valuation, take account of inflation, seniority, 
promotion and other relevant factors, such as supply and demand in the employment market.

	� The overall expected rate of return on assets is determined based on the market prices prevailing on that date, 
applicable to the period over which the obligation is to be settled.

	 Amounts for the current and previous four periods are as follows:

Amount in `

Particulars March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016 March 31, 2015 March 31, 2014 March 31, 2013

Gratuity          

Defined benefit obligation 179,470,723 147,962,874 133,082,909 112,940,497 103,391,956

Plan assets 125,375,096 108,247,768 118,663,555 102,954,582 87,213,530

Surplus / (deficit) (54,095,627) (39,715,106) (14,419,354) (9,985,915) (16,178,426)

Experience adjustments on plan 
liabilities

13,588,941 20,021,823 6,927,756 2,769,944 2,796,180

Experience adjustments on plan 
assets

517,200 189,637 412,378 490,903 449,071
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30.	 Capitalization of Expenditure

	 (a)	� A project to set up a manufacturing plant in Sanand has started from October, 2016. The detail of Pre-operating 
expenses included in Capital work in progress in respect of project work are shown below. Consequently, 
expenses disclosed under the respective notes are net of amounts capitalized by the company.

Amount in `
Head-wise expense March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016
Insurance 733,249 -
Light & power exp. 670,575 -
Manpower cost 777,693 -
Miscellanies expenses 540,369 -
Security service 135,835 -
Travelling exp. 4,293,761 -
Interest 1,146,371 -
Total 8,297,853 -

	 (b)	� The following expenses have been reduced from the respective heads and have been included in the cost of 
moulds, tools and dies capitalized. Consequently, expenses disclosed under the respective notes are net of 
amounts capitalized by the company.

Amount in `
Particulars March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016

Repair and Maintenance – Plant & Machinery 1,117,160 67,524

Repair and Maintenance – Others 255,633 118,028

Miscellaneous Expenses - 1,248,281

Total 1,372,793 1,433,833

31.	 Segment information

	 Business Segments:

	� The Company produces various types of automotive lighting systems. Since the Company’s business activity 
falls within a single business segment, there are no additional disclosures to be provided under Accounting 
Standard-17 ‘Segment Reporting’ other than those already provided in the Financial Statements. 

	 Geographical Segments

	� The geographical segment comprises of domestic and overseas market. The following table shows the distribution 
of the Company’s consolidated sales by geographical market, regardless of where the goods were produced:

	 Revenue from operations by Geographical Market (Net of Excise Duties)
Amount in `

S. No. Particulars March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016
1 Domestic Market 12,732,119,808 12,252,216,443
2 Overseas Market 265,689,764 299,535,922

Total 12,997,809,572 12,551,752,365

	�T rade Receivables: The following table shows the distribution of the Company’s trade receivables by geographical 
market:

Amount in `
S. No. Particulars March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016

1 Domestic 1,825,226,523 1,724,817,408
2 Overseas 84,195,201 87,086,067

Total 1,909,421,724 1,811,903,475
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32.	 Related party disclosures 

	 Names of related parties and related party relationship

A.	 Related parties under AS-18 with whom transactions have taken place during the year.

S. No. Particulars Name of Related Parties

1. Enterprise having significant influence Stanley Electric Co. Ltd., Japan

2. Associate SL Lumax Limited

3. Key Management Personnel Mr. D. K. Jain (Chairman)

Mr. Deepak Jain (Managing Director)

Mr. Anmol Jain (Joint Managing Director)

Mr. E. Hirooka (Sr. Executive Director) 

Mr. N. Sato (Executive Director)

Mr. K Sawada (Executive Director)

4. Enterprise owned or significantly influenced 
by Key Management Personnel or their 
Relatives 

Lumax Auto Technologies Limited 

Lumax DK Auto Industries Limited

Lumax Tours & Travels Limited

Lumax Ancillary Limited

Mahavir Udyog 

Bharat Enterprises

Lumax Cornaglia Auto Technologies Private Limited

Lumax Mannoh Allied Technologies Limited

Lumax Management Services Private Limited

Lumax Energy Solutions Private Limited
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33	 Capital and other commitments
Amount in `

S. No. Particulars March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016
1. Estimated amount of Contract (Net of Advances paid during the 

year Rs 83,416,857 (Previous Year ` 42,168,002) remaining to be 
executed on capital account and not provided for.

231,483,678 63,366,133

34.	 Contingent liabilities
Amount in `

S. No. Particulars March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016
(i) Bills of exchange discounted from a bank 327,842,178 247,106,673
(ii) Various other claims of Sales Tax Matters made against the 

Company on account of non-submission of statutory forms etc. 
being disputed by the Company.

2,520,457 2,520,457

(iii) Demand of Central Sales Tax for FY 2010-11 & 2011-12 which is 
subject to submission of C-Form & H-Form.

7,737,765 2,140,602

(iv) Demand in respect of non-reversal of proportionate Cenvat Credit 
@ 0.6% against providing exempt services i.e. trading

- 1,088,154

(v) Demand of Cenvat Credit for  2011-2016 in respect of service tax 
paid on the outward transportation

1,569,640 3,209,812

(vi) In respect of additions made by the Assessing officer for 
Assessment Year 2009-10 and confirmed by DRP for which the 
Company has filed an appeal before ITAT and ITAT has decided 
in favour of the company vide order dated 22.04.2016 and relief 
granted in Assessing officer order dated 21.07.2016.

- 563,918

(vii) In respect of additions made by the Assessing officer for 
Assessment Year 2010-11 and confirmed by DRP for which the 
Company has filed an appeal before ITAT

177,323 177,323

(viii) Liability of Customs duty towards export obligation undertaken 
by the Company under EPCG licenses (including interest)

188,602,958 150,404,202

(ix) Letter of credit 144,665,857 21,552,216
(x) Bank Guarantees 505,372,500 287,364,400

	� The current year amount relating to income tax does not include interest. Based on the favorable decisions 
in similar cases/advice taken by the Company & based on management’s internal assessment, the Company 
believes that it has good case in respect of all the items listed above and hence no provision there against is 
considered necessary.

35.	 Disclosure in respect of cash transactions

	� The company held the following specified Bank Notes (SBNs) and the following transactions were incurred during 
the period from 8 November, 2016 to 30 December, 2016 as provided in the table below:

Particulars SBNs Other Denomination 
Notes

Total

Closing Balance as on 08.11.2016* 2,045,000 700,457 2,745,457
Add : Permitted Receipts* - 2,546,862 2,546,862
Less : Permitted Payments* - 2,109,613 2,109,613
Less : Deposited in Bank* 2,045,000 - 2,045,000
Closing Balance as on 30.12.2016* - 1,137,706 1,137,706

	 *Above disclosure is excluding money held in Taiwan Doller (TWD) in Taiwan.
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36.	 Derivative instruments and unhedged foreign currency exposure

	 (a)	 Derivatives outstanding as at the reporting date

Particulars Purpose
Cross Currency cum interest rate swap - USD 
625,000 (March 31, 2016: USD 4,687,500 ) Notional 
amount INR 40,531,250  (March 31, 2016: INR 
310,570,312)

Hedge against exposure to outflow for USD loan 
repayment and its interest payments. Swap to pay fixed 
interest @ 10.65% p.a. and receive a variable interest @ 
LIBOR plus margin.

	 (c)	 Particulars of unhedged foreign currency exposure as at the reporting date

Particulars Foreign 
Currency

Amount (in `) Amount 
(in Foreign currency)

Exchange rate (`)

March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016 March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016 March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016

Trade Payable 
(including payable for 
capital goods)

EUR 19,674,457 365,054 283,933 4,842 69.29 75.40

GBP 37,003 - 457 - 80.90 -

JPY 40,091,510 50,141,073 69,120,313 85,006,482 0.58 0.59

USD 384,489,770 166,495,082 5,928,909 2,512,944 64.85 66.26

CHF - 505,347 - 7,326 - 68.98

SGD - 123,943 - 2,516 - 49.27

Advance Recoverable EUR 16,323,922 2,354,835 235,580 31,233 69.29 75.40

CHF - 3,088,235 - 44,770 - 68.98

JPY 28,289,211 - 48,772,400 - 0.58 -

GBP 120,682 - 1,492 - 80.90 -

TWD 521,910 - 243,883 - 2.14 -

USD 217,862,618 183,301,669 3,359,485 2,766,609 64.85 66.26

Trade Receivable EUR 17,587,716 7,915,290 253,818 104,984 69.29 75.40

GBP 20,750,017 19,064,364 256,482 199,684 80.90 95.47

USD 45,857,467 60,106,413 7,07,131 907,198 64.85 66.26

37.	 Details of dues to micro and small enterprises as defined under the MSMED Act, 2006

Amount in `
Particulars March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016
The principal amount and the interest due thereon remaining unpaid to 
any supplier as at the end of each accounting year
Principal amount due to micro and small enterprises 1,480,603 722,444
Interest due on above 13,849 19,716

1,494,452 742,160
The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16 of the 
MSMED Act 2006 along with the amounts of the payment made to the 
supplier beyond the appointed day during each accounting year

- -

The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making 
payment (which have been paid but beyond the appointed day during the 
year) but without adding the interest specified under the MSMED Act 2006.

252,174 212,582

The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each 
accounting year.

855,618 589,595

The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the 
succeeding years, until such date when the interest dues as above are 
actually paid to the small enterprise for the purpose of disallowance as a 
deductible expenditure under section 23 of the MSMED Act 2006

- -

Notes to Financial Statements 
for the year ended March 31, 2017
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38.	 Value of imports calculated on CIF basis

Amount in `
Particulars March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016
Raw materials 869,186,734 676,064,647 
Components and spare parts 9,698,877   46,493,605 
Capital goods 767,389,318 493,505,670 
Traded Goods
 Mould Inventory

42,495,562
14,967,477

  78,172,998
-

Total 1,703,737,968 1,294,236,920

39.	 Expenditure in foreign currency (accrual basis)

Amount in `

Particulars March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016

Royalty 177,438,579 174,453,661

Management Support Fee 80,114,188 61,104,275

Travelling Expenses 27,825,550 24,287,607

Packing & Forwarding Expenses 1,531,576 1,775,553

Employee Benefit Expenses 17,497,072 6,739,195

Finance Cost 7,931,950 18,628,643

Commission 290,626 769,568

Repair & Maintenance 7,565,420 1,058,132

Design & Testing Charges 13,158,936 21,337,846

Design & Testing Charges (Included in Cost Of Mould ,Tools & Dies) 190,818,251 109,685,114

Legal And Profession - 54,059

Warranty Expenses 667,365 612,878

Rent Expenses 1,417,265 106,500

Insurance 626,963 -

Job-work charges (Included in Consumption) 1,543,870 -

Other Miscellaneous Expenses (included in various heads) 1,360,654 906,139

Total 529,788,265 421,519,170

40.	 Imported and indigenous raw materials, components and spare parts consumed

Amount in `

Particulars % of total 
consumption

March 31, 2017

Value 
March 31, 2017

% of total 
consumption

March 31, 2016

Value
March 31, 2016

Raw Materials & Components
	 Imported
	 Indigenously obtained

9.73
90.27

730,217,961
6,777,287,045

7.90
92.10

601,067,883
7,011,200,799

Total 100.00 7,507,505,006 100.00 7,612,268,682

Spare parts
	 Imported
	 Indigenously obtained

2.39
97.61

1,237,225
50,581,692

1.85
98.15

979,072
51,836,036

Total 100.00 51,818,917 100.00 52,815,108

Notes to Financial Statements 
for the year ended March 31, 2017
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41.	 Net dividend remitted in foreign exchange

Amount in `
Year of remittance (ending on) March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016
Period to which it relates 1 April 2015 to

31 March 2016
1 April 2014 to
31 March 2015

Number of non-resident 
shareholders

- -  2  2 

Number of equity shares held on 
which dividend was due

- -  3,505,399  3,505,399

Amount remitted (in USD) - - 616,695  284,193

42.	 Earnings in foreign currency (accrual basis)

Amount in `
Particulars March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016
Exports at F.O.B. Value 237,404,931 268,627,226
Recovery of testing charges/Service Income 7,184,705 15,121,522
Total 244,589,636 283,748,748

43.	 Details of Research and Development expenses are as follows:

	 A.	� The Company has incurred expenses on its in-house research and development center at Gurgaon approved 
and recognised by the Ministry of Science & Technology, Government of India. 

		  a.	 Capital Expenditure

Amount in `
Particulars March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016
Capital expenditure 21,297,790 17,154,739

		  b.	 Revenue Expenditure

Amount in `
Particulars March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016
Salaries, Wages and Bonus 90,008,894 73,028,979
Contribution to Provident Fund 4,391,761 3,586,926
Contribution to Other Funds 226,676 206,830
Staff Welfare 17,142,094 12,120,633
Provision for Retirement Benefit  3,253,842 2,110,993
Insurance 542,844 346,346
Repair & Maintenance 13,368,676 12,277,078
Travelling & Conveyance 35,097,633 29,025,564
Research & Development 34,892 1,120
Power & Fuel 926,800 808,238
Miscellaneous 5,257,390 4,676,826
Design, Support & Testing Charges 974,388 1,522,488
Material/Consumable/Spares 346,494 95,830
Depreciation 12,962,645 15,153,808
Finance Cost 634,542 745,982
Total 185,169,571 155,707,641

Notes to Financial Statements 
for the year ended March 31, 2017
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	 B.	� The Company has incurred expenses on its in-house research and development center at Pune approved and 
recognised by the Ministry of Science & Technology, Government of India. 

		  a.	 Capital Expenditure

Particulars March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016
Capital expenditure 20,196,177 7,463,762

		  b.	 Revenue Expenditure

Particulars March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016
Salaries, Wages and Bonus 68,314,460 44,708,512
Contribution to Provident Fund 2,786,748 2,147,793
Contribution to Other Funds 202,829 189,125
Staff Welfare 5,985,786 5,474,640
Provision for Retirement Benefit 1,669,314 1,333,692
Insurance 320,488 170,070
Repair & Maintenance 5,279,785 5,091,501
Travelling & Conveyance 15,612,732 11,521,068
Research & Development  -   61,383
Legal & Professional Expenses 2,209,754 3,596,647
Power & Fuel 2,979,941 2,337,783
Miscellaneous 2,682,080 1,821,636
Design, Support & Testing Charges 896,007 387,948
Material / Consumables / Spares 97,851 40,538
Depreciation 7,539,255 8,137,997
Finance Cost 171,685 218,462
Total 116,748,715 87,238,795

44.	 Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR)

	 As per the provisions of section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company has to spend atleast 2% of the 
average net profits of the company made during three immediately preceding financial years towards CSR. 
Accordingly, a CSR committee has been formed for carrying out the CSR activities as specified in Schedule VII of 
the Companies Act, 2013.The specified percentage of aforesaid net profit amounts to ` 3,742,223 (Previous year 
` 2,016,882). However, the Company has spent an amount of ` 3, 361,859 (Previous year ` 3, 259,049) and has 
accordingly charged the same to the statement of Profit & Loss.

45.	 Claim recoverable represents receivables from West Bengal Industrial Development Corporation in relation to 
Singur Land. The Company has relied on legal opinion for ascertaining the recoverability of the claim.

46.	 The assets of ` 350,783,068 (Previous year ` 239,219,298) recognized by the Company as ‘MAT Credit Entitlement’ 
under ‘ Loans and Advances’ represents that portion of MAT, which can be recovered and set off in subsequent 
years based on provisions of Section 115JAA of the Income Tax Act, 1961. The management, based on present trend 
of profitability and also the future profitability projections, is of the view that there would be sufficient taxable 
income in foreseeable future, which will enable the Company to utilize MAT credit assets.

47.	 Previous year’s figures have been regrouped / reclassified, where necessary, to conform to this year’s classification.

Notes to Financial Statements 
for the year ended March 31, 2017

As per our report of even date

For S. R. Batliboi & CO. LLP	  For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of Lumax Industries Limited
Chartered Accountants
ICAI firm registration number: 301003E/E300005

per Vikas Mehra	 D. K. Jain	 Deepak Jain
Partner	 Chairman	 Managing Director
Membership No. 94421	 DIN: 00085848	 DIN: 00004972

Place : Gurugram	 Shruti Kant Rustagi 	 Shwetank Tiwari
Date : May 13, 2017 	 Chief Financial Officer	 Company Secretary
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To the Members of  Lumax Industries Limited

Report on the Consolidated Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial 
statements of Lumax Industries Limited, (“hereinafter 
referred to as the “Holding Company”) and its associate 
Company, comprising of the consolidated Balance Sheet 
as at March 31, 2017, the consolidated Statement of Profit 
and Loss and consolidated Cash Flow Statement for the 
year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting 
policies and other explanatory information.

Management’s Responsibility for the Consolidated 
Financial Statements

The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for 
the preparation of these consolidated financial statements 
in terms with the requirement of the Companies Act, 2013 
(“the Act”) that give a true and fair view of the consolidated 
financial position, consolidated financial performance and 
consolidated cash flows of the Holding Company and 
its associate in accordance with accounting principles 
generally accepted in India, including the Accounting 
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read 
with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 and 
Companies (Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 
2016.The respective Board of Directors of the Companies 
included in the Holding Company and its associate are 
responsible for maintenance of adequate accounting 
records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for 
safeguarding of the assets of the Holding Company and 
its associate and for preventing and detecting frauds 
and other irregularities; the selection and application 
of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments 
and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the 
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate 
internal financial control that were operating effectively for 
ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting 
records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the 
financial statements that give a true and fair view and are 
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or 
error, which have been used for the purpose of preparation 
of the consolidated financial statements by the Directors of 
the Holding Company, as aforesaid. 

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these 
consolidated financial statements based on our audit. 
While conducting the audit, we have taken into account the 
provisions of the Act, the accounting and auditing standards 
and matters which are required to be included in the audit 
report under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made 
thereunder. We conducted our audit in accordance with the 

Standards on Auditing, issued by the Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of India, as specified under Section 143(10) 
of the Act. Those Standards require that we comply with 
ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to 
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial 
statements are free from material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain 
audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in 
the consolidated financial statements. The procedures 
selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the 
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the 
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud 
or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor 
considers internal financial control relevant to the Holding 
Company’s preparation of the consolidated financial 
statements that give a true and fair view in order to design 
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. 
An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of 
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of the 
accounting estimates made by the Holding Company’s 
Board of Directors, as well as evaluating the overall 
presentation of the consolidated financial statements. We 
believe that the audit evidence obtained by us and the audit 
evidence obtained by the other auditors in terms of their 
reports referred to in paragraph (a) of the Other Matters 
below, is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for 
our audit opinion on the consolidated financial statements.

Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our information and 
according to the explanations given to us, the consolidated 
financial statements give the information required by the 
Act in the manner so required and give a true and fair view 
in conformity with the accounting principles generally 
accepted in India of the consolidated state of affairs of 
the Holding Company and its associate as at March 31, 
2017, their consolidated profit, and their consolidated cash 
flows for the year ended on that date.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

As required by section 143 (3) of the Act, we report, to the 
extent applicable, that: 

	 (a)	� We / the other auditors whose reports we have 
relied upon have sought and obtained all the 
information and explanations which to the best 
of our knowledge and belief were necessary 
for the purpose of our audit of the aforesaid 
consolidated financial statements;

	 (b)	 �In our opinion proper books of account as 
required by law relating to preparation of 

Independent Auditor’s Report
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the aforesaid consolidation of the financial 
statements have been kept so far as it appears 
from our examination of those books and reports 
of the other auditors;

	 (c)	� The consolidated Balance Sheet, consolidated 
Statement of Profit and Loss, and consolidated 
Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this Report 
are in agreement with the books of account 
maintained for the purpose of preparation of the 
consolidated financial statements;

	 (d)	� In our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated 
financial statements comply with the Accounting 
Standards specified under section 133 of the Act, 
read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) 
Rules, 2014 and Companies (Accounting 
Standards) Amendment Rules, 2016; 

	 (e)	� On the basis of the written representations 
received from the directors of the Holding 
Company as on March 31, 2017 taken on 
record by the Board of Directors of the Holding 
Company and the reports of the auditors of the 
associate Company incorporated in India, none 
of the directors of the Holding Company and its 
associate, incorporated in India is disqualified 
as on 31st March, 2017 from being appointed as 
a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

	 (f)	� With respect to the adequacy and the operating 
effectiveness of the internal financial controls 
over financial reporting of the Holding Company 
and its associate, refer to our separate report in 
“Annexure 1” to this report;

	 (g)	� With respect to the other matters to be included in 
the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of 
the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, 
in our opinion and to the best of our information 
and according to the explanations given to us:

		  i.	� The consolidated financial statements 
disclose the impact of pending litigations 
on its consolidated financial position of 
the Holding Company and its associate – 
Refer Note 34 to the consolidated financial 
statements; 

		  ii.	� The Company has made provision, 
as required under the applicable law 
or accounting standards, for material 
foreseeable losses, if any, on long-term 
contracts including derivative contract; 

	 	 iii.	� There has been no delay in transferring 
amounts, required to be transferred, to the 
Investor Education and Protection Fund 
by the Holding Company and its associate 
incorporated in India during the year ended 
March 31, 2017.

		  iv.	 �The Holding Company and its associate have 
provided requisite disclosures in Note 35 to 
these consolidated financial statements as 
to the holding of Specified Bank Notes on 
November 8, 2016 and December 30, 2016 
as well as dealings in Specified Bank Notes 
during the period from November 8, 2016 
to December 30, 2016. Based on our audit 
procedures and relying on the management 
representation of the Holding Company 
regarding the holding and nature of cash 
transactions, including Specified Bank 
Notes, we report that these disclosures are 
in accordance with the books of accounts 
maintained by the Holding Company and 
its associate and as produced to us by the 
Management of the Holding Company.

Other Matter

We did not audit the financial statements of an associate. The 
consolidated financial statements include the Company’s 
share of net profit of ` 10,53,02,432 for the year ended 
March 31, 2017, as considered in the consolidated financial 
statements, in respect of one associate, whose financial 
statements, other financial information have been audited 
by other auditors and whose reports have been furnished 
to us by the Management. Our opinion on the consolidated 
financial statements, in so far as it relates to the amounts 
and disclosures included in respect of its associate, and 
our report in terms of sub-sections (3) of Section 143 of 
the Act, in so far as it relates to the aforesaid associate, is 
based solely on the report of such other auditor.

Our opinion above on the consolidated financial statements, 
and our report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 
above, is not modified in respect of the above matters with 
respect to our reliance on the work done and the reports of 
the other auditors and the financial statements and other 
financial information certified by the Management.

For S.R. Batliboi & CO. LLP 
Chartered Accountants

ICAI Firm Registration Number: 301003E/E300005

per Vikas Mehra
Place of Signature: New Delhi	 Partner
Date: May 13, 2017	 Membership Number: 94421
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In conjunction with our audit of the consolidated financial 
statements of Lumax Industries Limited as of and for the 
year ended March 31, 2017, we have audited the internal 
financial controls over financial reporting of Lumax 
Industries Limited (hereinafter referred to as the “Holding 
Company”) and its associate Company which are the 
Companies incorporated in India, as of that date. 

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial 
Controls 

The respective Board of Directors of the Holding 
Company, its associate company which are Companies 
incorporated in India, are responsible for establishing 
and maintaining internal financial controls based on 
the internal control over financial reporting criteria 
established by the Holding Company considering the 
essential components of internal control stated in the 
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls 
Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of 
Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities 
include the design, implementation and maintenance of 
adequate internal financial controls that were operating 
effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct 
of its business, including adherence to the respective 
company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, 
the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, 
the accuracy and completeness of the accounting 
records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial 
information, as required under the Act. 

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the 
company’s internal financial controls over financial 
reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit 
in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of 
Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the 
“Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing, both, 
issued by Institute of Chartered Accountants of India, and 
deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Act, 
to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial 
controls. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require 
that we comply with ethical requirements and plan 
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance 
about whether adequate internal financial controls over 
financial reporting was established and maintained and if 
such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit 
evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial 
controls system over financial reporting and their 
operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial 
controls over financial reporting included obtaining 
an understanding of internal financial controls over 
financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material 
weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design 
and operating effectiveness of internal control based on 
the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on 
the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the 
risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, 
whether due to fraud or error. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained and 
the audit evidence obtained by the other auditors in terms 
of their reports referred to in the Other Matters paragraph 
below, is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for 
our audit opinion on the internal financial controls system 
over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial 
Reporting 

A company’s internal financial control over financial 
reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable 
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting 
and the preparation of financial statements for external 
purposes in accordance with generally accepted 
accounting principles. A company’s internal financial 
control over financial reporting includes those policies 
and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of 
records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly 
reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets 
of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance 
that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit 
preparation of financial statements in accordance with 
generally accepted accounting principles, and that 
receipts and expenditures of the company are being made 
only in accordance with authorisations of management 
and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable 
assurance regarding prevention or timely detection 
of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the 
company’s assets that could have a material effect on the 
financial statements.

Annexure-1 to the independent auditor’s report of even date on the consolidated 
financial statements of lumax industries limited
report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013  
(“the Act”)
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Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over 
Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial 
controls over financial reporting, including the possibility 
of collusion or improper management override of controls, 
material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur 
and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation 
of the internal financial controls over financial reporting 
to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal 
financial control over financial reporting may become 
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the 
degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may 
deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Holding Company and its associate 
which are Companies incorporated in India, have, 
maintained in all material respects, an adequate internal 
financial controls system over financial reporting and 
such internal financial controls over financial reporting 
were operating effectively as at March 31, 2017, based 
on the internal control over financial reporting criteria 
established by the Holding Company considering the 
essential components of internal control stated in the 

Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls 
Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of 
Chartered Accountants of India. 

Other Matters

Our report under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act on the 
adequacy and operating effectiveness of the internal 
financial controls over financial reporting of the Holding 
Company, insofar as it relates to the one associate 
Company, which is the Company incorporated in India, is 
based on the corresponding report of the auditors of such 
associate Company incorporated in India.

For S.R. Batliboi & CO. LLP 
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 301003E/E300005

per Vikas Mehra
Partner
Membership Number: 94421

Place of Signature: New Delhi
Date: May 13, 2017
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Amount in `
Notes As at 

March 31, 2017
As at

 March 31, 2016
I.	 EQUITY & LIABILITIES
	 Shareholders’ funds
		  (a) 	Share capital 3  93,477,320  93,477,320 
		  (b)	  Reserves and surplus 4 3,065,312,747  2,590,191,806 

 3,158,790,067  2,683,669,126 
	 Non-Current Liabilities
		  (a)	 Long term borrowings 5  36,376,956  105,728,944 
		  (b) 	Deferred tax liabilities (net)  6  279,439,857  194,418,367 
		  (c) 	Other long term liabilities 7  217,424,739  223,712,544 
		  (d) 	Long term provisions  8  114,598,344  92,716,007 

 647,839,896  616,575,862 
	 Current Liabilities
		  (a) 	Short term borrowings 9  790,221,122  848,253,641 
		  (b) 	Trade payables 10
			   - �Total outstanding due of micro enterprises and small 

enterprises 
1,480,603  722,444 

			   - �Total outstanding due of creditors other than micro 
enterprises and small enterprises

 3,441,231,922  3,096,045,229 

		  (c) 	Other current liabilities 11  1,045,901,865  1,284,420,745 
		  (d) 	Short term provisions 8  69,277,569  55,912,545 

 5,348,113,081  5,285,354,604 
	 TOTAL  9,154,743,044  8,585,599,592 
II	 ASSETS
	 Non-Current Assets
		  (a)	 Fixed assets
			   Property, Plant & Equipment 12  3,840,814,451  4,054,223,293 
			   Intangible assets 13  33,302,237  25,673,979 
			   Capital work in progress  524,819,185  170,377,539 
		  (b) 	Non-Current Investments 14  787,315,104  686,961,061 
		  (c) 	Loans and advances 15  478,305,796  313,950,910 
		  (d) 	Other Non-Current assets 16.2  18,077,240  12,148,876 

 5,682,634,013  5,263,335,658 
	 Current Assets
		  (a)	 Current investments 17  987,000  987,000 
		  (b)	 Inventories 18  1,160,454,455  1,045,501,751 
		  (c)	 Trade receivables 16.1  1,909,421,724  1,811,903,475 
		  (d)	 Cash and bank balances 19  13,695,090  34,552,286 
		  (e)	 Loans and advances 15  372,602,325  358,338,177 
		  (f)	 Other current assets 16.2  14,948,437  70,981,245 

 3,472,109,031  3,322,263,934 
	 TOTAL  9,154,743,044  8,585,599,592 
Summary of significant accounting policies 2.1
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

As per our report of even date

For S. R. Batliboi & CO. LLP	  For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of Lumax Industries Limited
Chartered Accountants
ICAI firm registration number: 301003E/E300005

per Vikas Mehra	 D. K. Jain 	 Deepak Jain
Partner	 Chairman	 Managing Director
Membership No. 94421	 DIN: 00085848	 DIN: 00004972

Place : Gurugram	 Shruti Kant Rustagi 	 Shwetank Tiwari
Date : May 13, 2017 	 Chief Financial Officer	 Company Secretary

Consolidated Balance Sheet  
as at March 31, 2017
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As per our report of even date

For S. R. Batliboi & CO. LLP	  For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of Lumax Industries Limited
Chartered Accountants
ICAI firm registration number: 301003E/E300005

per Vikas Mehra	 D. K. Jain 	 Deepak Jain
Partner	 Chairman	 Managing Director
Membership No. 94421	 DIN: 00085848	 DIN: 00004972

Place : Gurugram	 Shruti Kant Rustagi 	 Shwetank Tiwari
Date : May 13, 2017 	 Chief Financial Officer	 Company Secretary

Amount in `
Notes For the year ended

March 31, 2017
For the year ended

March 31, 2016
INCOME
Revenue from Operations (Gross) 20  14,547,514,299  14,036,404,103 
Less: Excise duty  (1,549,704,727)  (1,484,651,738)
Revenue from Operations (Net)  12,997,809,572  12,551,752,365 
Other income 21  56,948,385  38,815,251 
TOTAL REVENUE (I)  13,054,757,957  12,590,567,616 

EXPENSES
Cost of raw material and components consumed 22.1  7,531,544,406  7,592,758,636 
Cost of moulds, tools & dies  22.2  874,353,678  706,270,842 
Purchase of traded goods 23  40,106,628  78,726,759 
(Increase)/ decrease in inventories of finished goods work-in-progress  
and traded goods

23  
(4,960,698)

  
19,412,408 

Employee benefits expense 24  1,610,274,773  1,426,657,724 
Other expenses 25  1,948,433,210  1,842,419,058 
Depreciation and amortisation expense 26  404,252,113  378,987,980 
Finance costs 27  114,104,245  134,378,847 
TOTAL (II)  12,518,108,355  12,179,612,254 

Profit before tax (I-II)  536,649,602  410,955,362 
Tax expenses
Minimum alternate tax  114,985,582  87,820,983 
Less : MAT credit entitlement   (114,985,582)  (87,820,983)
Net current tax liability - -
Current Tax for earlier years  4,742,334  12,558 
Deferred tax  85,021,491  42,151,450 
Total tax expense  89,763,825  42,164,008 
Profit for the year before share of Profit of Associate  446,885,777  368,791,354 

Add : Investor's share of Profit in associate  105,302,432  151,468,612 
Net Profit for the year  552,188,209  520,259,966 

Earnings per equity share - Basic and diluted {Nominal value of share  
`10 (Previous year : ` 10)}

28 59.07  55.66 

Summary of significant accounting policies 2.1
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss
for the year ended March 31, 2017 
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Amount in `

S. No. Particulars March 31, 2017  March 31, 2016

A. Cash flow from operating activities

Profit before tax  536,649,602 410,955,362 

Adjustment to reconcile profit before tax to net cash flows

Depreciation/ amortisation  404,252,113  378,987,980 

Provision for doubtful debts / advances  1,664,743  109,901 

Loss/(Profit) on sale of Property, Plant & Equipment  (2,781,622)  (1,284,459)

Unrealised foreign exchange (gain)/ loss  (11,348,653)  1,877,281 

Finance cost  114,104,245  134,378,847 

Interest income  (1,790,624)  (2,113,612)

Dividend income  (240,770)  (257,799)

Operating profit before working capital changes  1,040,509,034 922,653,501 

Movements in working capital:

Decrease/ (increase) in inventories  (114,952,704)  53,458,060 

Decrease/ (increase) in trade receivables  (82,807,463)  (371,891,787)

Decrease/ (increase) in loans and advances  (24,489,174)  (65,507,093)

Decrease/ (increase) in other current assets  (13,441,240)  - 

Increase/ (decrease) in liabilities and provisions  313,584,683  355,749,024 

Cash generated from operations  1,118,403,136  894,461,705 

Direct taxes paid  117,623,339  81,152,115 

Net cash flow from operating activities (A)  1,000,779,797  813,309,590 

B. Cash flow from investing activities

Purchase of fixed assets, including CWIP  (1,016,719,198)  (399,249,859)

Proceeds from sales of Property, Plant & Equipment  389,974,593  18,748,306 

Interest received  1,320,307  1,783,419 

Dividends received  5,189,159  5,206,188 

�Investments in bank deposits (having original maturity of more  
than three months)

 (518,936)  - 

�Redemption/ maturity of bank deposits (having original maturity of more 
than three months)

 -  7,258,876 

Net cash flow used in investing activities (B)  (620,754,075) (366,253,070)

C. Cash flow from financing activities

Proceeds from long term borrowings  28,953,428 31,050,847 

Repayment of long term borrowings  (256,920,993) (350,443,996)

�Proceeds from/(repayment) of bank borrowings and short  
term loans (net)

 (58,032,519) 60,549,305 

Interest Paid (116,380,270)  (138,901,651)

Dividend Paid on equity shares  -  (163,585,310)

Tax on equity dividend paid  -  (33,302,045)

Net cash flow from/ (used in) financing activities (C) (402,380,354)  (594,632,850)

Net increase/ (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) (22,354,632)  (147,576,330)

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 34,552,286  182,128,616 

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 12,197,654  34,552,286 

Consolidated Cash Flow Statement 
for the year ended March 31, 2017 
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As per our report of even date

For S. R. Batliboi & CO. LLP	  For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of Lumax Industries Limited
Chartered Accountants
ICAI firm registration number: 301003E/E300005

per Vikas Mehra	 D. K. Jain 	 Deepak Jain
Partner	 Chairman	 Managing Director
Membership No. 94421	 DIN: 00085848	 DIN: 00004972

Place : Gurugram	 Shruti Kant Rustagi 	 Shwetank Tiwari
Date : May 13, 2017 	 Chief Financial Officer	 Company Secretary

Amount in `

S. No. Particulars March 31, 2017  March 31, 2016

Components of cash and cash equivalents

Cash on hand 1,727,866  2,764,506 

Cheques on Hand 342,358 5,026,725 

Balances with banks:

	 On current accounts 4,636,144 19,014,978 

	 On unpaid dividend accounts* 5,491,286 7,746,077 

Total cash and cash equivalents (note 19) 12,197,654 34,552,286 

		  * �The Company can utilize these balances only toward settlement of the respective unpaid dividend.
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1.	 Corporate Information and principles of 
consolidation

	 The consolidated financial statements relate to Lumax 
Industries Limited (‘Parent Company’) and its associate 
company. The company is a leading manufacturer 
and supplier of auto components, mainly automotive 
lighting systems for four-wheeler and two-wheeler 
applications. The Company has technical as well as 
financial collaboration with Stanley Electric Co. Ltd., 
Japan. Its shares are listed on two exchanges in India. 
The consolidated financial statements have been 
prepared on the following basis:

	 a.	� The financial statements of the parent company 
and its associate have been combined as per 
equity method from the date on which it falls 
within the definition of an associate as per 
Accounting Standard – 21, on Consolidated 
Financial Statements, notified under the 
Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 
2014. On acquisition of the investment, any 
difference between the cost of acquisition 
and the Company’s share of the equity of the 
associate has been described as goodwill or 
capital reserve, as the case may be.

	 b.	� The parent Company has prepared the 
accompanying consolidated financial 
statements by including the parent Company’s 
proportionate share in the associate’s net profit 
(after taxes) as per equity method. Unrealised 
profits and losses resulting from transactions 
between the parent Company and the associate 
have been eliminated to the extent of parent 
Company’s proportionate share.

	 c.	 Details of the associate Company is as follows:

Name
Country of 

Incorporation
Percentage Holding as 

at March 31, 2017
SL Lumax 

Limited
India 21.28%

	 d.	� The Parent Company and its associate follow 
a uniform accounting period and as far as 
possible, the Consolidated Financial Statements 
have been prepared using accounting policies 
for like transactions and other events in similar 
circumstances and are presented to the extent 
possible, in the same manner as the Parent 
Company’s separate financial statements.

2.	 Basis of preparation

	 The financial statements of the Company have been 
prepared and presented in accordance with generally 
accepted accounting principles in India (Indian 
GAAP). The Company has prepared these financial 
statements to comply with all material respects with 
the accounting standards specified under section 
133 of the Companies Act, 2013, read together with 
paragraph 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 
and Companies (Accounting Standards) Amendment 
Rules, 2016. The financial statements have been 
prepared on an accrual basis and under the historical 
cost convention.

	 The accounting policies adopted in the preparation 
of financial statements are consistent with those of 
previous year, except for the change in accounting 
policy explained below.

	 2.1	 Summary of significant accounting policies 

	 Change in Accounting Policies

	 1.	� Classification of items of stores and 
spares

			�   Pre-revised AS 10 required that stand-by 
and servicing equipment should normally 
be capitalized as property, plant and 
equipment. It required that machinery 
spares are usually treated as inventory and 
charged to profit or loss on consumption. 
However, spares parts that can be only 
used in connection with a particular item 
of property, plant and equipment, and 
whose use is expected to be irregular, are 
capitalized. Such spare parts are depreciated 
over a period, not exceeding the remaining 
useful life of the principal asset. 

			�   According to revised AS 10, all spare parts, 
stand-by and servicing equipment qualify 
as property, plant and equipment (PPE) if 
they meet the definition of PPE i.e. if the 
company intends to use these during more 
than a period of 12 months, the spare parts 
capitalized in this manner are depreciated 
as per revised AS 10.

			�   The company has changed its accounting 
policy of property, plant and equipment to 

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 
for the year ended March 31, 2017
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comply with changes in AS 10. The company 
has applied transitional provisions that 
requires previously recognized stores and 
spares as inventory be capitalized as PPE 
at its carrying amount and be depreciated 
prospectively over its remaining useful life.

		�  Spare Parts having useful life for more than 
one year are capitalised w.e.f. 01.04.2016.

			�   Had the company continued to use 
the earlier policy of classifying stores 
and spares as inventories, its financial 
statements for the period would have been 
impacted as below:

			�   Inventories would have been higher by  
` 9,521,290, property, plant and equipment 
would have been lower by ` 9,521,290 
(gross), depreciation would have been 
lower by ` 1,329,029. Profit before tax for 
the current period would have been higher 
by ` 1,329,029. 

2.	 Accounting of Proposed Dividend

	 As per the requirements of pre-revised AS 4, the 
Company used to create a liability for dividend 
proposed/ declared after the balance sheet date for 
dividend related to periods covered by the financial 
statements. Going forward, as per revised AS 4, 
the company cannot create provision for dividend 
proposed / declared after the balance sheet date 
unless a statute requires otherwise. However, the 
company need to disclose the same in notes to the 
financial statements.

	 Accordingly, the company has disclosed dividend 
proposed by board of directors after the balance 
sheet date in the notes. 

	 Had the company continued with creation of 
provision for proposed dividend, its surplus in the 
statement of profit and loss account would have 
been lower by ` 163,135,299 and current provision 
would have been higher by ` 163,135,299 (including 
dividend distribution tax of ` 27,593,185).

3.	� Accounting for assets earlier carried at 
revalued amount

		�  The Company had revalued Land, Building and 
Plant & Machinery and was carried at revalued 

amount under the pre-revised AS 10. Under the 
revised AS 10, the Company has applied cost 
model on all the items of property, plant and 
equipment. As per the transitional provision 
under revised AS 10, where a Company does not 
adopt the revaluation model as its accounting 
policy but the carrying amount of item(s) of PPE 
reflects any previous revaluation, the Company 
should adjust the amount outstanding in the 
revaluation reserve against the carrying amount 
of that item. However, the carrying amount 
of that item should not be less than residual 
value. Any excess of the amount outstanding 
as revaluation reserve over the carrying 
amount of that item should be adjusted in 
revenue reserves. Accordingly, the Company 
has adjusted the balance of revaluation reserve 
against land and building, resulting in reduction 
in land and building and revaluation reserve by 
` 77,067,268.

	 a.	 Use of estimates

		�  The preparation of financial statements are in 
conformity with Indian GAAP which requires the 
management to make judgments, estimates and 
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of 
assets, liabilities, revenue and expenses and the 
disclosure of contingent liabilities, at the end of 
the reporting period. Although these estimates 
are based on the management’s best knowledge 
of current events and actions, uncertainty 
about these assumptions and estimates could 
result in the outcomes requiring a material 
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets, 
liabilities, revenue and expenses in future 
periods. Changes in estimates are reflected in 
the financial statements in the period in which 
changes are made and if material, their effects 
are disclosed in notes to accounts.

	 b.	G oodwill/ capital reserve 

		�  Goodwill/ capital reserve represents the 
difference between the parent’s Company share 
in the net worth of the associate company and 
the cost of acquisition at the time of making the 
investment in the associate company. For this 
purpose, the Parent Company’s share of net 
worth of the associate company is determined 
on the basis of the latest financial statements 
of the associate company prior to acquisition, 

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 
for the year ended March 31, 2017
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after making necessary adjustments for material 
events between the date of such financial 
statements and the date of respective acquisition.

	 c.	 Property, Plant and Eqiupment

		�  Property, plant and equipment are stated at 
cost, net of accumulated depreciation and 
accumulated impairment losses, if any. The 
cost comprises purchase price, borrowing 
costs if capitalization criteria are met and 
directly attributable cost of bringing the asset 
to its working condition for the intended use. 
Any trade discounts and rebates are deducted 
in arriving at the purchase price. Such cost 
includes the cost of replacing part of the plant 
and equipment. When significant parts of plant 
and equipment are required to be replaced 
at intervals, the Company depreciates them 
separately based on their specific useful lives. 
Likewise, when a major inspection is performed, 
its cost is recognised in the carrying amount of 
the plant and equipment as a replacement if the 
recognition criteria are satisfied. All other repair 
and maintenance costs are recognised in profit 
or loss as incurred.

		�  Items of stores and spares that meet the 
definition of property, plant and equipment are 
capitalized at cost and depreciated over their 
useful life. Otherwise, such items are classified 
as inventories. 

		�  Gains or losses arising from derecognition of 
property, plant and equipment are measured 
as the difference between the net disposal 
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset 
and are recognized in the statement of profit and 
loss when the asset is derecognized.

		�  If a component/ part of an asset has a cost 
which is significant to the total cost of asset 
and has a useful life that is materially different 
from that of the remaining component/part 
of the asset, the Company identifies and 
determines cost of such component/part of the 
asset separately.

 		�  Property, plant and equipment held for 
sale is valued at lower of their carrying amount 
and net realizable value. Any write-down is 
recognized in the statement of profit and loss.

		  Depreciation on Property, plant and Equipment

		�  Leasehold land is amortized over the period of 
lease ranging from 90 years to 99 years.

		�  Depreciation on other property, plant and 
equipment is calculated on a straight line basis 
using rates arrived at based on the useful lives 
estimated by the management. The identified 
components are depreciated separately over 
their useful lives; the remaining components are 
depreciated over the life of the principal asset.. 
The Company has used following estimated 
useful life to provide depreciation on its property, 
plant and equipment: 

Particulars Useful lives 
estimated by the 

management 
(years)

Factory building 30
Other building 60
Plant and Machinery (i, ii) 3-21
Spare Parts 3-15
Furniture and fixtures 10
Vehicles (ii) 5-8
Office equipment 5

	 i)	� The management has estimated supported 
by independent assessment, the useful life of 
certain plant and machinery as 21 years, which 
is higher than those indicated in schedule II of 
the Companies Act 2013.

	 ii)	� The management has estimated, based on 
past experience, the useful life of these blocks 
of assets as lower than the life indicated for 
respective block of assets in schedule II of the 
Companies Act 2013.

		�  The residual values, useful lives and methods of 
depreciation of property, plant and equipment 
are reviewed at each financial year end and 
adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

	 d.	 Intangible Assets

		�  Intangible assets acquired separately are 
measured on initial recognition at cost. 
Following initial recognition, intangible assets 
are carried at cost less accumulated amortization 
and accumulated impairment losses, if 

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 
for the year ended March 31, 2017
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any. Internally generated intangible assets, 
excluding capitalized development costs, are 
not capitalized and expenditure is reflected in 
the statement of profit and loss in the year in 
which the expenditure is incurred.

		�  Intangibles assets are amortized using straight-
line method over their estimated useful lives as 
follows:

Intangible 
Assets

Estimated Useful Life (Years)

Computer 
Software

Over the estimated economic 
useful lives ranging from 3.5 to 
5 years

Technical 
Know-how

Over the period of Technical 
Assistance Agreement i.e. 8 
years

		�  The amortization period and the amortization 
method are reviewed at least at each financial 
year end. If the expected useful life of the asset is 
significantly different from previous estimates, 
the amortization period is changed accordingly. 
If there has been a significant change in the 
expected pattern of economic benefits from the 
asset, the amortization method is changed to 
reflect the changed pattern. Such changes are 
accounted for in accordance with AS 5 Net Profit 
or Loss for the Period, Prior Period Items and 
Changes in Accounting Policies.

		�  Gains or losses arising from de-recognition 
of an intangible asset are measured as the 
difference between the net disposal proceeds 
and the carrying amount of the asset and are 
recognized in the statement of profit and loss 
when the asset is derecognized.

	 e.	 Research costs
		  Research costs are expensed as incurred. 

	 f.	 Leases

		  Where the Company is the lessee

		�  Finance leases, which effectively transfer to the 
Company substantially all the risks and benefits 
incidental to ownership of the leased item, are 
capitalized at the lower of the fair value of leased 
property and present value of the minimum 
lease payments at the inception of the lease 
term and disclosed as leased assets. 

		�  Lease payments are apportioned between the 
finance charges and reduction of the lease 
liability so as to achieve a constant rate of interest 
on the remaining balance of the liability. Finance 
charges are recognized as finance costs in the 
statement of profit and loss. Lease management 
fees, legal charges and other initial direct costs 
are capitalised.

		�  A leased asset is depreciated on a straight-
line basis over the useful life of the asset. 
However, if there is no reasonable certainty 
that the Company will obtain the ownership by 
the end of the lease term, the capitalized asset 
is depreciated on a straight-line basis over the 
shorter of the estimated useful life of the asset 
or the lease term.

		�  Leases, where the lessor effectively retains 
substantially all the risks and benefits of 
ownership of the leased item are classified as 
operating leases. Operating lease payments are 
recognized as an expense in the statement of 
profit and loss on a straight-line basis over the 
lease term.

		   Where the Company is the lessor

		�  Leases in which the Company transfers 
substantially all the risks and benefits of 
ownership of the asset are classified as finance 
leases. Assets given under finance lease are 
recognized as a receivable at an amount equal 
to the net investment in the lease. After initial 
recognition, the Company apportions lease 
rentals between the principal repayment and 
interest income so as to achieve a constant 
periodic rate of return on the net investment 
outstanding in respect of the finance lease. The 
interest income is recognized in the statement 
of profit and loss. Initial direct costs such as 
legal costs, brokerage costs, etc. are recognized 
immediately in the statement of profit and loss.

		�  Leases in which the Company does not 
transfer substantially all the risks and benefits 
of ownership of the asset are classified as 
operating leases. Assets subject to operating 
leases are included in property, plant and 
equipment. Lease income on an operating lease 

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 
for the year ended March 31, 2017
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is recognized in the statement of profit and loss 
on a straight-line basis over the lease term. 
Costs, including depreciation, are recognized as 
an expense in the statement of profit and loss. 
Initial direct costs such as legal costs, brokerage 
costs, etc. are recognized immediately in the 
statement of profit and loss.

	 g.	  Borrowing costs

		�  Borrowing cost includes interest, amortization 
of ancillary costs incurred in connection with the 
arrangement of borrowings. 

		�  Borrowing costs directly attributable to the 
acquisition, construction or production of 
an asset that necessarily takes a substantial 
period of time to get ready for its intended use 
or sale are capitalized as part of the cost of the 
respective asset. All other borrowing costs are 
expensed in the period they occur. 

	 h.	G overnment Grant and subsidies

		�  Grants and subsidies from the government are 
recognized when there is reasonable assurance 
that (i) the Company will comply with the 
conditions attached to them, and (ii) the grant/
subsidy will be received.

		�  When the grant or subsidy relates to revenue, it 
is recognized as income on a systematic basis in 
the statement of profit and loss over the periods 
necessary to match them with the related costs, 
which they are intended to compensate. Where 
the grant relates to an asset, the grant is shown 
as a deduction from the gross value of the asset 
concerned in arriving at its book value. The grant 
is thus recognised in the statement of profit and 
loss over the useful life of a depreciable asset by 
way of a reduced depreciation charge.

	 i.	 Impairment of property, plant and equipment

		�  The Company assesses at each reporting date 
whether there is an indication that an asset 
may be impaired. If any indication exists, or 
when annual impairment testing for an asset 
is required, the Company estimates the asset’s 
recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable 
amount is the higher of an asset’s or cash-
generating unit’s (CGU) net selling price and 

its value in use. The recoverable amount is 
determined for an individual asset, unless the 
asset does not generate cash inflows that are 
largely independent of those from other assets 
or groups of assets. Where the carrying amount 
of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable 
amount, the asset is considered impaired and is 
written down to its recoverable amount. 

		�  Impairment losses of continuing operations, 
including impairment on inventories, are 
recognized in the statement of profit and loss, 
except for previously revalued property, plant and 
equipment, where the revaluation was taken to 
revaluation reserve. In this case, the impairment 
is also recognized in the revaluation reserve up to 
the amount of any previous revaluation.

		�  After impairment, depreciation is provided on 
the revised carrying amount of the asset over its 
remaining useful life.

		�  An assessment is made at each reporting 
date as to whether there is any indication that 
previously recognized impairment losses may 
no longer exist or may have decreased. If such 
indication exists, the company estimates the 
asset’s or cash-generating unit’s recoverable 
amount. A previously recognized impairment 
loss is reversed only if there has been a 
change in the assumptions used to determine 
the asset’s recoverable amount since the last 
impairment loss was recognized. The reversal is 
limited so that the carrying amount of the asset 
does not exceed its recoverable amount, nor 
exceed the carrying amount that would have 
been determined, net of depreciation, had no 
impairment loss been recognized for the asset 
in prior years. Such reversal is recognized in the 
statement of profit and loss unless the asset is 
carried at a revalued amount, in which case the 
reversal is treated as a revaluation increase.

 		  Associate 

		�  SL Lumax limited proposed project of setting 
up a plant in 5 acre SIPCOT Leasehold factory 
land situated opposite to the existing factory so 
as to supply KIA Motors ‘Indian arm originally 
planned to be located within 100 km from HMI 
being abandoned [on account of KIA Motors 

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 
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change in location from Tada to Anantpur District 
in Andhra Pradesh], the additional cost of 13.97 
crores paid to the outgoing lease holder for 
securing their no objection to enable SIPCOT for 
allotment of the said land on lease in addition 
to the amounts being paid to SIPCOT by the 
company , is considered as totally impaired in 
view of the anticipated advantage of acquiring 
the nearby land is lost and such additional 
cost is considered by the management as not 
recoverable, considering the given economic 
conditions and prevailing market situation .

	 j.	 Investments

		�  Investments, which are readily realizable and 
intended to be held for not more than one year 
from the date on which such investments are 
made, are classified as current investments. All 
other investments are classified as long-term 
investments.

		�  On initial recognition, all investments are 
measured at cost. The cost comprises purchase 
price and directly attributable acquisition 
charges such as brokerage, fees and duties. If an 
investment is acquired, or partly acquired, by the 
issue of shares or other securities, the acquisition 
cost is the fair value of the securities issued.

		�  Current investments are carried in the financial 
statements at lower of cost and fair value 
determined on an individual investment basis. 
Long-term investments are carried at cost. 
However, provision for diminution in value 
is made to recognize a decline other than 
temporary in the value of the investments. 
On disposal of an investment, the difference 
between its carrying amount and net disposal 
proceeds is charged or credited to the statement 
of profit and loss.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 
for the year ended March 31, 2017

	 k.	 Inventories

		  Inventories are valued as follows:

Raw materials and components, Stores and 
spares (including packing materials)

At Cost and Net Realizable Value, whichever is lower. 
However, materials and other items held for use in the 
production of inventories are not written down below 
cost if the finished products in which they will be 
incorporated are expected to be sold at or above cost. 

Cost is determined on moving weighted average basis. 
Cost of raw materials and components lying in bonded 
warehouse includes custom duty accounted for on 
accrual basis. 

Stores and spares which do not meet the definition of 
property, plant and equipment are accounted as inventories.

Finished goods & Traded goods, Work-in-
progress and Moulds, tools and dies in process

At Cost and Net Realizable Value, whichever is lower. Cost of 
Finished goods and Work-in-progress (including moulds, 
tools and dies in process) includes direct materials, labour 
and a proportion of manufacturing overheads based on 
normal operating capacity. Cost of traded goods includes 
cost of purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the 
inventories to their present location and condition. Cost is 
determined on moving weighted average basis. Cost of 
finished goods includes excise duty. 

Scrap At net realizable value.

Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of 
completion and to make the sale.
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	 l.	 Revenue Recognition

		�  Revenue is recognized to the extent that it 
is probable that the economic benefits will 
flow to the Company and the revenue can 
be reliably measured. The following specific 
recognition criteria must be met before revenue 
is recognised.

		  Sale of goods

		�  Revenue from sale of Goods is recognised 
when the significant risks and rewards of 
ownership of the goods have passed to the 
buyer usually on delivery of goods to the 
customer. The Company collects sales taxes 
and value added taxes (VAT) on behalf of the 
government and, therefore, these are not 
economic benefits flowing to the Company. 
Hence, they are excluded from revenue. Excise 
duty deducted from revenue (gross) is the 
amount that is included in the revenue (gross) 
and not the entire amount of liability arising 
during the year.

		  Sale of services

		�  Revenues from service contracts are recognized 
as and when services are rendered. The Company 
collects service tax on behalf of the government 
and, therefore, it is not an economic benefit 
flowing to the Company. Hence, it is excluded 
from revenue.

		  Interest

		�  Interest income is recognized on a time 
proportion basis taking into account the 
amount outstanding and the applicable 
interest rate. Interest income is included under 
the head “other income” in the statement of 
profit and loss.

		  Dividends

		�  Dividend income is recognized when the 
Company’s right to receive dividend is established 
by the reporting date.

		   Export Incentives

		�  Export benefits are accounted for in the year of 
exports based on eligibility and when there is no 
uncertainty in receiving the same.

	 m.	 Foreign Currency Translation

		  Foreign currency transactions

		  i.	 Initial Recognition

			�   Foreign currency transactions are recorded 
in the reporting currency, by applying to 
the foreign currency amount the exchange 
rate between the reporting currency and 
the foreign currency at the date of the 
transaction.

		  ii.	 Conversion

			�   Foreign currency monetary items are 
reported using the closing rate. Non-
monetary items which are carried in terms 
of historical cost denominated in a foreign 
currency are reported using the exchange 
rate at the date of the transaction. 

		  iii.	 Exchange Differences

			�   Exchange differences arising on the 
settlement of monetary items or on 
reinstatement of monetary items at rates 
different from those at which they were 
initially recorded during the year, or 
reported in previous financial statements, 
are recognised as income or as expenses.

		  iv.	� Forward exchange contracts entered into 
to hedge foreign currency risk of an existing 
asset/ liability 

			�   The premium or discount arising at the 
inception of forward exchange contracts is 
amortised as expense or income over the 
life of the contract. Exchange differences 
on such contracts are recognized in the 
statement of profit and loss in the year in 
which the exchange rates change. Any profit 
or loss arising on cancellation or renewal of 
forward exchange contract is recognized as 
income or as expense for the period.

	 n.	 Retirement and other Employee Benefits

		  i.	� Retirement benefit in the form of provident 
fund is a defined contribution scheme. The 
company has no obligation, other than 
the contribution payable to the provident 
fund. The company recognizes contribution 

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 
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payable to the provident fund scheme as 
expenditure, when an employee renders 
the related service.

		  ii.	� Gratuity Liability is a defined benefit plan and 
is provided for on the basis of an actuarial 
valuation on projected unit credit method 
made at the end of each financial year.

			�   Actuarial gain and loss for defined benefit 
plan is recognized in full in the period in which 
it occur in the statement of profit and loss.

		  iii.	� Accumulated leave, which is expected to 
be utilized within the next 12 months, is 
treated as short-term employee benefit. 
The Company measures the expected cost 
of such absences as the additional amount 
that it expects to pay as a result of the 
unused entitlement that has accumulated 
at the reporting date.

		  iv.	� The Company treats accumulated leave 
expected to be carried forward beyond 
twelve months, as long-term employee 
benefit for measurement purposes. Such 
long-term compensated absences are 
provided for based on the actuarial valuation 
using the projected unit credit method at 
the year-end. Actuarial gains/losses are 
immediately taken to the statement of profit 
and loss and are not deferred. The company 
presents the leave as a current liability in the 
balance sheet, to the extent it does not have 
an unconditional right to defer its settlement 
for 12 months after the reporting date. 
Where company has the unconditional legal 
and contractual right to defer the settlement 
for a period beyond 12 months, the same is 
presented as non-current liability.

	 o.	 Income Taxes

		�  Tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. 
Current income-tax is measured at the amount 
expected to be paid to the tax authorities in 
accordance with the Income-tax Act, 1961 
enacted in India and tax laws prevailing in the 
respective tax jurisdictions where the Company 
operates. The tax rates and tax laws used to 
compute the amount are those that are enacted 

or substantively enacted, at the reporting date. 
Current income tax relating to items recognized 
directly in equity is recognized in equity and not 
in the statement of profit and loss.

		�  Deferred income taxes reflect the impact of 
timing differences between taxable income 
and accounting income originating during the 
current year and reversal of timing differences 
for the earlier years. Deferred tax is measured 
using the tax rates and the tax laws enacted 
or substantively enacted at the reporting date. 
Deferred income tax relating to items recognized 
directly in equity is recognized in equity and not 
in the statement of profit and loss.

		�  Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for all 
taxable timing differences. Deferred tax assets 
are recognized for deductible timing differences 
only to the extent that there is reasonable 
certainty that sufficient future taxable income 
will be available against which such deferred 
tax assets can be realized. In situations where 
the Company has unabsorbed depreciation or 
carry forward tax losses, all deferred tax assets 
are recognized only if there is virtual certainty 
supported by convincing evidence that they can 
be realized against future taxable profits.

		�  In the situations where the Company is entitled 
to a tax holiday under the Income-tax Act, 1961 
enacted in India or tax laws prevailing in the 
respective tax jurisdictions where it operates, 
no deferred tax (asset or liability) is recognized 
in respect of timing differences which reverse 
during the tax holiday period, to the extent 
the Company’s gross total income is subject 
to the deduction during the tax holiday period. 
Deferred tax in respect of timing differences 
which reverse after the tax holiday period is 
recognized in the year in which the timing 
differences originate. However, the Company 
restricts recognition of deferred tax assets to 
the extent that it has become reasonably certain 
or virtually certain, as the case may be, that 
sufficient future taxable income will be available 
against which such deferred tax assets can be 
realized. For recognition of deferred taxes, the 
timing differences which originate first are 
considered to reverse first.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 
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		�  At each reporting date, the Company re-assesses 
unrecognized deferred tax assets. It recognizes 
unrecognized deferred tax asset to the extent 
that it has become reasonably certain or virtually 
certain, as the case may be, that sufficient future 
taxable income will be available against which 
such deferred tax assets can be realized.

		�  The carrying amount of deferred tax assets are 
reviewed at each reporting date. The Company 
writes-down the carrying amount of deferred tax 
asset to the extent that it is no longer reasonably 
certain or virtually certain, as the case may be, 
that sufficient future taxable income will be 
available against which deferred tax assets can 
be realized. Any such write-down is reversed to 
the extent that it becomes reasonably certain 
or virtually certain, as the case may be, that 
sufficient future taxable income will be available

		�  Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities 
are offset, if a legally enforceable right exists 
to set-off current tax assets against current 
tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets and 
deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity 
and the same taxation authority.

		�  Minimum alternate tax (MAT) paid in a year is 
charged to the statement of profit and loss as 
current tax. The Company recognizes MAT credit 
available as an asset only to the extent that there 
is convincing evidence that the Company will pay 
normal income tax during the specified period, 
i.e., the period for which MAT credit is allowed 
to be carried forward. In the year in which the 
Company recognizes MAT credit as an asset in 
accordance with the Guidance Note on Accounting 
for Credit Available in respect of Minimum 
Alternative Tax under the Income-tax Act, 1961, 
the said asset is created by way of credit to the 
statement of profit and loss and shown as “MAT 
Credit Entitlement.” The Company reviews the 
“MAT credit entitlement” asset at each reporting 
date and writes down the asset to the extent the 
Company does not have convincing evidence that 
it will pay normal tax during the specified period.

	 p.	 Segment Reporting Policies

		  Business Segment

	 	� The Company is engaged in the business of 
manufacture of various types of Automotive 

Lighting Equipment. The entire operations are 
governed by the same set of risks and return 
hence the entire operations represent a single 
primary segment.

		  Geographical Segment

		�  The analysis of geographical segments is based 
on the geographical location of the customers i.e. 
customers located within India and customers 
located outside India.

	 q.	 Earnings per share

		�  Basic earnings per share are calculated by 
dividing the net profit or loss for the period 
attributable to equity shareholders by the 
weighted average number of equity shares 
outstanding during the period.

		�  For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings 
per equity share, the net profit or loss for the 
period attributable to equity shareholders 
and the weighted average number of shares 
outstanding during the period are adjusted for 
the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.

	 r.	 Provisions

		�  A provision is recognised when an enterprise 
has a present obligation as a result of past event 
and it is probable that an outflow of resources 
will be required to settle the obligation, in 
respect of which a reliable estimate can be made. 
Provisions are not discounted to its present value 
and are determined based on best management 
estimate required to settle the obligation at the 
balance sheet date. These are reviewed at each 
balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect the 
current best management estimates.

		  Warranty provisions

		�  Provisions for warranty-related costs are 
recognized when the product is sold or service 
provided. Provision is based on historical 
experience. The estimate of such warranty-related 
costs is revised annually. 

		�  From current year Associate is estimating 
warranty for 5 years.

	 s.	 Long –term Contract

		�  The Associate has a process whereby 
periodically all long-term contacts (including 

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 
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derivative contracts) are assessed for material 
foreseeable losses. At the year end, the 
company has reviewed and ensured that 
adequate provision as required under any law/
accounting standards for material foreseeable 
losses on such long-term contracts (including 
derivative contracts) has been made in the 
books of accounts.

	 t.	 Contingent liabilities

		�  A contingent liability is a possible obligation 
that arises from past events whose existence 
will be confirmed by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more uncertain future 
events beyond the control of the Company 

or a present obligation that is not recognized 
because it is not probable that an outflow 
of resources will be required to settle the 
obligation. A contingent liability also arises in 
extremely rare cases where there is a liability 
that cannot be recognized because it cannot 
be measured reliably. The Company does not 
recognize a contingent liability but discloses its 
existence in the financial statements.

	 u.	 Cash and Cash equivalents

		�  Cash and cash equivalents in the cash flow 
statement comprise cash at bank and in hand 
and short- term investments with an original 
maturity of three months or less.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 
for the year ended March 31, 2017

3.	 Share Capital
Amount in `

As at 
March 31, 2017

As at
 March 31, 2016

Authorized shares   

12,000,000 (Previous year 12,000,000) equity shares of ` 10/- each  120,000,000  120,000,000

Issued, subscribed and fully paid up shares   

9,347,732 (Previous year 9,347,732) equity shares of ` 10/- each  93,477,320  93,477,320

	 a.	 Reconciliation of shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting year
 

As at March 31, 2017 As at March 31, 2016

Nos. Amount in ` Nos. Amount in `

At the beginning of the year 9,347,732 93,477,320  9,347,732  93,477,320 

Issued during the year  -    -    -    -   

Outstanding at the end of the year  9,347,732  93,477,320  9,347,732  93,477,320 

	 b.	 Terms/rights attached to equity shares

		�  The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of ` 10 per share. Each holder of equity 
shares is entitled to one vote per share. The Company declares and pays dividends in Indian rupees. The 
dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of shareholders in the ensuing Annual 
General Meeting

		�  In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining 
assets of the Company, after distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to 
the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

	 c.	 Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company

As at March 31, 2017 As at March 31, 2016
Nos.  % holding in 

the class 
Nos.  % holding in 

the class 
Equity shares of ` 10 each fully paid
Stanley Electric Co. Limited  3,343,381 35.77%  3,343,381 35.77%
Dhanesh Kumar Jain  1,938,025 20.73%  1,938,025 20.73%
Lumax Auto Technologies Limited  525,000 5.62%  525,000 5.62%

		�  As per records of the company, including its register of shareholders/ members and other declarations received 
from shareholders regarding beneficial interest, the above shareholding represents both legal and beneficial 
ownership of shares.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 
for the year ended March 31, 2017

	 d.	 Proposed dividend on Equity shares:
Amount in `

As at 
March 31, 2017

As at
March 31, 2016

The Board proposed dividend on equity shares  
after the balance sheet date
Proposed dividend on equity shares for the year ended ` 14.50 per 
share (Previous year: Nil)

 135,542,114 -  

Dividend Distribution Tax on proposed dividend  27,593,185 -  
 163,135,299 -  

4.	 Reserves and Surplus
Amount in `

As at 
March 31, 2017

As at
 March 31, 2016

Capital reserve  65,138  65,138 
Captial Reserve in Associates  105,965,591  105,965,591 
Securities premium account  679,665,909  679,665,909 
Revaluation reserve  
Balance as per the last financial statements 77,067,268  77,346,536 
Less: amount transferred to General Reserve -  (279,268)
Less: amount adjusted against Land & Building pursuant to applicability 
of reised AS 10

(77,067,268) -

Closing Balance -  77,067,268 
General reserve  
Balance as per the last financial statements 637,079,268  599,300,000  
Add: amount transferred from surplus balance in the statement of  
profit and loss

54,200,000  37,500,000 

Add: amount transferred from Revaluation Reserve -  279,268 
Closing Balance 691,279,268  637,079,268 

Surplus as per the statement of profit and loss
Opening share of Profit of Associate  -    389,401,043 
Balance as per the last financial statements 1,090,348,632  353,196,071 
Add: Profit for the year  552,188,209  520,259,966 
Less:- Appropriations
Final equity dividend (Previous year: ` 12.00 per share)  -    (112,172,784)
Tax on equity dividend  -    (22,835,664)
Transfer to general reserve  (54,200,000)  (37,500,000)
Total appropriations  (54,200,000)  (172,508,448)
Net surplus in the statement of profit and loss  1,588,336,841  1,090,348,632 
Total reserves and surplus  3,065,312,747  2,590,191,806 
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5.	 Long Term Borrowings
Amount in `

Non-current portion Current maturities
As at 

March 31, 2017
As at

 March 31, 2016
As at 

March 31, 2017
As at

 March 31, 2016
Term loans
Indian rupee loan from banks (secured)  36,376,956  64,319,574  56,896,040  49,919,430 
Foreign currency loan from banks (secured)  -    41,409,370  40,531,250  269,160,938 

 36,376,956  105,728,944  97,427,290  319,080,368 
The above amount includes
Secured borrowings  36,376,956  105,728,944  97,427,290  319,080,368 
Amount disclosed under the head "other 
current liabilities" (Note 11)

 (97,427,290)  (319,080,368)

Net amount  36,376,956  105,728,944  -    -   

	 Notes:

	 1	 Indian Rupee Loan from Bank includes:

		  (a)	�   27,937,500/- (Previous year ` 50,287,500/-) taken in the Financial Year 2013-14 carries interest @ 10% p.a. at present. 
The loan is repayable in 16 equal quarterly installments of ` 5,587,500/- (excluding interest) after one year moratorium 
period from the disbursement date i.e. from 04.04.2013. The Loan is secured by way of first pari passu charge on the 
land and building situated at Sohna, Gurgaon (Haryana) unit.

		  (b)	�   12,968,750/- (Previous year ` 23,343,750/-) taken in the Financial Year 2014-15 carries interest @ 10.70% p.a. at present. 
The loan is repayable in 16 equal quarterly installments of ̀  2,593,750/- (excluding interest) from the disbursement date 
i.e. from 10.06.2014. The Loan is secured by way of first pari passu charge on the land and building situated at Sohna, 
Gurgaon (Haryana) unit.

		  (c)	�   52,366,746/- (Previous year ` 40,607,754/-) vehicle loans from banks at interest @ 7.90% - 11.50% aggregating to are 
secured by way of hypothecation of the respective vehicles acquired out of the proceeds thereof. These loans are 
repayable over a period of three years from the date of availment.

	 2	 Foreign Currency Loan from Bank includes:

		  (a)	�   Nil (Previous year ` 20,704,683/-) taken in the financial year 2011-12 carried interest @ LIBOR plus 260 BSP. The loan 
was secured by way of first & exclusive charge on the land and building along with all the plant and machineries, 
situated at Bawal (Haryana) unit both present and future. The amount has been repaid during the year.

		  (b)	�   Nil (Previous year ` 82,818,750/-) taken in the financial year 2011-12 carried interest @ LIBOR plus 260 BSP. The loan 
was secured by way of first & exclusive charge on the land and building along with all the plant and machineries, 
situated at Bawal (Haryana) unit both present and future. The amount has been repaid during the year.

		  (c)	�   Nil (Previous year ` 82,818,750/-) taken in the financial year 2011-12 carried interest @ LIBOR plus 350 BSP. The loan 
was secured by way of first and exclusive pari passu charge on the land and building alongwith all other moveable fixed 
assets, situated at Pant Nagar (Uttrakhand) unit both present and future. The amount has been repaid during the year.

		  (d)	�   40,531,250/- (Previous year ` 124,228,125/-) taken in the financial year 2012-13 carries interest @ LIBOR plus 350 BSP. 
The loan is repayable in 16 quarterly installments of ` 17,437,500/- after one year moratorium period from the 
disbursement date i.e. from 28.08.2013. The loan is secured by way of first and exclusive pari passu charge on the land 
and building alongwith all other moveable fixed assets, situated at Haridwar (Uttrakhand) and all other movable fixed 
assets of Bangalore (Karnataka) unit both present and future.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 
for the year ended March 31, 2017
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6.	 Deferred tax liabilities (net)
Amount in `

As at 
March 31, 2017

As at
 March 31, 2016

Deferred tax Liability
Fixed assets: Impact of difference between tax depreciation and 
depreciation/ amortization charged for the financial reporting

 475,166,007  438,453,197 

Unrealised forex gain of capital nature  (1,288,923)  762,082 
Gross deferred tax liability (A)  473,877,084 439,215,279 
Deferred tax asset
Impact of expenditure charged to the statement of profit and loss  
but allowable for tax purposes on payment basis

 78,163,311 56,219,678 

Provision for doubtful debts and advances  3,394,150 2,818,016 
Unabsorbed depreciation 112,879,766 185,759,218 
Gross deferred tax asset (B) 194,437,227 244,796,912 
Net deferred tax liability (A-B)  279,439,857 194,418,367 

7.	 Other long-term liabilities
Amount in `

As at 
March 31, 2017

As at
 March 31, 2016

Others
Payable for capital goods (including payable towards leasehold land)  216,454,500  220,657,500 
Security deposits (Interest free)  970,239  3,055,044 

 217,424,739  223,712,544 

8.	 Provisions

Amount in `
Long-term Short-term

As at 
March 31, 2017

As at
 March 31, 2016

As at 
March 31, 2017

As at
 March 31, 2016

Provision for employee benefits
Provision for leave benefits 114,598,344 92,716,007 11,907,942 9,180,439 
Provision for gratuity (Note 29)  -    -   54,095,627 39,715,106 

114,598,344 92,716,007 66,003,569 48,895,545 
Other provisions
Provision for warranties {Refer point  
(a) below}

-   -   3,274,000 7,017,000 

-   -   3,274,000 7,017,000 
114,598,344 92,716,007 69,277,569 55,912,545 

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 
for the year ended March 31, 2017
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 
for the year ended March 31, 2017

	 (a)	 Provision for warranties

		�  A provision is recognized for expected warranty claims on products sold during the last one year, based on 
past experience of the level of repairs and returns. It is expected that all of these costs will be incurred in the 
next financial year after the reporting date. Assumptions used to calculate the provision for warranties were 
based on current sales levels and current information available about warranty based on the one-year period 
for all products sold.

		  The table below gives information about movement in warranty provisions.
Amount in `

As at 
March 31, 2017

As at
 March 31, 2016

At the beginning of the year  7,017,000  7,134,000 
Arising during the year  2,211,191  11,791,544 
Utilized during the year  (5,954,191)  (11,908,544)
At the end of the year (current portion)  3,274,000  7,017,000 

9.	 Short-term borrowings
Amount in `

As at 
March 31, 2017

As at
 March 31, 2016

Commercial Papers (unsecured)  400,000,000 -
Cash credit/Working Capital facility from banks (secured)  96,791,970  450,891,414 
Vendor finance facility from banks (unsecured)  293,429,152  397,362,227 

 790,221,122  848,253,641 

Notes:

(a)	 Cash credit facility of ` Nil (Previous year ` 8,670,747/-) was secured by way of first pari passu charge on all current assets of the 
Company. This facility was further secured by extension of charge by way of hypothecation on the Plant and Machinery along 
with the UREM on Land and Building situated at Chakan Unit of the Company,  & carried interest @ 10.20%. The amount has been 
repaid during the year.

(b)	 WCDL Facility of ̀  Nil (Previous year ̀  150,000,000/-) & Cash Credit facility of ̀  Nil (Previous year ̀  Nil) was secured by way of first 
pari passu charge on all current assets of the Company. This facility was further secured by way of equitable mortgage on Land 
and Buildings and first pari passu charges against movable Fixed Assets at Chinchwad Unit of the Company & carried interest @ 
9.35%. and 8.95%.

(c)	 Cash Credit facility of ` 76,998,098/- (Previous year ` 92,220,667/-) & WCDL Facility of ` Nil (Previous year ` Nil) is secured by way 
of first pari passu charge on all current assets of the Company. This facility is further secured by way of equitable mortgage on 
Land and Buildings and first pari passu charges against movable Fixed Assets at Chinchwad Unit of the Company, repayable  on 
demand and carries interest @ 9.25% for the current year & 9.65% respectively for the previous year.

(d)	 WCDL Facility of ` Nil (Previous year ` 200,000,000/-) was secured by way of first pari passu charge on all current assets of the 
Company. This facility was further secured by way of equitable mortgage on Land and Buildings and first pari passu charges 
against movable Fixed Assets at Chinchwad Unit of the Company, repayable  on demand and carried interest @ 9.50%.

(e)	 Vendor Finance Facility from MSIL of ` 193,429,152/- (Previous year ` 397,362,227/-) is repayable on 60 days from respective 
drawdown & carries interest @ 8.45%.

(f)	 Vendor Finance Facility from MSIL of ` 100,000,000/- (Previous year ` Nil) is repayable on 60 days from respective drawdown & 
carries interest @ 8.10 %.

(g)	 Commercial paper issued to Bank amounting to ` 400,000,000/- (previous year Nil) carrying interest rate ranging from 6.95 % p.a. 
to 7.25% p.a. Commercial paper is payable by 31 May 2017. This facility is unsecured short term borrowing. Unexpired discount on 
commercial papers is ` 4,683,467/- (Previous year Nil), towards interest accrued but not due.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 
for the year ended March 31, 2017

(h)	 Cash credit facility of ` 19,793,872/- (Previous year Nil ) is secured by way of first pari passu charge on all current assets of 
the Company. This facility is further secured by extension of charge by way of hypothecation on the Plant and Machinery 
along with the UREM on Land and Building situated at Chakan Unit of the Company, repayable on demand & carries interest 
@ 8.52 %.

10.	 Trade payables

Amount in `

As at 
March 31, 2017

As at
 March 31, 2016

Trade payables*

-  � Total outstanding due of micro enterprises and small enterprises  
(refer note 37 for details of dues to micro and small enterprises)

1,480,603  722,444 

- � Total outstanding due of creditors other than micro enterprises and 
small enterprises#

3,441,231,922  3,096,045,229 

3,442,712,525  3,096,767,673 

	 *Refer note 32 for related party transactions

	 # Trade payables include acceptances of ` 254,228,254/- (Previous year ` 188,015,774/-)

11.	 Other Current liabilities
Amount in `

As at 
March 31, 2017

As at
 March 31, 2016

Current maturities of long term borrowings (Note 5)  97,427,290  319,080,368 

Interest accrued but not due on borrowings  3,327,581  5,603,606 

Investor Education and Protection Fund will be credited by following 
amounts (as and when due) {Refer point (a)}

	 Unpaid dividend  5,491,286  7,746,077 

Other Payables

	 Payable for capital goods  139,749,454  93,843,383 

	 Interest free deposits from customers #  333,390  233,390 

	 Advances from customers *  472,054,051  582,535,250 

	 Statutory dues payable  98,599,879  77,289,962 

	 Other liabilities {Refer point (b)}  228,918,934  198,088,709 

 1,045,901,865  1,284,420,745 

	 * Refer note 32 for related party transactions
	 # Customer deposits are repayable on demand.

	 (a)	� Investor Education and Protection Fund is being credited by the amount of unclaimed dividend after seven years from the 
due date. Accordingly, the Company has transferred ` 141,107/- during the current year (Previous year `426,572/-) to the 
Investor Education and Protection Fund.

	 (b)	� Other liabilities (net) represents amount towards rate provision payable to the customers net off amounts receivable from 
customers in respect of price increase not yet debited.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 
for the year ended March 31, 2017

12.	 Property, Plant & Equipment

Particulars Land Buildings Plant and 
Machinery

Furniture & 
Fixtures 

Office 
Equipment

Vehicles Total

Leased Freehold Owned

Cost or Valuation

At 01.04.2015  280,236,142  259,094,226 1,121,020,212 5,122,850,003  89,613,517  9,351,530  102,386,932 6,984,552,562 

Additions  -    -    586,796  449,397,805  3,465,327  3,738,986  46,945,068  504,133,982 

Deductions/Adjustments  -    -    -    (22,822,578)  (45,244)  -    (25,637,972)  (48,505,794)

At 01.04.2016  280,236,142  259,094,226  1,121,607,008 5,549,425,230  93,033,600  13,090,516  123,694,028  7,440,180,750 

Additions  -    -    8,517,616  572,176,516  6,798,934  4,248,985  43,566,258  635,308,309 

Store & Spares Transferred 
From Inventory {Refer 2.1(1)}

 -    -    -    9,521,291  -    -    -    9,521,291 

Adjustment of Revaluation 
Reserve {Refer 2.1(3)}

(18,219,916) (64,449,364) (1,351,066) (10,808,536)  -    -    -   (94,828,882)

Deductions/Adjustments  (248,966,250)  -    (152,339,889)  (75,305,142)  (73,175)  -    (7,891,406)  (484,575,862)

At 31.03.2017 13,049,976 194,644,862 976,433,669 6,045,009,359  99,759,359  17,339,501  159,368,880 7,505,605,606

Depreciation / Amortisation

At 01.04.2015  47,069,018  -    256,569,578 2,622,975,476  57,367,684  3,163,185  64,895,344 3,052,040,285 

For The Year  7,211,595  -    37,743,178  296,790,072  5,382,666  2,400,982  15,430,626  364,959,119 

Deductions/Adjustments  -    -    -    (15,104,735)  (44,340)  -    (15,892,872)  (31,041,947)

At 01.04.2016  54,280,613  -    294,312,756 2,904,660,813  62,706,010  5,564,167  64,433,098  3,385,957,457 

For The Year {Refer 2.1(1)}  3,889,574  -    35,435,728  328,774,299  5,175,553  3,031,225  17,944,731  394,251,110 

Adjustment of Revaluation 
Reserve {Refer 2.1(3)}

(5,939,555) - (1,292,791) (10,802,175)  -    -    -   (18,034,521)

Deductions/Adjustments  (50,876,257)  -    (17,540,336)  (22,386,474)  (63,919)  -    (6,515,905)  (97,382,891)

At 31.03.2017 1,354,375  -   310,915,357 3,200,246,463 67,817,644  8,595,392  75,861,924 366,479,155

Net Block

At 01.04.2016  225,955,529  259,094,226  827,294,252 2,644,764,417  30,327,590  7,526,349  59,260,930 4,054,223,293 

At 31.03.2017 11,695,601 194,644,862 665,518,312 2,844,762,896 31,941,715 8,744,109  83,506,956 3,840,814,451

Notes :

i)	 Depreciation for the year includes ̀  735,787/- (Previous Year ̀  140,245/-) being depreciation either capitalised / transferred on in-house development 
of tools.

ii)	 Written down Value of Building constructed on Leasehold land is ` 67,908,193/- (Previous Year ` 208,380,634/-)

iii)	 Building given on operating lease

	 Gross Block ` 30,801,326/- (Previous Year ` 183,141,215/-)

	 Depreciation Charge for the year ` 3,042,054/- (Previous Year ` 5,521,529/-)

	 Accumulated Depreciation ` 21,323,938/- (Previous Year ` 35,822,220/-)

	 Net Book Value ` 9,477,388/- (Previous Year ` 147,318,995/-)

iv)	 Adjustment of revaluation reserve

	 Pursuant to transition provisional of revised AS 10, the Company has decided to carry earlier revalued Land, Building and Plant & Machinery as per 
cost model. Accordingly, the Company has adjusted the balance in revaluation reserve with the related carrying amount of Land, Building and Plant 
& Machinery. Accordingly, Land is reduced by ` 76,729,725 and Building by ` 58,275.
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13.	 Intangible Assets
Amount in `

Particulars Computer 
Software

Technical 
Knowhow

Total

Gross Block
At 01.04.2015  108,066,591  34,441,989  142,508,580 
Additions  13,916,422  -    13,916,422 
At 01.04.2016  121,983,013  34,441,989  156,425,002 
Additions  18,365,048  -    18,365,048 
AT 31.03.2017  140,348,061  34,441,989  174,790,050 

Depreciation / Amortisation
At 01.04.2015  82,139,928  34,441,989  116,581,917 
For the year  14,169,106  -    14,169,106 
At 01.04.2016  96,309,034  34,441,989  130,751,023 
For the year 10,736,790  -    10,736,790 
AT 31.03.2017  107,045,824  34,441,989  141,487,813 
Net Block
At 31.03.2016 25,673,979 -   25,673,979 
At 31.03.2017 33,302,237 -   33,302,237 

14.	 Non-Current investments
Amount in `

As at 
March 31, 2017

As at
March 31, 2016

i)	� Trade investments (valued at cost unless  
stated otherwise)

	 Unquoted equity instruments
	 Investment in associates
	 SL Lumax Limited
	 3,298,986 equity shares of ` 10 each fully paid-up 35,474,204 35,474,204 
	 Add: Capital Reserve at the time of acquisition 105,965,591 105,965,591 
	 Add: Profit earned post acquisition 535,921,266 389,401,043 
	 Add: Profit for the year 105,302,432 151,468,612 
	 Less: �Received in form of dividend distribution 

during the current year
4,948,389 4,948,389 

	 Total investment in associates 777,715,104 677,361,061 
ii)	� Non-Trade investments (valued at cost unless 

stated otherwise)
	 Investment in equity instrument (unquoted)
		�  15,832 (Previous year 15,832) equity shares 

of ` 10 each fully paid-up in Caparo Power 
Limited

158,320 158,320 

	 Preference shares (unquoted)
	�	�  944,168, (Previous year 944,168) 2% 

Redeemable Preference shares of ` 10 each 
fully paid-up in Caparo Power Limited

9,441,680 9,441,680 

	 Aggregate amount of unquoted investment 787,315,104 686,961,061 
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15.	 Loans and Advances

Amount in `
Non-current Current
As at 

March 31, 2017
As at

 March 31, 2016
As at 

March 31, 2017
As at

 March 31, 2016
Capital advances*
Unsecured, considered good	 (A)  83,416,857  42,168,002  -    -   
Security deposit*
Unsecured, considered good	 (B)  23,837,901  21,777,829  -    -   
Advances recoverable in cash or kind*
Unsecured, considered good  15,658,164  7,873,816  261,316,515  246,089,667 
Unsecured, considered doubtful  2,516,938  2,516,938  -    -   

 18,175,102 10,390,754  261,316,515  246,089,667 
Provision for doubtful advances  (2,516,938)  (2,516,938)  -    -   

(C)  15,658,164  7,873,816  261,316,515  246,089,667 

Other loans and advances (unsecured, 
considered good)*
Advance income-tax (net of provision for 
taxation)

 2,587,788  1,270,553  -    -   

MAT credit entitlement  350,783,068  239,219,298  -    -   
Prepaid expenses  -    -    26,110,800  34,680,245 
Loans to employees (interest free)  2,022,018  1,641,412  9,771,366  9,770,322 
Balances with statutory/ government 
authorities

 -    -    75,403,644  67,797,943 

(D)  355,392,874  242,131,263  111,285,810  112,248,510 
TOTAL (A+B+C+D)  478,305,796  313,950,910  372,602,325  358,338,177 

	 * Refer note 32 for related party transactions

16.	 Trade receivables and other current assets

	 16.1	Trade receivables*
Amount in `

As at 
March 31, 2017

As at
 March 31, 2016

As at 
March 31, 2017

As at
 March 31, 2016

Outstanding for a period exceeding six 
months from the date they are due for 
payment
Unsecured, considered good  -    -    38,877,098  15,069,282 
Unsecured, considered doubtful  7,290,477  5,625,734  -    -   

 7,290,477  5,625,734  38,877,098  15,069,282 
Provision for doubtful receivables  (7,290,477)  (5,625,734)  -    -   

(A)  -    -    38,877,098  15,069,282 
Other receivables
Unsecured, considered good  -    -    1,870,544,626  1,796,834,193 

(B)  -    -    1,870,544,626  1,796,834,193 
TOTAL (A + B)  -    -    1,909,421,724  1,811,903,475 

		  * Refer note 32 for related party transactions
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	 16.2	Other current/non-current assets
Amount in `

Non-current Current
As at 

March 31, 2017
As at

 March 31, 2016
As at 

March 31, 2017
As at

 March 31, 2016
Unsecured, considered good unless 
stated otherwise
Non-current bank balances (note 19) (A)  4,636,000  5,614,500  -    -   

Others
Property, Plant & Equipment held for 
sale (at net book value or estimated net 
realisable value, whichever is lower)

 -    -    6,565,100  6,565,100 

Claim Recoverable*  13,441,240  -    -    -   
Interest accrued on fixed deposits  -    -    2,727,087  2,256,770 
Derivative assets  -    6,534,376  5,656,250  62,159,375 

(B)  13,441,240  6,534,376  14,948,437  70,981,245 
		  TOTAL (A+B)  18,077,240  12,148,876  14,948,437  70,981,245 

		  * Refer Note 40

17.	 Current Investments
Amount in `

As at 
March 31, 2017

As at
 March 31, 2016

Valued at lower of cost and fair value, unless stated otherwise
Quoted equity instruments
43,866 (Previous year 43,866) equity shares of ` 10 each fully paid up in 
PNB Gilts Limited *

 987,000  987,000 

 987,000  987,000 
* �Aggregate amount of quoted equity investments
		  Cost  987,000  987,000 
		  Market Value  987,000  987,000 
		�  Provision for diminution in value of investment - - 

18.	 Inventories (valued at lower of cost and net realisable value)
Amount in `

As at 
March 31, 2017

As at
March 31, 2016

Raw materials and components {including stock in transit ` 99,974,427/-  
(Previous year ` 44,968,311/-)} (refer note 22.1)

 563,627,742  534,805,354 

Work-in-progress (refer note 23)  62,287,029  65,959,140 
Finished goods  {including transit stock ` 59,907,868/- (Previous year ` 
50,771,780/-)} (refer note 23)

 162,636,784 134,925,273 

Traded goods (refer note 23)  16,092,471  35,171,173 
* Stores and spares (including packing material) {including transit stock ` 
1,722,315/- (Previous year ` 1,786,122/-)}

 99,077,725  76,765,267 

Moulds, tools and dies in process {including transit stock ` 15,509,046/- 
(Previous year ` 16,898,438/-)} (refer note 22.2)

 256,732,704  197,875,544 

 1,160,454,455  1,045,501,751 

	 *Refer Note 12 regarding stores and spares transferred from inventory to Property, Plant & Equipment.
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19.	 Cash and bank balances

Amount in `

Non-current Current

As at 
March 31, 2017

As at
 March 31, 2016

As at 
March 31, 2017

As at
 March 31, 2016

Cash and cash equivalents

Balances with banks:

	 On current accounts  -    -    4,636,144  19,014,978 

	 On unpaid dividend account*  -    -    5,491,286  7,746,077 

Cash on hand  -    -    1,727,866  2,764,506 

Cheques on Hand  -    -    342,358  5,026,725 

 -    -    12,197,654  34,552,286 

Other bank balances

Deposits having remaining maturity of 
more than 12 months #

 4,636,000  5,614,500  -    -   

Deposits having remaining maturity of less 
than 12 months #

 -    -    1,497,436  -   

4,636,000  5,614,500  1,497,436  -   

Amount disclosed under non-current assets 
(note 16.2)

 (4,636,000)  (5,614,500)  -    -   

 -    -    13,695,090  34,552,286 

	 * The Company can utilize the balance only towards settlement of unclaimed dividend.

	 # Deposits include ` 6,133,436/- (Previous year ` 5,614,500/-) pledged with banks for guarantees given.

20.	 Revenue from operations
Amount in `

For the year ended 
March 31, 2017

For the year ended
March 31, 2016

Sale of products   

	 Finished goods #  13,203,906,447  12,894,075,425 

	 Traded goods  67,503,447  89,687,246 

	 Moulds, tools and dies  1,182,456,923  953,695,721 

Sale of services  64,936,884  70,345,756 

Other operating revenue

	 Scrap sales  22,220,534 21,130,286 

	 Other  6,490,064 7,469,669 

Revenue from operations (gross)  14,547,514,299 14,036,404,103 

Excise duty*  1,549,704,727 1,484,651,738 

Revenue from operations (net)  12,997,809,572 12,551,752,365 

	 * �Excise duty on sales amounting to ` 1,549,704,727/- (Previous year: ` 1,484,651,738/-) has been reduced from sales in 
statement of profit & loss and excise duty on (increase)/decrease in inventory amounting to ` 6,776,891/- (Previous year:  
` (2,045,717/-)) {note 25} has been considered as expense/(income).

	 # Includes Raw material & components amounting to ` 268,878,975/- (Previous year ` 420,092,749/-)
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	 Details of products sold
Amount in `

For the year ended 
March 31, 2017

For the year ended
March 31, 2016

Finished goods sold#

Automotive Lamps  13,203,906,447  12,889,052,831 
Gear shifter  -    5,022,594 
Total  13,203,906,447  12,894,075,425 

	 # Includes Raw material & components amounting to ` 268,878,975/- (Previous year ` 420,092,749/-)

Amount in `
For the year ended 

March 31, 2017
For the year ended

March 31, 2016
Traded goods sold
Automotive Lamps  67,503,447  89,687,246 
Total  67,503,447  89,687,246 

Tools, moulds & dies sold
Tools & moulds  1,182,456,923  953,695,721 
Total  1,182,456,923  953,695,721 

Details of services rendered
Sale of designs  64,936,884  70,345,756 
Total  64,936,884  70,345,756 

21.	 Other Income
Amount in `

For the year ended 
March 31, 2017

For the year ended
March 31, 2016

Interest income on
	 Bank deposits  958,748  1,158,907 
	 Others  831,876  954,705 
Dividend income on long-term investments  240,770  257,799 
Profit on sale / discard of property, plant & equipment (net)  2,781,622  1,284,459 
Rent  15,464,570  23,918,588 
Provisions/creditors no longer required written back  1,106,454  5,570,487 
Exchange difference (net)  22,117,296  -   
Other non-operating income  13,447,049  5,670,306 
Total  56,948,385  38,815,251 

	 22.1	Cost of raw material and components consumed
Amount in `

For the year ended 
March 31, 2017

For the year ended
March 31, 2016

Inventory at the beginning of the year 534,805,354  470,228,897 
Add: Purchases 7,560,366,794  7,657,335,093 

8,095,172,148  8,127,563,990 
Less: Inventory at the end of the year (Note 18) 563,627,742  534,805,354 

7,531,544,406 7,592,758,636 
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Amount in `
For the year ended 

March 31, 2017
For the year ended

March 31, 2016
Details of raw material and components consumed
Plastic Powder  1,522,775,115  1,486,789,728 
Bulbs  1,180,198,284  1,068,934,727 
Adjustor Motors  717,469,058  705,782,386 
Others  4,111,101,949  4,331,251,795 
Total  7,531,544,406  7,592,758,636 

As at 
March 31, 2017

As at
March 31, 2016

Details of inventory
Raw material and components
Plastic Powder  110,584,705  122,528,343 
Bulbs  59,519,563  85,367,099 
Adjustor Motors  18,798,185  28,132,854 
Others  374,725,289  298,777,058 
Total  563,627,742  534,805,354 

22.2	Cost of moulds, tools & dies

Amount in `
For the year ended 

March 31, 2017
For the year ended

March 31, 2016
Inventory at the beginning of the year  197,875,544  307,716,967 
Add: Purchases  933,210,838  596,429,419 

 1,131,086,382  904,146,386 
Less: Inventory at the end of the year (Note 18)  256,732,704  197,875,544 

 874,353,678  706,270,842 

23.	 (Increase)/ decrease in Inventories

Amount in `
As at 

March 31, 2017
As at

March 31, 2016
 (Increase)/ 

Decrease
Inventories at the end of the year
Work-in-progress (Note 18)  62,287,029  65,959,140  3,672,111 
Finished goods (Note 18)  162,636,784  134,925,273  (27,711,511)
Traded goods (Note 18)  16,092,471  35,171,173  19,078,702 

 241,016,284  236,055,586  (4,960,698)
Inventories at the beginning of the year
Work-in-progress 65,959,140  70,598,472  4,639,332 
Finished goods  134,925,273  149,795,987  14,870,714 
Traded goods  35,171,173  35,073,535  (97,638)

 236,055,586  255,467,994  19,412,408 
 (4,960,698)  19,412,408 

Details of purchase of traded goods
Amount in `

For the year ended 
March 31, 2017

For the year ended
March 31, 2016

Automotive Lamps  40,106,628  78,726,759 
Total  40,106,628  78,726,759 
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Details of Inventory
Amount in `

As at
March 31, 2017

As at
March 31, 2016

Work-in-progress
Automotive Lamps 61,991,988  58,491,290 
Gear shifter 295,041  7,467,850 
Total  62,287,029  65,959,140 

Finished goods
Automotive Lamps 162,445,429  127,179,668 
Gear shifter 191,355  7,745,605 
Total  162,636,784  134,925,273 

Traded Goods
Automotive Lamps  16,092,471  35,171,173 
Total  16,092,471  35,171,173 

24	 Employee benefits expense
Amount in `

For the year ended 
March 31, 2017

For the year ended
March 31, 2016

Salaries, wages and bonus  1,352,469,417  1,205,738,921 
Contribution to provident and other fund  58,435,602  50,334,742 
Gratuity expense (note 29)  29,154,501  31,860,027 
Staff welfare expenses  143,345,163  124,626,130 
Commission to Directors  26,870,090  14,097,904 

 1,610,274,773  1,426,657,724 

25	 Other expenses
Amount in `

For the year ended 
March 31, 2017

For the year ended
March 31, 2016

Consumption of stores and spares  51,818,917  52,815,108 
Packing material consumed  238,335,874  237,183,710 
Power and fuel  446,715,718  443,494,504 
Rent  20,323,132  16,510,452 
Rates and taxes  23,662,276  15,974,692 
Insurance  11,717,128  9,170,488 
Repairs and maintenance
	 -  Plant and machinery  116,002,330 120,168,868 
	 -  Buildings  15,402,721 13,830,214 
	 -  Others  129,533,487 109,309,667 
Freight and forwarding charges  214,952,792 224,789,472 
Discount, rebates and claims  1,879,471 2,146,626 
Cash discount on sales  28,522,992 27,349,136 
Commission on sales - other than sole selling agent  6,380,369  5,331,879 
Travelling and conveyance  129,887,043 110,962,414 
Legal and Professional Fees  17,092,087  20,630,174 
Management Support fees  178,446,018 123,628,508 
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Amount in `
For the year ended 

March 31, 2017
For the year ended

March 31, 2016
Design, support and testing charges  13,158,936 21,337,846 
Directors' sitting fees  1,246,200 1,122,100 
Payment to auditors (Refer details below)  5,436,766 6,128,033 
Donations  69,000 2,100 
Royalty  177,438,579 174,453,661 
Warranty costs  2,211,191 11,791,544 
(Increase)/ decrease of excise duty on inventory (note 20)  6,776,891 (2,045,717)
Exchange difference (net)  -    3,006,669 
Provision for doubtful debts / advances  (net)  1,664,743 109,901 
Miscellaneous expenses  106,396,690 89,957,960 
Contribution towards Corporate Social Responsibility (note 39)  3,361,859 3,259,049 

 1,948,433,210 1,842,419,058 

Above expenses include research and development expenses (Refer note 38)

	 Payment to Auditor
Amount in `

For the year ended 
March 31, 2017

For the year ended
March 31, 2016

As auditor:
	 Audit fee 3,248,467  3,224,300 
	 Tax audit fee  350,000  350,000 
	 Limited Review  1,290,000  1,290,000 
In other capacity:
	 Certification fees  40,000  790,000 
	 Reimbursement of expenses  508,299  473,733 

 5,436,766  6,128,033 

26.	 Depreciation and amortization expense
Amount in `

For the year ended 
March 31, 2017

For the year ended
March 31, 2016

Depreciation of property, plant & equipment  393,515,323  364,818,874 
Amortization of intangible assets  10,736,790  14,169,106 

 404,252,113  378,987,980 

27.	 Finance costs
Amount in `

For the year ended 
March 31, 2017

For the year ended
March 31, 2016

Interest to banks
	 - on term loans  21,342,082  52,585,682 
	 - on cash credit  85,302,232  69,705,542 
Interest others  1,496,491  1,673,315 
Bank charges  5,963,440  10,414,308 

 114,104,245  134,378,847 
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28.	 Earnings per share (EPS)

Amount in `

March 31, 2017  March 31, 2016 

The following reflects the profit and share data used in the basic and 
diluted EPS computations:

Net profit for calculation of basic and diluted EPS 552,188,209 520,259,966 

Weighted average number of equity shares in calculating basic and 
diluted EPS

9,347,732 9,347,732 

Basic and Diluted Earnings per share ({Nominal value of shares of  
` 10 (Previous year : ` 10)}

59.07 55.66 

29.	Gratuity  benefit plan
	 The Company operates defined benefit plan for gratuity for its employees. Under the gratuity plan, every employee 

who has completed atleast five years of service gets a gratuity on departure @ 15 days of last drawn basic salary 
including DA for each completed year of service, subject to a maximum amount of ` 1,000,000. The scheme is 
funded with an insurance Company in the form of qualifying insurance policy.

	 The following tables summarize the components of net (benefit) / expense recognized in the statement of profit and 
loss and the funded status and amounts recognized in the balance sheet for the gratuity plan.

	 Statement of profit and loss

	 Net employee (benefit) / expense recognized in the employee cost

Amount in `

Particulars
Gratuity

March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016

Current service cost 14,508,029 11,779,340

Interest cost on benefit obligation 10,820,159 9,355,669

Expected return on plan assets (9,245,428) (9,107,168)

Net actuarial (gain) / loss recognized in the year 13,071,741 19,832,186

Net (benefit) / expense (Refer Note 24) 29,154,501 31,860,027

Actual return on plan assets 9,762,628 9,296,805

	 Balance sheet

	 Benefit asset/ (liability)

Particulars
Gratuity

March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016

Present value of defined benefit obligation 179,470,723 147,962,874

Fair value of plan assets 125,375,096 108,247,768

Plan asset / (liability) (54,095,627) (39,715,106)
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	 Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation are as follows:
Amount in `

Particulars
Gratuity

March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016
Opening defined benefit obligation 147,962,874 133,082,909
Current service cost 14,486,915 11,779,340
Interest cost 10,820,159 9,355,669
Benefits paid (7,388,166) (26,276,867)
Actuarial (gains) / losses on obligation 13,588,941 20,021,823
Closing defined benefit obligation 179,470,723 147,962,874

	 Changes in the fair value of plan assets are as follows:
Amount in `

Particulars
Gratuity

March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016
Opening fair value of plan assets 108,247,768 118,663,555
Expected return 9,245,428 9,107,168
Contributions by employer 14,774,092 6,179,474
Benefits paid (7,409,392) (25,892,066)
Actuarial gains / (losses) 517,200 189,637
Closing fair value of plan assets 125,375,096 108,247,768

	 The Company expects to contribute ` 39,206,270 to gratuity in the next year (Previous year: ` 14,789,453).

	 The major categories of plan assets as a percentage of the fair value of total plan assets are as follows:

Particulars
Gratuity

March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016
Investments with insurer 100% 100%

	 The principal assumptions used in determining gratuity obligation for the Company’s plans are shown below:

Particulars
Gratuity

March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016
Discount rate 7.50% 7.80%
Expected rate of return on assets 8.26% 8.37%
Attrition rate / Employee turnover 5.00% 5.00%

	 The estimates of future salary increases, considered in actuarial valuation, take account of inflation, seniority, 
promotion and other relevant factors, such as supply and demand in the employment market.

	 The overall expected rate of return on assets is determined based on the market prices prevailing on that date, 
applicable to the period over which the obligation is to be settled.
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	 Amounts for the current and previous four periods are as follows:
Amount in `

Particulars March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016
Gratuity    
Defined benefit obligation 179,470,723 147,962,874
Plan assets 125,375,096 108,247,768
Surplus / (deficit) (54,095,627) (39,715,106)
Experience adjustments on  
plan liabilities

13,588,941 20,021,823

Experience adjustments on plan assets 517,200 189,637

30.	 Capitalization of Expenditure

	 (a)	� A project to set up a manufacturing plant in Sanand has started from October, 2016. The detail of Pre-operating 
expenses included in Capital work-in-progress in respect of project work are shown below. Consequently,  
expenses disclosed under the respective notes are net of amounts capitalized by the company.

Amount in `
Head-wise expense March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016
Insurance 733,249 -
Light & power exp. 670,575 -
Manpower cost 777,693 -
Miscellanies expenses 540,369 -
Security service 135,835 -
Travelling exp. 4,293,761 -
Interest 1,146,371 -
Total 8,297,853 -

	 (b)	� The following expenses have been reduced from the respective heads and have been included in the cost of 
moulds, tools and dies capitalized. Consequently, expenses disclosed under the respective notes are net of 
amounts capitalized by the company.

Amount in `
Particulars March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016

Repair and Maintenance – Plant & Machinery 1,117,160 67,524
Repair and Maintenance – Others 255,633 118,028
Miscellaneous Expenses - 1,248,281
Total 1,372,793 1,433,834

31.	 Segment information

	 Business Segments:

	 The Company produces various types of automotive lighting systems. Since the Company’s business activity falls 
within a single business segment, there are no additional disclosures to be provided under Accounting Standard-17 
‘Segment Reporting’ other than those already provided in the Financial Statements. 
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	 Geographical Segments 

	 The geographical segment comprises of domestic and overseas market. The following table shows the distribution 
of the Company’s consolidated sales by geographical market, regardless of where the goods were produced:

	 Revenue from operations by Geographical Market (Net of Excise Duties)

Amount in `
S. No. Particulars March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016

1 Domestic Market 12,732,119,808 12,252,216,443
2 Overseas Market 265,689,764 299,535,922

Total 12,997,809,572 12,551,752,365

	� Trade Receivables: The following table shows the distribution of the Company’s trade receivables by geographical 
market:

Amount in `
S. No. Particulars March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016

1 Domestic 1,825,226,523 1,724,817,408
2 Overseas 84,195,201 87,086,067

Total 1,909,421,724 1,811,903,475

32.	 Related party disclosures 

	 Names of related parties and related party relationship

	 (a)	 Related parties under AS-18 with whom transactions have taken place during the year.

S. No. Particulars Name of Related Parties

1. Enterprise having significant influence Stanley Electric Co. Ltd., Japan

2. Key Management Personnel Mr. D. K. Jain (Chairman)

Mr. Deepak Jain (Managing Director)

Mr. Anmol Jain (Joint Managing Director)

Mr. E. Hirooka (Sr. Executive Director) 

Mr. N. Sato (Executive Director)

Mr. K Sawada (Executive Director)

3. Enterprise owned or significantly influenced 
by Key Management Personnel or their 
Relatives 

Lumax Auto Technologies Limited 

Lumax DK Auto Industries Limited

Lumax Tours & Travels Limited

Lumax Ancillary Limited

Mahavir Udyog 

Bharat Enterprises

Lumax Cornaglia Auto Technologies Private Limited

Lumax Mannoh Allied Technologies Limited

Lumax Management Services Private Limited

Lumax Energy Solutions Private Limited
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33.	 Capital and other commitments

Amount in `

S. No. Particulars March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016

1. Estimated amount of Contract (Net of Advances paid during the year 
Rs 83,416,857 (Previous Year ` 42,168,002) remaining to be executed on 
capital account and not provided for.

231,483,678 63,366,133

	� The Company’s share in capital commitments of its associate, SL Lumax Limited is ` 43,321,701 (previous year 
` 15,662,014)

34.	 Contingent liabilities

Amount in `

S. No. Particulars March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016

(i) Bills of exchange discounted from a bank 327,842,178 247,106,673

(ii) Various other claims of Sales Tax Matters made against the Company 
on account of non-submission of statutory forms etc. being disputed by 
the Company.

2,520,457 2,520,457

(iii) Demand of Central Sales Tax for Financial Year 2010-11 & 2011-12 which 
is subject to submission of C-Form & H-Form.

7,737,765 2,140,602

(iv) Demand in respect of non-reversal of proportionate Cenvat Credit @ 
0.6% against providing exempt services i.e. trading

- 1,088,154

(v) Demand of Cenvat Credit for  2011-2016 in respect of service tax paid on 
the outward transportation

1,569,640 3,209,812

(vi) In respect of additions made by the Assessing officer for Assessment 
Year 2009-10 and confirmed by DRP for which the Company has filed an 
appeal before ITAT and ITAT has decided in favour of the company vide 
order dated 22.04.2016 and relief granted in Assessing officer order 
dated 21.07.2016.

- 563,918

(vii) In respect of additions made by the Assessing officer for Assessment 
Year 2010-11 and confirmed by DRP for which the Company has filed an 
appeal before ITAT

177,323 177,323

(viii) Liability of Customs duty towards export obligation undertaken by the 
Company under EPCG licenses (including interest)

188,602,958 150,404,202

(ix) Letter of credit 144,665,857 21,552,216

(x) Bank Guarantees 505,372,500 287,364,400

	 The Company’s share in contingencies of its associate, SL Lumax Limited is ` 1,310,111 (previous year `1, 310,111).

	 The current year amount relating to income tax does not include interest. Based on the favorable decisions 
in similar cases/advice taken by the Company & based on management’s internal assessment, the Company 
believes that it has good case in respect of all the items listed above and hence no provision there against is 
considered necessary.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 
for the year ended March 31, 2017

35.	 Disclosure in respect of cash transactions.

	 The company held the following specified Bank Notes (SBNs) and the following transactions were incurred during 
the period from 8 November, 2016 to 30 December, 2016 as provided in the table below:

Particulars SBNs Other Denomination Notes Total
Closing Balance as on 08.11.2016* 2,045,000 700,457 2,745,457
Add : Permitted Receipts* - 2,546,862 2,546,862
Less : Permitted Payments* - 2,109,613 2,109,613
Less : Deposited in Bank 2,045,000 - 2,045,000
Closing Balance as on 30.12.2016* - 1,137,706 1,137,706

	 * Above disclosure is excluding money held in Taiwan Doller (TWD) in Taiwan.

	 The associate company’ SL Lumax Limited held the following specified Bank Notes (SBNs) and the following 
transactions were incurred during the period from 8 November, 2016 to 30 December, 2016 as provided in the 
table below.

Particulars SBNs Other Denomination Notes Total
Closing Balance as on 08.11.2016 167,000 885 167,885
Add : Permitted Receipts* 84,000 1,196,870 1,280,870
Less : Permitted Payments - 449,830 449,830
Less : Deposited in Bank 251,000 - 251,000
Closing Balance as on 30.12.2016 - 747,925 747,925

	� *Permitted receipts on SBNs comprise earlier payment in old denominations to employees retuned by them and 
replaced by the company with new currency

36.	 Derivative instruments and unhedged foreign currency exposure

	 (a)	 Derivatives outstanding as at the reporting date

Particulars Purpose
Cross Currency cum interest rate swap - USD 625,000 
(March 31, 2016: USD 4,687,500 ) Notional amount INR 
40,531,250  (March 31, 2016: INR 310,570,312)

Hedge against exposure to outflow for USD loan 
repayment and its interest payments. Swap to pay 
fixed interest @ 10.65% p.a. and receive a variable 
interest @ LIBOR plus margin.

	 (b)	 Particulars of unhedged foreign currency exposure as at the reporting date

Amount in `
Particulars Foreign  

Currency
Amount Amount (in Foreign  

currency)
Exchange rate

March 31, 
2017

March 31, 
2016

March 31, 
2017

March 31, 
2016

March 31, 
2017

March 31, 
2016

Trade Payable 
(including payable 
for capital goods)

EUR 19,674,457 365,054 283,933 4,842 69.29 75.40

GBP 37,003 - 457 - 80.90 -
JPY 40,091,510 50,141,073 69,120,313 85,006,482 0.58 0.59
USD 384,489,770 166,495,082 5,928,909 2,512,944 64.85 66.26
CHF - 505,347 - 7,326 - 68.98
SGD - 123,943 - 2,516 - 49.27
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Amount in `
Particulars Foreign  

Currency
Amount Amount (in Foreign  

currency)
Exchange rate

March 31, 
2017

March 31, 
2016

March 31, 
2017

March 31, 
2016

March 31, 
2017

March 31, 
2016

Advance  
Recoverable

EUR 16,323,922 2,354,835 235,580 31,233 69.29 75.40

CHF - 3,088,235 - 44,770 - 68.98
JPY 28,289,211 - 48,772,400 - 0.58 -
GBP 120,682 - 1,492 - 80.90 -
TWD 521,910 - 243,883 - 2.14 -
USD 217,862,618 183,301,669 3,359,485 2,766,609 64.85 66.26

Trade Receivable EUR 17,587,716 7,915,290 253,818 104,984 69.29 75.40
GBP 20,750,017 19,064,364 256,482 199,684 80.90 95.47
USD 45,857,467 60,106,413 7,07,131 907,198 64.85 66.26

37.	 Details of dues to micro and small enterprises as defined under the MSMED Act, 2006

Amount in `

Particulars March 31,  2017 March 31, 2016

The principal amount and the interest due thereon remaining unpaid 
to any supplier as at the end of each accounting year

Principal amount due to micro and small enterprises 1,480,603 722,444

Interest due on above 13,849 19,716

1,494,452 742,160

The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16 of the 
MSMED Act 2006 along with the amounts of the payment made to 
the supplier beyond the appointed day during each accounting year

- -

The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in 
making payment (which have been paid but beyond the appointed 
day during the year) but without adding the interest specified under 
the MSMED Act 2006.

252,174 212,582

The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of 
each accounting year.

855,618 589,595

The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the 
succeeding years, until such date when the interest dues as above are 
actually paid to the small enterprise for the purpose of disallowance 
as a deductible expenditure under section 23 of the MSMED Act 2006

- -
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 
for the year ended March 31, 2017

38.	 Details of Research and Development expenses are as follows:

	 A.	� The Company has incurred expenses on its in-house research and development center at Gurgaon approved 
and recognised by the Ministry of Science & Technology, Government of India. 

		  a.	 Capital Expenditure
Amount in `

Particulars March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016
Capital expenditure 21,297,790 17,154,739

		  b.	 Revenue Expenditure

Amount in `
Particulars March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016
Salaries, Wages and Bonus 90,008,894 73,028,979
Contribution to Provident Fund 4,391,761 3,586,926
Contribution to Other Funds 226,676 206,830
Staff Welfare 17,142,094 12,120,633
Provision for Retirement Benefit  3,253,842 2,110,993
Insurance 542,844 346,346
Repair & Maintenance 13,368,676 12,277,078
Travelling & Conveyance 35,097,633 29,025,564
Research & Development 34,892 1,120
Power & Fuel 926,800 808,238
Miscellaneous 5,257,390 4,676,826
Design, Support & Testing Charges 974,388 1,522,488
Material/Consumable/Spares 346,494 95,830
Depreciation 12,962,645 15,153,808
Finance Cost 634,542 745,982
Total 185,169,571 155,707,641

	 B.	� The Company has incurred expenses on its in-house research and development center at Pune approved and 
recognised by the Ministry of Science & Technology, Government of India.

		  a.	 Capital Expenditure
Amount in `

Particulars March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016
Capital expenditure 20,196,177 7,463,762

		  a.	 Revenue Expenditure

Amount in `
Particulars March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016
Salaries, Wages and Bonus 68,314,460 44,708,512
Contribution to Provident Fund 2,786,748 2,147,793
Contribution to Other Funds 202,829 189,125
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Amount in `
Particulars March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016
Staff Welfare 5,985,786 5,474,640
Provision for Retirement Benefit 1,669,314 1,333,692
Insurance 320,488 170,070
Repair & Maintenance 5,279,785 5,091,501
Travelling & Conveyance 15,612,732 11,521,068
Research & Development  -   61,383
Legal & Professional Expenses 2,209,754 3,596,647
Power & Fuel 2,979,941 2,337,783
Miscellaneous 2,682,080 1,821,636
Design, Support & Testing Charges 896,007              387,948
Material / Consumables / Spares 97,851             40,538
Depreciation 7,539,255 8,137,997
Finance Cost 171,685 218,462
Total 116,748,715 87,238,795

39.	 Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR)

	 As per the provisions of section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company has to spend atleast 2% of the average 
net profits of the company made during three immediately preceding financial years towards CSR. Accordingly, a 
CSR committee has been formed for carrying out the CSR activities as specified in Schedule VII of the Companies Act, 
2013.The specified percentage of aforesaid net profit amounts to `3,742,223 (Previous year `2,016,882). However, 
the Company has spent an amount of ̀ 3, 361,859 (Previous year ̀ 3, 259,049) and has accordingly charged the same 
to the statement of Profit & Loss.

40.	 Claim recoverable represents receivables from West Bengal Industrial Development Corporation in relation to 
Singur Land. The Company has relied on legal opinion for ascertaining the recoverability of the claim.

41.	 The assets of ` 350,783,068 (Previous year ` 239,219,298) recognized by the Company as ‘MAT Credit Entitlement’ 
under ‘ Loans and Advances’ represents that portion of MAT, which can be recovered and set off in subsequent 
years based on provisions of Section 115JAA of the Income Tax Act, 1961. The management, based on present trend 
of profitability and also the future profitability projections, is of the view that there would be sufficient taxable 
income in foreseeable future, which will enable the Company to utilize MAT credit assets.

42.	 Previous year’s figures have been regrouped / reclassified, where necessary, to conform to this year’s classification.

As per our report of even date

For S. R. Batliboi & CO. LLP	  For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of Lumax Industries Limited
Chartered Accountants
ICAI firm registration number: 301003E/E300005

per Vikas Mehra	 D. K. Jain 	 Deepak Jain
Partner	 Chairman	 Managing Director
Membership No. 94421	 DIN: 00085848	 DIN: 00004972

Place : Gurugram	 Shruti Kant Rustagi 	 Shwetank Tiwari
Date : May 13, 2017 	 Chief Financial Officer	 Company Secretary
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